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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of EGL Holdings Company Limited and its subsidiaries, |
hereby present to you the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The COVID-19 pandemic is wreaking havoc worldwide since
early 2020 and has plunged the tourism industry. Affected by the
lockdown policies of Hong Kong and other regions and areas, the
Group has had almost no revenue for several months. Though
the Group has adopted several cost-saving measures since the
beginning of the year while benefited from the relief support of the
Anti-epidemic Fund, we have inevitably faced a significant financial
loss during the Year.

During the Year, the Group recorded total revenue of approximately
HK$249.8 million (2019: HK$1,728.3 million), representing a
decrease of 85.5% compared with last year, and the gross profit
margin was approximately 12.1% (2019: 18.1%). Loss attributable
to owners of the Company was approximately HK$108.8
million (2019: profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$14.0 million). For the details of our business
performance, please refer to the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” below.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year (2019: Nil).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Under the adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the travel-
related business and the hotel business of the Group have halted
since mid-March 2020. In response, the Group adopted multiple
cost-saving measures. Besides reducing non-essential spending
and negotiating for partial property rental reduction, the Group
closed the Tuen Mun branch and terminated the lease of the
Yuen Long branch, while the subsidiary in Taiwan began winding-
up procedure at the end of March 2020. Further, we adopted
measures including salary reductions for the Directors, no-pay
leaves for employees, and manpower restructuring after assessing
the operational needs. The Group also obtained liquidity loan
facilities from local banks and a related company to sustain the
Company’s cash resources.

To cope with adverse circumstances, the Group launched the
brand-new online shopping platform, “EGL Market”, where more
than 500 souvenir product items around the world are available
for customer self-pickup and delivery services. Product categories
cover snacks of Japan, South Korea and Taiwan, namagashi,
Japanese sake, local craft beer, and household cleaning products
directly imported from Japan. Fresh seasonal fruits, such as
Musang King durian directly shipped from orchards of Malaysia,
spicy pot duck blood and bean thread from Taiwan, and instant
abalone porridge from Japan, are all very popular, these are
high-quality and diversified products constantly available to
our customers. Besides delivery services, self-pickup service
at branches is also available to customers, thereby reviving
the operation of branches, allowing customers to pick up their
favorite items at a convenient location, and boosting the morale
of employees. From previously taking our customers to travel
around the world, the Group transforms to bringing in global food,
shopping and life enjoying experiences directly to Hong Kong
people through our physical product items. Under the new trend
of online shopping, the Group hopes that the online platform will
develop into a long-lasting and sustainable new business to open
up the “travel + living” ecosystem.

20204E% Annual Report 2020 007
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In addition, the Group also cooperated with the tourism
departments of Miyazaki and Kagoshima Prefecture to launch the
first “Miyazaki & Kagoshima Fantastic Themed Flight Flycation”
in November 2020, introducing unexpected check-in spots
to be explored during the actual tour, customers can further
travel virtually before the trip by watching live broadcasting of
tourist spots in Miyazaki on Facebook. Thereafter, the Group
also launched several local one-day tours incorporating different
themes and features, including hiking, history and culture, nature
exploration, parent-child tour, or geology & ecology field trips
to outlying islands, allowing residents to realize and appreciate
the fun and diversity of our Hong Kong. Further tour options
combining staycation, local tour admission tickets, or workshop
courses are available, giving small bliss during daily trying times
against the pandemic.

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group has always committed to fulfilling its corporate
social responsibilities with respect to community development,
consumers, staff and other areas, all together to build an even
better society. The “EGL Caring Society Team” was established
by the Group in order to host and organise charitable events
to promote community development with the benefit of our
knowledge of the tourism industry as well our own resources. The
Group continues to participate in the “Good Employer Charter”
held by the Labour Department of Hong Kong to promote jointly
a decent human resources management culture, and pledges
to adopt employee-oriented, up-to-date, and effective human
resource management measures, so as to build a harmonious
relationship in the workplace. In addition, the Group won the
“Partner Employer Award” from the Hong Kong General Chamber
of Small and Medium Business, which recognised the Group’s
efforts in caring for the underprivileged and promoting social
harmony.

At the peak of the seasonal flu, the management of the Company
funded arrangements to provide all employees with free flu
vaccination, aiming to ensure the good health of employees, to
create a healthy workplace, and to prevent and control spread
of the illness. In the chaotic times of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group paid close attention to epidemic information issued
by the Hong Kong SAR Government and coordinated with all
epidemic prevention measures, to distribute information on
epidemic prevention to employees in a timely manner and update
as necessary, to conduct effective coordination management,
to ensure hygienic environment, and to remind all employees to
take personal precautionary measures. We also refrained from
arranging for employees and customers to travel to countries and
regions reporting widespread COVID-19 community transmission
before regional lockdowns were implemented.
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The Group places equal emphasis on both the physical and
mental well-being of employees. During the Year, the Group was
invited by the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (HKQAA) to
take part in the promotion of “Community Health Ambassador”
Personnel Registration Scheme, so that our employees could exert
their positive attitude to promote healthy communities during the
pandemic. Through the scheme, our employees’ health awareness
is elevated, sharing relevant health issues with colleagues, friends
as well as the community. Let us join forces together to fight
against COVID-19, become Community Health Ambassadors
to build a healthy society. Further, the Group has also engaged
a counselor to offer tips, guidelines and consulting services on
epidemic prevention and stress relief for our employees and their
families, to give professional advice in dealing with stress in life
and distress in emotions.

Being deep rooted in Hong Kong, the Group cares about the
society all the time. When face mask supply was in shortage at
the early stage of the pandemic, the management of the Company
manifested community spirit and initiated the emergency response
task unit for the purpose of fighting against COVID-19 with
Hong Kong residents. With the help of our business partners in
Japan and South Korea, we successfully acquired face masks
which were quickly delivered to Hong Kong. The Group gave out
30,000 face masks to Hong Kong residents in February 2020,
also provided demonstration on how to wear and take off masks
properly to address their urgent needs.

For the sustainability of the environment and the community
in which our businesses are operated, the Group takes efforts
to venture into more innovative areas with the green office
management mechanism, and accelerates the implementation
of energy-saving measures in our business operation. During
the pandemic, the Group strengthened the implementation of its
energy-saving measures that could reduce energy consumption,
such as reducing fluorescent lighting in the office that are beyond
adequate lighting purposes and recycling stationery. These cost-
saving measures could also help reduce the consumption of
natural resources. The Group also invited employees to participate
in the tree planting activities of “Tree Partner Programme
2020” organised by the World Green Organisation (WGO).
The programme aims to replace ageing foreign origin trees by
planting native tree seedlings to conserve the biological diversity
of our local ecosystem, thus reducing greenhouse gas emission,
building a clean and comfortable home city, and contributing to
environmental protection.

20204E%% Annual Report 2020 009
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BUSINESS PROSPECT

In the days past, the Company went through tough times of Kobe
earthquake in 1995, SARS in 2003, the financial crisis in 2008, the
311 earthquake in 2011, etc. Against each of the challenges, we
charged forward to face the difficulties with unfaltering confidence.
Notwithstanding the unavoidable suspension of our travel and
hotel businesses, the Group’s operation has continued to develop,
with the construction of the Group’s hotel project in Okinawa
which has completed in October 2020 and officially commenced
operation in December. Because of the hotel location and services
that we provide, on Japan’s internet search engine for hotels in
Okinawa, the ranking of our hotel has surged to the top 10 within
a short period. The resurgence of the COVID-19 pandemic casts
uncertainty over the recovery of the travel business and hotel
business, however, as soon as the pandemic abates in the near
future, we can be back on track to continue with our brilliant
performance!

After every storm, there is a rainbow! | am very grateful to the
Company’s management and their team for supporting the
Group, to take on and overcome the ensuing challenges from
this pandemic of the century! | would like to extend my sincere
gratitude to shareholders, customers, business partners,
management and their team for moving forward together amidst
the pandemic, with confidence and support to the Group. We see
Hong Kong as our home and we are proud of the perseverance
of Hong Kong’s excellent medical staff and Hong Kong residents
in battling with the virus. We will uphold our values and hope to
offer our customers pleasant trips immediately after the pandemic
passes.

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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GROUP OVERVIEW

Under the adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group’s
travel and its related business came to a halt since mid-March
2020 and the hotel business was suspended almost throughout
the Year. Despite the Group implemented various cost-saving
measures to reduce operational costs and received subsidies
from the Hong Kong Government and overseas governments
on tourism industry relief, the Group is inevitably facing a very
challenging and unprecedented scenario.

During the Year, revenue of the Group decreased to approximately
HK$249.8 million (2019: HK$1,728.3 million), representing
a decrease of 85.5%. Gross profit and gross profit margin
decreased by 90.3% and 6.0 percentage points respectively.
Loss attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$108.8 million (2019: profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$14.0 million).
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share of HK2.79 cents).

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Basic loss per share for loss attributable to owners of the
Company for 2020 was HK21.65 cents (2019: basic earnings per

The principal activities of the Group comprise provision of package
tours, FIT Products and ancillary travel related products and

services as well as the ownership, development and management

of hotel business.

years are set out as follows:

Revenue and gross profit from various business segments for the

2020 2019
Wz E7 Ef=x & E7) ERE
Gross Gross
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue profit margin  Revenue profit margin
THET FTAET B FHET FET Bt
HK$'000 HK$’000 % HK$000 HK$000 %
IRAT Package tours

—BK - Japan 137,009 3,626 26 900,682 124,231 13.8
—JEHA - Non-Japan 79,237 9,957 12.6 567,043 67,425 11.9
RITE 4B 5T Total package tours 216,246 13,583 6.3 1,467,725 191,656 13.1

BHITE@MEBERIT FIT Products and ancillary travel
B A E S S R TR related products and services 24,119 11,882 49.3 188,828 68,770 36.4
BIEEE Hotel operation 9,406 4,873 51.8 71,775 52,067 72.5
st Total 249,771 30,338 121 1,728,328 312,493 18.1
20204 % Annual Report 2020 013
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PACKAGE TOURS

Revenue from package tours are mainly tour fees received from
customers for outbound package tours. The main source of the
Group’s revenue is derived from package tours, which contributed
86.6% to the Group’s total revenue during the Year (2019: 84.9%).

During the Year, Japan-bound package tours remained the major
source of the Group's revenue, which contributed 54.9% (2019:
52.1%) to the Group’s total revenue. With the severe impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic, number of customers dropped sharply
to 12,169 (2019: 91,718). Revenue decreased to approximately
HK$137.0 million (2019: HK$900.7 million), representing
a decrease of 84.8%. Gross profit and gross profit margin
decreased by 97.1% and 11.2 percentage points respectively as
compared to 2019.

The adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic swept across
the travel related business, the performance of non-Japan-bound
package tours was no exception. During the Year, non-Japan-
bound package tours contributed 31.7% (2019: 32.8%) to the
Group's total revenue. Number of customers for non-Japan-bound
package tours decreased to 8,347 (2019: 77,900). Revenue
decreased to approximately HK$79.2 million (2019: HK$567.0
million), representing a decrease of 86.0%. Gross profit decreased
by 85.2% and gross profit margin increased by 0.7 percentage
points as compared to 2019.

FIT PRODUCTS AND ANCILLARY TRAVEL RELATED
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Revenue from FIT Products and ancillary travel related products
and services mainly represents income from sale of air tickets,
hotel accommodation, public transportation tickets, theme park
admission tickets, commission income from travel insurance
services and handling fees from remittance services provided
to souvenir and merchandise suppliers in Japan. Revenue also
includes income from the brand-new online shopping platform,
“EGL Market”, which was launched in the second quarter of 2020.
This shopping platform generates a new stream of income to the
Group despite the fact that it only contributes a relatively small
percentage to the Group’s total revenue at current stage.
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Most sales of FIT Products and ancillary travel related products
and services were brought to a stop because of travel restrictions
and border measures imposed by many countries. During the Year,
FIT Products and ancillary travel related products and services
contributed 9.7% (2019: 10.9%) to the Group’s total revenue.
Revenue decreased to approximately HK$24.1 million (2019:
HK$188.8 million), representing a decrease of 87.2%. Gross profit
decreased by 82.7% and gross profit margin increased by 12.9
percentage points as compared to 2019.

HOTEL OPERATION

Osaka Hinode Hotel, the Group’s first hotel, provides quality
hospitality services for guests from all over the world. The hot
spring bath building adjacent to the Osaka Hinode Hotel has been
in operation since April 2019. The building enables guests to enjoy
relaxing hot spring in the hotel’s vicinity. Impacted by the outbreak
of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group’s hotel business was
suspended from mid-March to September and in December 2020.
The hotel room occupancy rate dropped to 8.0% (2019: 69.3%)
for the Year.

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel, the Group’s second
hotel, started its operation in December 2020. It provides quality
hospitality services for guests from all over the world and has a
capacity of 201 rooms which can accomodate 480 guests with
various facilities ranging from outdoor hot spring to swimming
pool. With only one month of operation, its revenue only amounted
to approximately HK$0.9 million.

Revenue from hotel operation mainly represents income generated
from letting the hotel rooms, which contributed 3.8% (2019: 4.2%)
to the Group’s total revenue. Revenue decreased to approximately
HK$9.4 million (2019: HK$71.8 million), representing a decrease of
86.9%. Gross profit and gross profit margin decreased by 90.6%
and 20.7 percentage points respectively as compared to 2019.
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FEFEEX KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
2020 2019

ESTUES Gross profit margin 12.1% 18.1%
REFEE Operating profit margin -57.1% 1.1%
il Net profit margin* -43.5% 0.8%
MEBEX Interest coverage ratio -20.4 {&times 2.7 f&times
HEER R X Return on total assets* -10.3% 1.3%
EN/NEIEZZS DN Return on equity attributable to

JFE ik #E 23 [O] 3R owners of the Company* -43.1% 4.0%
TRENELE Current ratio 0.7 {&time 1.1 f&times
EREEE Gearing ratio

BEMBRUEEE Total borrowings over total assets 64.2% 34.1%

FEBRUKREER Net debts over equity 252.3% 66.9%

* B BENRGE LERATERS ARGER, B
e

W K EF
FR2RLEXTEEENREANN - XBHRE DA
A EE W m KR ENBIFS 5 ©

THE L

REEAEBNAGEIRA EEREERIR
BEEENEAREIERN A ERHERTNETES
Do tHER X R/ E 438,600,000 T (20194 ¢
83,700,000/ 7T) * BlIEA53.8% B/ EFEEHNIE
BESKEBRIMAIGE TRA R
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*

Profit/loss in calculation refers to the profit/loss attributable to
owners of the Company.

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

Please refer to the discussion on the Group’s revenue and gross
profit in the sub-section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Business Overview” above.

SELLING EXPENSES

Frontline employee costs, advertising and promotion expenses of
travel related business and those from hotel business contributed
the majority of selling expenses of the Group. Selling expenses
decreased to approximately HK$38.6 million (2019: HK$83.7
million), representing a decrease of 53.8%. Such decreases were
primarily due to the decrease in media advertising and promotion
expenses and frontline employee costs.
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Employee costs, directors’ remuneration, rent and rates,
management fee and depreciation on property, plant and
equipment contributed the majority of administrative expenses of
the Group. Administrative expenses decreased to approximately
HK$147.7 million (2019: HK$216.7 million), representing a
decrease of 31.8%. Such decreases were primarily due to the
decrease in business volume and implementation of cost-saving
measures.

FINANCE COSTS

Imputed interests of approximately HK$1.0 million (equivalent to
approximately JPY13.3 million) incurred on the bank borrowings
for construction of a hotel building in Okinawa were capitalised
into construction in progress in 2020. Upon the completion
of the hotel building in October 2020, these imputed interests
were transferred thereupon to property, plant and equipment
(2019: HK$358,000 (equivalent to approximately JPY5.0 million)
incurred on the bank borrowings for construction of the hot spring
bath building in Osaka and the hotel building in Okinawa were
capitalised into construction in progress. Upon the completion
of the hot spring bath building construction in March 2019,
imputed interests on construction of hot spring bath building were
transferred thereupon to property, plant and equipment).

Upon capitalisation of the above imputed interests, finance costs
of approximately HK$4.0 million (2019: HK$3.2 million) was
incurred on the bank borrowings which were used to finance the
construction and decoration of hotel buildings and hot spring bath
building, acquisition of travel buses and daily operations of travel
related business.

Followed by the Group’s adoption of HKFRS 16 "Leases” on 1
January 2019, finance costs incurred on lease liabilities during the
Year amounted to approximately HK$2.6 million (2019: HK$3.4
million).
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INCOME TAX CREDIT

The income tax credit of the Group during the Year amounted
to approximately HK$39.9 million (2019: HK$2.9 million). Such
increase was resulted from the decrease in income tax expense
of approximately HK$3.2 million and the increase in deferred tax
credit of approximately HK$33.8 million.

INTEREST COVERAGE RATIO

Interest coverage ratio of the Group was —20.4 times in 2020
(2019: 2.7 times). The main factor of the decrease was the results
before finance costs and taxation turned from a profit in 2019 to a
loss in 2020. Such change was due to the same elements which
caused the drastic decrease in revenue and gross profit discussed
in the sub-section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis
— Business Overview” above.

Interest coverage ratio is re-defined to be dividing profit/loss
before finance costs and taxation by finance costs. Comparative
figure was therefore re-calculated accordingly.

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN, OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN
AND NET PROFIT MARGIN

For the decrease in gross profit margin, operating profit margin
and net profit margin, please refer to the factors discussed in
the sub-section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Business Overview” above.

Operating profit/loss is re-defined to be profit/loss before finance
costs and taxation for calculating operating profit margin.
Comparative figure was therefore re-calculated accordingly.

CURRENT RATIO

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current ratio was 0.7 time
(As at 31 December 2019: 1.1 times). The decrease in current
ratio was mainly attributable to the increase in loans from a related
company of approximately HK$200.0 million, decrease in cash
at banks and on hand of approximately HK$107.3 milion and
the decrease in deposits, prepayments and other receivables of
approximately HK$60.4 million, offset by the decrease in contract
liabilities of approximately HK$166.9 million and the decrease in
trade payables of approximately HK$42.3 million.
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GEARING RATIO

Zm/
GRD)
Increase/
2020 2019 (Decrease)
FHET FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EIRtEE - 4AEw% Gearing ratio - Total borrowings
PRMEE E over total assets
RITIER Bank borrowings 476,796 372,875 103,921
BEABER Loans from a related company 200,000 - 200,000
RIS (W5ta) Total borrowings (note a) 676,796 372,875 308,921
BEE Total assets 1,053,511 1,091,880 (38,369)
30.1
BEDE
percentage
BRLEE Gearing ratio 64.2% 34.1% points
BRLEE - B EKEMRUREELR  Gearing ratio - Net debts over equity
BIE™ (Hrzta) Total borrowings (note a) 676,796 372,875 308,921
HEEE Lease liabilities 59,288 67,826 (8,538)
B1&% (Hzto) Total debts (note b) 736,084 440,701 295,383
B RTERRERRE Less: Cash at banks and on hand (98,787) (206,119) 107,332
637,297 234,582 402,715
s (Hate) Equity (note c) 252,583 350,577 (97,994)
185.4
(EERE
percentage
BIRIE = Gearing ratio 252.3% 66.9% points
Hiat - Notes:
(a) BERSERTEIRFEELTDER- (@)  Total borrowings comprise bank borrowings and loans from a related
company.
b) BEFSERTER BEATDERNRIEEERG. (b)  Total debts comprise bank borrowings, loans from a related

company and lease liabilities.

(© REEDOERATES AELDIPRAE K HERE- (c)  Equity comprises all capital and reserves attributable to owners of

the Company.
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The increase in gearing ratio was mainly attributable to the
increase of bank borrowings as the Group had further drawn
down the bank borrowings for the purpose of constructing a hotel
building in Okinawa and for travel related business operation. The
increase was also caused by the loans drawn down from a related
company.

RETURN ON TOTAL ASSETS AND RETURN ON EQUITY
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMFANY

Return on total assets and return on equity attributable to owners
of the Company during the Year were —-10.3% (2019: 1.3%) and
-43.1% (2019: 4.0%) respectively. The decrease in return on total
assets and return on equity were mainly due to the fact that the
results attributable to owners of the Company changed from a
profit in 2019 to a loss in 2020.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

To finance the construction of the hotel building in Okinawa,
the Group had drawn down bank borrowings of approximately
JPY1,265.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$91.3 million)
in 2020 (2019: JPY1,735.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$122.4 million)). The construction was completed in October
2020. The carrying amount of the bank borrowings as at 31
December 2020 amounted to approximately JPY2,913.9 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$217.7 million) (as at 31 December
2019: JPY1,682.9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$119.8
million)).

Regarding to the construction of hot spring bath building
completed in March 2019, the carrying amount of the bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
JPY446.7 million (equivalent to approximately HK$33.3 million)
(as at 31 December 2019: JPY471.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$33.6 million)).

Regarding to the construction of Osaka Hinode Hotel completed
in 2017, the carrying amount of the bank borrowings as at 31
December 2020 amounted to approximately JPY2,836.5 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$211.9 million) (as at 31 December
2019: JPY3,013.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$214.6
million)).
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For acquisition of five travel buses in 2017, the carrying amount
of the bank borrowing as at 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately JPY51.8 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$3.9 million) (as at 31 December 2019: JPY68.3 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$4.9 million)).

To meet the needs of working capital for travel related business
operation, the Group had drawn down bank borrowings of
HK$50.0 million during the Year. Subsequent to the repayment of
HK$40.0 million, the carrying amount as at 31 December 2020
was HK$10.0 million (as at 31 December 2019: Nil). Furthermore,
three interest-free and unsecured loans totalling HK$200.0 million
were obtained from the related company, Great Port, during the
Year and remained outstanding as at 31 December 2020 (as at 31
December 2019: Nil). On 18 March 2021, Great Port issued waiver
letters in respect of demand clauses in these loan agreements.
Thus, these loans have been reclassified as non-current liabilities
thereafter.

Other than the above, the Group financed its operation with its
own capital, with the total equity attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$252.6 million (as at 31 December 2019: HK$350.6 million). As
at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash at banks and on hand
amounted to approximately HK$98.8 million (as at 31 December
2019: HK$206.1 million). Cash at banks and on hand were mainly
denominated in HKD accounting for approximately 55.8% (as at
31 December 2019: 53.4%), MOP accounting for approximately
1.1% (as at 31 December 2019: 10.3%), Euro accounting for
approximately 1.5% (as at 31 December 2019: 7.2%), Renminbi
accounting for approximately 2.1% (as at 31 December 2019:
2.0%) and JPY accounting for approximately 31.0% (as at 31
December 2019: 17.7%).
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Taking into account the future impacts of the COVID-19
pandemic into the Group’s forecasts for its business and
financial performance, the Board believes that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations in 2021,
whilst actual impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic may differ from
these forecasts due to high degree of uncertainties associated
with the duration of the outbreak and measures imposed by
each travel destination such that the effects from these aspects
are unforeseeable. Nevertheless, the Group will continue to
pay its best effort by carrying out preventive measures in work
environment and developing contingency plans for its operation.
On the other hand, the Group will continuously monitor the
travel restrictions, traveller quarantine arrangements and other
precautionary measures in order to proactively comply with the
applicable regulations and rules.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had pledged bank deposits
of approximately HK$8.6 million (as at 31 December 2019:
HK$6.7 million), majority of which were pledged to certain
licensed banks in Hong Kong and Macau to secure letters of
guarantees issued to certain third parties on behalf of the Group.
Together with corporate guarantee provided by the Company and
undertakings provided by the executive Directors to maintain the
control over the management and business of the Group, the
Group’s total guarantees amounted to approximately HK$16.9
million (as at 31 December 2019: HK$22.5 million), which were
mainly issued to the Group’s suppliers, such as air transport
association, airlines and hotels, to guarantee the Group’s trade
payable balances due to the suppliers.

Also, as at 31 December 2020, property, plant and equipment of
Osaka Hinode Hotel together with the hot spring bath building,
Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel and travel buses,
and certain pledged bank balances in Japan of approximately
HK$565.9 million in total (as at 31 December 2019: HK$386.4
million) were pledged for the bank borrowings in Japan as
mentioned in the sub-section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Financial Review — Capital Structure, Liquidity and
Finance Resources”.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other pledge of assets
as at 31 December 2020 (as at 31 December 2019: Nil).
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND FUTURE CAPITAL
EXPENDITURES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitment of
approximately HK$1.0 million (as at 31 December 2019: HK$1.2
million) to acquire property, plant and equipment for its travel
related business.

After the completion of construction work for hotel development
in Okinawa, the Group had no capital commitments in respect
of construction work for hotel development (as at 31 December
2019: HK$134.9 million (equivalent to approximately JPY1.9
billion)).

For future capital expenditures other than above-mentioned, the
Group currently intends to finance such expenses by internal
resources.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Directors considered that there were no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2020 (as at 31 December 2019: Nil).
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FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RISK AND
TREASURY POLICIES

Foreign currency exchange risk exposure is encountered by the
Group to the extent that receipt from customers and payments
to suppliers may not be reconciled, subject to prevailing foreign
currency fluctuations. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
one floating to fixed interest rate swap contract with a bank
in Japan to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk and cash
flow changes of its floating-rate bank borrowings. Other than
the aforesaid swap contract, the Group did not rely on hedging
arrangements. The Group had implemented foreign exchange risk
management procedures to closely monitor the risk exposure. The
procedures were established to prevent carrying excessive cash
balance in foreign currencies, of which the purchase amounts
were limited to the corresponding costs of travel elements based
on estimated sales amount for one week, to cover the foreign
exchange risk exposure in connection. The objective of our foreign
exchange risk management procedures is to cover the foreign
exchange risk exposure in connection with those costs of travel
elements denominated in foreign currencies to be incurred for one
week. The procedures do not allow us to exercise any judgement
over the future direction of foreign exchange fluctuation and are
strict procedural steps for our operational staff to follow. The
Group will review the procedures from time to time and make
appropriate changes when necessary. Other than the transactional
foreign currency exchange risk, assets and liabilities of the
group entities are mainly denominated in its respective functional
currency. The Group’s treasury management policy is to place
surplus cash into bank deposits with licensed banks in mainly
Hong Kong, Macau and Japan. Also, working capital are centrally
managed to ensure proper and efficient collection and deployment
of funds, and sufficient funds to settle liabilities when they fall due.
Net exchange gain of approximately HK$5.2 million was recorded
during the Year (2019: HK$2.4 million).
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total workforce of
482 employees (as at 31 December 2019: 625), of which 182
(as at 31 December 2019: 196) were full-time escort guides.
Employees’ remuneration packages are determined with reference
to the market information and individual performance and will
be reviewed on a regular basis. The remuneration policy will
be reviewed by the Board from time to time. Emoluments of
Directors are determined by the remuneration committee of the
Board after considering the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparing with market conditions. In addition to
basic remuneration, the Group also provides medical insurance,
provident funds and other benefits in kind to the employees.
To intensify personnel training and development, the Group
provides a series of employee training programmes, which aims
to accelerate professional growth and identify competences and
talents of diversified teams. Through operating talent development
scheme and also Youth Upward Mobility Mentorship Program,
the Group has successfully extended the recruitment channels
and enhanced the opportunities on the hiring of high quality
and suitable staff. High potential staff will be groomed and
developed intensively according to the promotion plan towards
the management level. To attract and retain the suitable personnel
for the development of the Group, the Group has adopted a
share option scheme since November 2014. Pursuant to the
share option scheme, share options may be granted to eligible
employees of the Group as a long-term incentive. No share
options were granted, cancelled, lapsed or exercised in 2020
(2019: Nil). During the Year, due to the adverse impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic, no-pay leaves have been arranged for
employees and manpower have been adjusted. Other than that,
there was no significant change in the remuneration policies,
bonus, share option scheme and training scheme of the Group
(2019: Nil).
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B OUTLOOK

BEEEZEWNE N e0o¥ 2REMRBEINEZET  We are thankful for the construction of Okinawa Hinode Resort

BB T > TERAFELASE B RIERN & Hot Spring Hotel to be completed as scheduled and has been

fEEERHE ROAEEN AN ERDKERZE  put into operation in the Year. Even tourism slump is not yet over,

B we are pinning our hopes on the availability of effective vaccine to
stop the crisis in the near future.

REEHEEREERTE T EMEEREERES B We are well-positioned in the market on providing quality services

BEESENSREFBIFS L TR1EESLES  and products, we are confident in Hong Kong's economic

EIHESAENS > LIEHNRHFIRBEESEW  recovery and strengthen ourselves to regain our momentum step

BAERPFES FHERIERK by step and to rekindle Hong Kong people’s interest for the return
of tourism after getting through this hard time.

026 =HmiEEiRARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



LFEHHFHME

Five Year Financial Summary

HE12B31ALEE
For the year ended 31 December
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
THET FTAET FAET FHET T
e Results HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wz Revenue
HRATE Package tours 216,246 1,467,725 1,496,863 1,457,902 1,505,955
BRTERREE FIT Products and ancillary travel
RITHEEERRRE related products and services 24,119 188,828 212,527 164,102 174,277
BIEEE Hotel operation 9,406 71,775 67,224 2,580 -
249,771 1,728,328 1,776,614 1,624,584 1,680,232
E7) Gross Profit
R1TE Package tours 13,583 191,656 189,908 209,661 164,573
BHTERRENE FIT Products and ancillary travel
RITHEEERRRE related products and services 11,882 68,770 75,461 79,160 99,350
BIEEE Hotel operation 4,873 52,067 49,920 2,946 -
30,338 312,493 315,289 291,767 263,923
HAUWA R W i % 58 Other income and gain, net 14,452 4,479 9,590 14,096 10,038
LS ARER Share of results of associates (1,053) 2,198 3,081 2,148 3,462
REERE R ZHE Impairment on interest in an associate - - - (3,839) -
FRE A A R PSR Al (Loss)/Profit before finance costs
_ (B8) /&R and income tax (142,607) 18,790 36,857 38,188 23,048
REMAR Finance costs (6,992) (7,042) (3,913) (370) -
FisiEs/ (B Income tax credit/(expense) 39,925 2,877 2,120 (9,314) (3,714)
FE (518 /&7 (Loss)/Profit for the year (109,674) 14,625 35,064 28,504 19,334
RS Loss/(Profit) attributable to
FElLES1R,/ (&A1) non-controlling interests 914 (624) (247) 55 (664)
/NGIEZZ=DN (Loss)/Profit attributable to
FEh (§548) /&7 owners of the Company (108,760) 14,001 34,817 28,559 18,670
SRYE Per share data
SR (58 /&7 (Loss)/Earnings per share
—BAREE B - Basic and diluted (HK cents) @ (21.65) 2.79 6.93 5.68 3.72
LR Financial ratios
FEH=E Gross profit margin 12.1% 18.1% 17.7% 18.0% 15.7%
R H = Operating profit margin (! -57.1% 1.1% 2.1% 2.4% 1.4%
FH e Net profit margin @ -43.5% 0.8% 2.0% 1.8% 1.1%
MEBEXO Interest coverage ratio © -20.4 f3times 2.7 f&times 9.4 f&times 103.2 f&times  NEA N/A
48E E DR Return on total assets @ -10.3% 1.3% 3.8% 3.4% 3.0%
e O] IR Return on equity @ -43.1% 4.0% 9.8% 8.5% 5.8%
MELEX Current ratio 0.7 f&time 1.1 {Btimes 1.3 f&times 1.6 f&times 1.7 {&times
RRLEE Gearing ratio
—BETRUEEEY - Total borrowings over total assets “ 64.2% 34.1% 29.6% 29.7% 8.4%
—FEBIRUR R ERY - Net debts over equity “ 252.3% 66.9% ABENA FTBBENA FEHNA
20204E%% Annual Report 2020 027
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(1) Operating profit/loss in calculation is re-defined to be profit/loss
before finance costs and taxation. Comparative figures of previous
years were therefore re-calculated accordingly.

2) Profit/loss in calculation refers to profit/loss attributable to owners
of the Company.

3) Interest coverage ratio is re-defined to be dividing profit/loss before
finances costs & taxation by finance costs. Comparative figures of

previous years were therefore re-calculated accordingly.

(4) Gearing ratio:

- Total borrowings comprise bank borrowings and loans from

a related company

- Net debts comprise bank borrowings, loans from a related
company and lease liabilities less cash at banks and on

hand

- Equity comprises all capital and reserves attributable to

Egi] owners of the Company
K12831H
As at 31 December
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
THT FHET FHET FHET FHT
BERAE Assets and Liabilities HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
HWEE Total assets 1,053,511 1,091,880 912,476 845,660 632,556
=L Total liabilities (801,878)  (738,859)  (554,325)  (506,699)  (308,851)
1 7 AR B Total equity 251,633 353,021 358,151 338,961 323,705
FFABEEEN Bank borrowings included in
RITIE total liabilities (476,796)  (372,875)  (269,638)  (250,931) (53,287)
FEAB B Loans from a related company (200,000) - - - -
R AR % Total equity
ZN/NSIEZZ= N Equity attributable to
FE(LRE = owners of the Company 252,583 350,577 355,015 336,154 321,120
R R Non-controlling interests (950) 2,444 3,136 2,807 2,585
251,633 353,021 358,151 338,961 323,705

EEERREMEE2020F12831H EEEIRAF
HAPB B (20194 : 4E) o

RREERBRAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Note:

the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
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The Directors submit herewith their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$44.0 million (2019: approximately
HK$43.5 million).

-

O

\
\\\\

030 =HmusEiRARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



EEi
Report of the Directors

2 2
v

HERDE RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

REBHEAEEZHEBEUREARNT RAEBHF  The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the

2020FE 12831 B2 BEH R NN AERES9E217EH  Company and the Group as at 31 December 2020 are set out in

TEAUBERR - BEENAEERSTIRIMEE B the consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 217 of this

EEILEEZMEATEEIRMNKREAKE (2019F © ) o annual report. The Directors did not declare any dividend during
the Year and the Directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the Year (2019: Nil).

5 [olEE BUSINESS REVIEW

REBNRAEE XZROBELRAERBRKREKZERE Y A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a

B D REH N AFERECER10ENIEER S > LULE  discussion of the Group’s future business development are set

13158 M IEEBNHENN—XKIBE &E26E  out in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 10 and the

WIEEE GESIT—REE D8 - sub-sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis
— Business Overview” on pages 13 to 15 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Outlook” on page 26 of this annual
report respectively.
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032 =mmiEiRARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Certain principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group may

affect its business, operating results and financial conditions,

including:

(i)

(i)

OCCURRENCE OF NATURAL DISASTERS,
ACTS OR THREATS OF TERRORISM, WARS,
TRAVEL RELATED ACCIDENTS, OUTBREAK
OF CONTAGIOUS DISEASES OR OTHER
CATASTROPHIC EVENTS

The demand for the Group’s travel related products, services
and hotel accommodations may be materially and adversely
affected by natural disasters, acts or threats of terrorism,
wars, travel related accidents, outbreak of contagious
diseases (including COVID-19) or other catastrophic events.
Such events may significantly and adversely affect customer
sentiments and demand for travel related products, services
and hotel accommodations to the affected destinations or
for travel activities in general. The occurrence and timing of
such events cannot be predicted or controlled by the Group
and may have significant and adverse impact on its assets,
business operations and operating results, particularly if the
Group is, or is perceived to be, not reacting appropriately
in the wake of any such event. Further description of the
impact of the COVID-19 on the Group’s operations are set
out in note 2(b) and note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements and the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to
10 and the “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
12 to 26 of this annual report respectively.

CHANGE IN ECONOMIC CONDITIONS OF MAJOR
MARKETS

The Group’s business is based in Hong Kong and Macau
and its revenue is mainly derived from the sale of travel
related products and services in Hong Kong and Macau. Any
economic downturn or recession in Hong Kong or Macau
could lead to decline in demand for the Group’s products or
services and its overall business and operating results may
be materially and adversely affected.
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(i) CHANGE IN ECONOMIC, SOCIAL OR POLITICAL
CONDITIONS AND LAWS AND REGULATIONS
RELATED TO JAFAN

The business and operating results of the Group might be
adversely affected if there is any material adverse change in
the economic, social or political situations relating to Japan,
including its foreign relationship with other Asian countries,
or laws and regulations, including building regulations and
health and safety regulations or if there are any serious
natural disasters or disastrous accidents occurring in Japan,
which may adversely impact customer demand for travel
related products and services of the Group related to Japan
and as well as the hotel accommodations in Japan.

(iv) HIGHLY COMPETITIVE HOSPITALITY INDUSTRY IN
JAPAN

Osaka Hinode Hotel and Okinawa Hinode Resort &
Hot Spring Hotel, which are located in Osaka and
Okinawa respectively, might face competition from other
accommodation options in Japan currently existing or
which may come into operation in the future. The success
of the Group’s hotels operation will depend on its ability
to compete in aspects such as room rates, quality of
accommodation, service level and convenience of location.

Further description of possible capital risks and financial risks
facing by the Group are set out in note 38 and note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements and the sub-section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Foreign Currency
Exchange Risk and Treasury Policies” on page 24 of this annual
report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the “Five Year
Financial Summary” on pages 27 to 29 and the sub-section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review”
on pages 16 to 25 of this annual report respectively. Particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the Year, if any, can also be found in the above sections
of this annual report and notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

20204 % Annual Report 2020 033



&3583R% GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEGRE
Report of the Directors

IRRRIET AR RIRG

AEBRNARBEZDFEMFHER L EBHS
THRURARERBEF ZHHIREHRZEE -
FERMKMNE BERBRSHERTEETAS
EUstE MBRERVEEHRERRAERNT
o xERERAOWMRIFENRIME - AEBTFEMRA
ERDITMERE HER) BITERERE LI K&
BEMENRMSAR UEDTRER NER TIFSFR
HEEN - REFEE EFEILEEEEERBEE
ROTEETHAEREEEREEZABEIRERR
Ple KEBBMAOKER FURHHERE - HEREBE
BER ARNECEELR IRART - BEE-FAR
HEBSEMERNEURMRAIEEREE-

RIB-HHERERKRS

RAFRIE MRS TAERNIRE LB RES
BRERRHERFRE=EEAQM-

034 =m=miEBRARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and has implemented certain policies to minimise
the impact on the environment caused by its business activities.
The Group has implemented internal recycling program on a
continuous basis for consumables such as toner, cartridges and
paper to minimise the operation impact on the environment and
natural resources. Recycled papers have also been used as
printing materials. The Group also implemented energy saving
practices in offices and branch premises, where applicable. To the
extent practicable, the Group completed the upgrade of electricity
systems to achieve the energy saving to workplace. The Board is
of the opinion that the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in all
material respects during the Year. The Group endeavours to refine
the approach to addressing its environmental, social and ethical
responsibilities along with improving its corporate governance and
should generate greater value for all of its stakeholders including
its shareholders, employees, customers, and suppliers as well as
the communities.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the
Company prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing
Rules will be published within three months after the publication of
this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Group provides a
fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity to its staff, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings and
development resources to the employees so that they can keep
abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry
and, at the same time, improve their performance and self
fulfillment in their positions.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide products and services
which satisfy the needs and requirements of the customers.
The Group enhances its customer relationship by continuous
interaction with customers to gain insight on the changing market
demand for different products and services so that the Group can
respond proactively. The Group has also established procedures
in handling customers’ feedbacks and complaints to ensure
customers’ opinions are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner.

The Group maintains sound business relationship with its
suppliers and service providers, including land, airlines and
hotel operators, globally. In order to have a better and close
monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the Group’s management
conducts performance review regularly targeting the Group’s major
suppliers and service providers, and communicates with them for
rectification and improvements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years are set out on pages
27 to 29 of this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

LIST OF PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2020, details of the properties owned by the
Group are as follows:

R4 2 BaEE
Y ES3i BmE af
L% & EZEDTE AHREER (EHK) (EAHK) RERE
Approximate Approximate
Percentage Aggregate Gross Floor
Interest in Available Site Area Area Existing
Name Location the Property Rooms (sg.m.) (sq.m.) Use
RIREOFBIE BAKRA KRS 100% 354 1,602.07 9,883.83 IS
REEEZERA—TH
2% 13K2%33
Osaka Hinode Hotel 2-13 and 2-33, Hotel
Ebisunishi, 1-Chome, Naniwa-Ku,
Osaka-Shi, Osaka-Fu, Japan
BOTFEARR BAKRRA KRS 100% 16 266.01 1,008.33 RRA
RREEZEEA—TE
2E31 K2ES32
Hinode Deep-water Hot Spring 2-31 and 2-32, Hot spring bath
Ebisunishi, 1-Chome, Naniwa-Ku,
Osaka-Shi, Osaka-Fu, Japan
HEBEOF RRERAER BAHREHET 100% 201 2,327.89 6,296.21 S
WE=TH

Okinawa Hinode Resort &
Hot Spring Hotel

348-1+346 35052353-6
348-1, 346, 350 and 353-6,

3-Chome, Makishi,

Naha City, Okinawa, Japan

Hotel

036 =mmuERARAR
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FEADIB0% °

FEBMTEHEHNAFEMGHRBETOLLNT :

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the share capital of the Company
during the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to approximately HK$20,000 (2019: HK$154,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers represent less than 30% of the
Group’s total turnover.

The percentages of purchases for the Year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

HARER
HAIRREER

WA B DL
Approximate
Percentage of
the Group’s Total

Purchases
BRAMER The largest supplier 12.3%
AARBEEEEHE Five largest suppliers in aggregate 33.4%

MEZHAA MEEZ HEEMBEANTAEES
PRRMBEA AR EHITRESNULZRER  RAFE
BEAEEREAAIART P NHEEEHOERED

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any interest during the Year in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric
Ms. Wong Lai Ming

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years. Any Directors
to retire shall be those who have been the longest in office since
their last re-election or appointment but as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)
be determined by lot. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Accordingly, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen
and Ms. Wong Lai Ming will retire from office and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the 2021 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group as at the date of this report are set out on pages 73 to
76 of this annual report.



EEGRE
Report of the Directors

EEFFRER

REAFERRBEARSARR L ARADRERE
ROAFH BEULATES (BREHNES) A%m
BY S B 1R S - EFF M EMR XN AR ERMA > UK
REEERPIEHEZSERIRENEREFNERE
BEEERMAMKENESE RSRBESERET
BRTRTE

BEESY

REFER BB INFEAREQT2EMAHEM
EARBOEFZEEBRTHEENGYN (BRSO
ZEREFRIN ©

S EE AR

PRI S TREIR ST 8 —ERFR B AV IB AR 5t 85N > &
NEARFENLET RN AFERFERERIA
SEERARBETROZREBHBH R HHEEEL
BIZRS] U BB A SEERN AR R EHTRMN ZREH

1Rk

ERZIRBEL

BEERN2021FRRBFAG LR EERETNEFA
KRBT UE—FALTRB AR ERTEE CEAER
EERIN BIIER TR IERRFB G/

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant
statutes for the benefit of the Directors (including former Directors)
of the Company. The permitted indemnity provisions are provided
for in the Articles of Association and in the directors and officers
liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential
liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be
brought against such Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts or appointment
letters, concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out under the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company that will or may
result in the Company issuing Shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares during the Year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
2021 AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code were as follows:

INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION OF THE COMFANY

FAEMEE (GEBEEED
EmtE EERD B BOBE DL

Total Number of
Shares Held in
the Associated

Approximate %

of Interest in
the Associated
Nature of Interest

Corporation Corporation

"yxEEd (TREF)) 1R E 12
(EERNTES)

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (“Mr. Yuen”) Evergloss
(Chairman & Executive Director)

WmE2LE (HkE)) 1R SR
#ITES)

Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen (“Mr. Huen”)  Evergloss
(Executive Director)

Zpled (T25%54%]) 1R E 18
FITESR)

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu (“Mr. Leung”)  Evergloss
(Executive Director)

FTESLT (FEL+)) 1R E 12
FITES)

Ms. Lee Po Fun (“Ms. Lee”) Evergloss

(Executive Director)

IBEFE BRI A (BfaE7) 8,850 (L) 26.70
Founder of a discretionary

trust (Note 1)
NRIEGEE B 23.08
(Hiz£2)

Interest of a controlled

7,650 (L)

corporation (Note 2)

E@mEREA 3,300 (L) 9.95

Beneficial owner

a2z
Py

BEsEz=m
(Bt5#1%3)
Beneficiary of a trust &

ME@BER A 9,150 (L) 27.60

beneficial owner
(Notes 1 & 3)
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Notes:

The 8,850 shares in Evergloss were held by Likang, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Fiducia Suisse SA which is the trustee of The
Yuen Family 2014 Trust, which is a discretionary trust set up by
Mr. Yuen whose discretionary objects are Ms. Lee and Ms. Yuen
Ho Yee, wife and daughter of Mr. Yuen respectively and both an
associate of Mr. Yuen.

The 7,650 shares in Evergloss were held by Kwok Lai, which is
directly wholly-owned by Mr. Huen.

Out of the 9,150 shares in Evergloss, 8,850 shares were held by
Likang, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fiducia Suisse SA which is
the trustee of The Yuen Family 2014 Trust. Ms. Lee is one of the
beneficiaries of the trust. The remaining 300 shares in Evergloss
were held by Ms. Lee as the beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company, or any of its associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

20204E% Annual Report 2020 041



&3583R% GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEGRE
Report of the Directors

FERRNRDRABRERKRG ZEERNE

R2020F12A31BH  BESEHN AR RSITHAEM
o RARRBIRMNERRMD T ES BRIEES K
S BRAIEXVEFE2 537 IR X BRI A B K B P
WE > NIREES RPBEEAFE386E L RN A AT
BREFEZEEMBABHNE RN ZEZAXBENRE
(BRESHAARAFARSITERAEIN) AT :

RERER, EmEE

Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to any Director or
chief executive of the Company, the following shareholders (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company:

HERITRE
BB SLE

Approximate %

FAERMDEH

Total Number of of the Issued

1R i E 12 Em#EAA

Evergloss Beneficial owner

ZEEAN (Hi5t2)
Trustee (Note 2)

Fiducia Suisse SA

HILL David Henry Christopher

RREGEENED (1W:Z3)

Shares Held Share Capital
374,130,000 (L) 74.46
(Ht5£1) (Note 1)

374,130,000 (L) 74.46
374,130,000 (L) 74.46

Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 3)
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Notes:

1 As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the Directors and
as notified to the Company, Evergloss held 374,130,000 Shares.

2. 374,130,000 Shares were held by Evergloss. Evergloss was owned
as to approximately 26.70% by Likang and 26.24% by Yohki
Ryokoh Limited (“Yohki”). Both Likang and Yohki are wholly owned
by Fiducia Suisse SA, which is the trustee of two discretionary
family trusts, namely () The Yuen Family 2014 Trust, which is a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. Yuen whose discretionary objects
are Ms. Lee and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, wife and daughter of Mr. Yuen
respectively and both an associate of Mr. Yuen; (i) Happyyau
Family Trust, which is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Yau Shui
Fung whose discretionary objects are Ms. Li Siu King, wife and an
associate of Mr. Yau Shui Fung, and Tung Wah Group of Hospitals.

3. Fiducia Suisse SA was held by Mr. HILL David Henry Christopher
who has a deemed interest of 374,130,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, there was no
other substantial shareholders or persons (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) who had any interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the option as disclosed under the section headed
“Share Option Scheme” below, none of the Company, any of its
holding company, its subsidiaries and its fellow subsidiaries was
a party to any arrangements which would enable the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2020, the Directors were not aware of any
business or interest of the Directors and their respective close
associates that had competed or might compete with the business
of the Group and any other conflict of interests which any such
person had or might have with the Group.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Board on the basis of their performance, qualifications,
competence and job nature. The remuneration of the Directors is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and is decided
by the Board, having regard to the financial results of the Group,
individual performance and comparing with market conditions. The
Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive
arrangement for eligible employees.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the retirement scheme of the Group are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital is
held by the public under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual written confirmation of
independence pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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GENERAL DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE
13.18 AND 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report, the
Group entered the following facility letters containing covenants

relating to specific performance obligations on the controlling

shareholder of the Company which were subject to announcement

disclosure under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules and requirements

of disclosure in this annual report under Rule 13.21 of the Listing

Rules, the details of which are set out below:

(0

On 17 January 2020, EGL Tours as borrower, the
Company, Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee,
each as guarantor or security provider, accepted the
renewed and revised offer from a bank in respect of
the general banking facilities previously granted to, and
accepted by, EGL Tours in May 2018. Under the renewed
facility letter, the general banking facilities (including
a revolving loan facilities (the “2020 Revolving Loan
Facilities”) and corporate credit card(s) (the “CCD”)) in the
aggregate amount of HK$50,600,000 (collectively, the
“2020 Facilities”) were renewed. The 2020 Revolving Loan
Facilities have no fixed term and are subject to periodic
review of the bank and the CCD is subject to the terms and
conditions issued by the bank’s card centre to EGL Tours.

Under the renewed facility letter for the 2020 Facilities,
each of EGL Tours, the Company, Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen,
Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee has undertaken to the bank, among
others, the following:

(@) EGL Tours shall ensure that Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen,
Mr. Leung or Ms. Lee any one shall remain chairman
or director(s) of EGL Tours and the Company and
maintain control over the management and business
of the Group;

(b) EGL Tours shall ensure that Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen,
Mr. Leung or Ms. Lee, shall at all times collectively
maintain, directly or indirectly, not less than 45%
beneficial shareholding in the Group; and

20204E%% Annual Report 2020 045
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(it

(c) the major operating account to be maintained in
the bank with new average bank balance of the
companies which includes EGL Tours, Great Port
and the Company of not less than HK$50,000,000.

The bank shall have right to suspend, withdraw or make
demand in respect of the whole or any part of the 1st
Facilities made available to EGL Tours at any time or
determine whether or not to permit drawings in relation to
the 2020 Facilities.

On 19 February 2021, EGL Tours (as borrower) accepted
the further renewed and revised offer from the bank
in respect of the general banking facilities previously
granted to, and accepted by, EGL Tours in October
2018. Under the renewed facility letter (the “2021 Facility
Letter”), the general banking facilities (being an invoice
financing loan, bank guarantee and a revolving loan of
up to HK$45,000,000 and corporate credit card of up to
HK$1,500,000) in the aggregate amount of HK$46,500,000
(collectively, the “2021 Facilities”) were renewed. The 2021
Facility Letter was countersigned by the Company as a
guarantor or security provider.

Under the 2021 Facility Letter, EGL Tours has undertaken
to the bank, among others, the following:

(@) any one of Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and
Ms. Lee shall remain chairman or directors of EGL
Tours and maintain control over the management
and business of the group;

(b) Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee shall at
all times collectively maintain, directly or indirectly,
not less than 45% beneficial shareholding of EGL
Tours; and

(c) Evergloss shall at all times maintain, directly or
indirectly, not less than 51% beneficial shareholding
in the Company.

Pursuant to the 2021 Facility Letter, the bank has the
overriding right at any time to require EGL Tours to
immediately make payment and/or cash collateralisation of
all or any sums actually or contingently owing to the bank
under the 2021 Facilities.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders on 13 November
2014 which shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the date of listing of the Shares (i.e. 28 November 2014),
subject to early termination by the Company in a general meeting
or by the Board. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to provide incentives to Eligible Person (as defined below) and
is established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
the Eligible Person have had or may have made to the Group.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may offer to grant
an option to any employee, or any secondee, consultant, agent,
representative, adviser, customer, contractor of the Group or any
affiliates; or any business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture partner,
supplier of goods or services to the Group or any affiliates or any
employee thereof (“Eligible Person”).

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time. The maximum number of shares available for
issue under options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme or other share option scheme adopted by the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
immediately following completion of the IPO (but taking no account
of any shares which may be allotted or issued pursuant to the
exercise of the over-allotment option (as defined in the prospectus
of the Company dated 18 November 2014)), being 50,000,000
shares. The total number of shares issued and which may fall to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme to each Eligible Person in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue as
at the date of grant unless approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting.
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The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be determined
by the Board provided that it shall not be less than the highest
of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must
be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the
nominal value of a share.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option
is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of 10 years from that date. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted.

No option was granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme as at 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020. No share
option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
Year under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 50,000,000 shares
representing approximately 9.95% of the issued share capital of
the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Details of the connected transactions entered into by, and/or
subsisted between, the Group and the connected persons of the
Company during the Year and which are not exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules are set out below:

(1) 20205 E R (1) 2020 Tenancy Agreements
SR ARE B SR EITET L H AR A20179108 Given that the leasing to the Group (as tenant) by Great Port
SOBMNMERHZH > NAEMAKRET FA%EF) (as landlord) for the occupation or use of certain premises,
AFAER (EAEBAN) UMEARERBETH car parking spaces and advertising area under the lease
iy EEANRESE) BEFR2019F12831HE M agreements all dated 30 October 2017 entered into between
AEEHKNETHR2019FE11B8HET I M7 HE the Group and Great Port, expired on 31 December 2019,
(Rl 2020 HERZ) UEEBEFHAE & the Group entered into the following agreements (collectively,
B HAPR 20201 51 H#EE 202054128310 Ik - the “2020 Tenancy Agreements”) with Great Port on
8 November 2019 to renew the former tenancies, each with
a term commencing from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020:
BHERERR
1AE2020F R E HERTAR /S (FAHR) B RB&
Approximate
Parties to the relevant Gross Floor Area
2020 Tenancy Agreements Premises (sq.ft) Monthly Rental Use
R% EE AHEA
No. Landlord Tenant
1. AET RRBRKTH EENEREESSRRREREFI0EARCE 12182 45,816 7530008  ME FEARBEESRAR
151828 161828 21815 1820 RFEMRIERE (%
FEAREFHE)
Great Port EGL Tours Units A and C on 10/F, the whole of 12/F, (excluding HK$753,000 Head office, car park spaces and
the whole of 15/F, the whole of 16/F, car parking spaces for rental of signage areas for
Car Parking Spaces Nos. P15, P18 to P23 and signage areas) advertising
on 2/F and Signage Areas, EGL Tower,
No.83 Hung To Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
2. AET BRBRKTH EENEBEESS R REER0EBE 2,300 36,0008  H4H
Great Port EGL Tours Unit B on 10/F, EGL Tower, No.83 Hung To Road, Kowloon, HK$36,000 Head office
Hong Kong
3. REf BRI BENRARERLS-5IRE T AESE 234 5R6F 6,366 13400080 FEBRATHEE
Great Port EGL Tours Units Nos.1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 on 5/F, Chevalier House, HK$134,000 Tea party room and branch office
Nos.45-51 Chatham Road South, Kowloon, Hong Kong
4. AET BRBIRTHE ORF) BPINHI A S B2-6B3 R E A K H730-80457108 4,460 66,000%F i  EFIBERREEEEDY
BRAR MRNZE
Great Port EGL Tours (Macau) Units M and N on 10/F, MOPG66,000 Macau office and call centre
Company Limited Nos.730-804 Avenida da Praia Grande,
Nos.2-6B Avenida de D Joao IV, Macau
. AET BRBIRTHE ORF) BPINHID A S HB2-6B3 A FHR730-80455 1 T 1,159 740008 RMATHER
BRRE B #
Great Port EGL Tours (Macau) Shop B, G/F, Nos.730-804 Avenida da Praia Grande, MOP74,000 Macau branch office
Company Limited Nos.2-6B Avenida de D Joao IV, Macau
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Great Port is a majority-controlled company owned by
Mr. Yuen as to approximately 26.70%, Mr. Huen as to
approximately 23.08%, Mr. Leung as to approximately
9.95% and Ms. Lee as to approximately 0.90%, all being
the Executive Directors. The Executive Directors together
controlled approximately 60.63% voting power of Great Port,
and therefore Great Port is an associate of the Executive
Directors and thus a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the 2020 Tenancy Agreements
constituted connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements under the Listing
Rules but exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirements. Details of the 2020 Tenancy
Agreements and the transactions contemplated thereunder
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated
8 November 2019.

2021 Tenancy Agreements

Given each of the 2020 Tenancy Agreements expired on
31 December 2020, on 23 December 2020, the Group
entered into the following six tenancy agreements (collectively,
the “2021 Tenancy Agreements”) with Great Port to renew the
rental of certain premises of the 2020 Tenancy Agreements
for the respective period as set out below:
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A FHRIE200141/51 HEEZE20214612531 H 1F (A)  Tenancy agreements for a term commencing from
(BIFEEMmA) ZHEWZ 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 (both days
inclusive)
BaLeRER
1HBI2021 FR E RIS IS (F5R) B E&
Approximate
Parties to the relevant Gross Floor Area
2021 Tenancy Agreements Premises (sq.ft.) Monthly Rental ~ Use
& EE R
No.  Landlord Tenant
1. KEf FRBMRTH EENEBEESRRRERAI0BARCE 45,816 5630008  BF FEALBERS
121E2E 15182 161228 21815 (FOEREMR REE
BEBREBAREHE BHE)
Great Port EGL Tours Units A and C on 10/F, the whole of 12/F, (excluding car HK$563,000  Head office, car park
the whole of 15/F, the whole of 16/F, parking spaces and for rental
Car Parking Spaces Nos. P15, P18 to P23 on spaces and of signage areas for
2/F and Signage Areas, EGL Tower, signage areas) advertising

No.83 Hung To Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong

2. KEf FRBMRTH BENB BB R AR ER10BE 2,300 2700087 4%
Great Port EGL Tours Unit B on 10/F, EGL Tower, No.83 Hung To Road, HK$27,000  Head office
Kowloon, Hong Kong
3. RET R R{TH BENRRAEH45-51% 5,531 87,0008  ATHERER/
HTAES1E1:223 4 556% ASYEE
Great Port EGL Tours Unit Nos.1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 on 5/F, Chevalier House, HK$87,000  Branch office and/or
Nos.45-51 Chatham Road South, Kowloon, Hong multi-function room
Kong
4, RET R R{TH BENERREELS-51FE T RE5EAE 835 130008  AITRER
Great Port EGL Tours Unit No.6A on 5/F, Chevalier House, Nos.45-51 HK$13,000  Branch office
Chatham Road South, Kowloon, Hong Kong
5. RET RRBRTH (RF)  RPIAHLE A ER2-68% 3,460 388008MT  AMMEEREEHE
BRAFE BEARER730-80457101EME B
Great Port EGL Tours (Macau) Unit M, 10/F, Nos.730-804 Avenida da Praia Grande, MOP38,800  Macau office and call
Company Limited Nos.2-6B Avenida de D Joao IV, Macau centre

20204% Annual Report 2020 051
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(B) Tenancy agreement for a terrm commencing from
1 January 2021 to 31 January 2021 (both days

inclusive)
BHBRERR
TR0 FREHENTAR mE (FAR) BH Bz
Approximate
Parties to the relevant Gross Floor Area
2021 Tenancy Agreements Premises (sq.ft.) Monthly Rental ~ Use
ELA £ il
No.  Landlord Tenant
6. KEfT RREMRTH (R RMABEOEAFRE2-6B% 1,159 550002Ft  EMATHER
BRAR R A B I730-804383 TBE
Great Port EGL Tours (Macau) Shop B, G/F, Nos.730-804 Avenida da Praia MOP55,000  Macau branch office

Company Limited

AREBETAFKHWTEERAE - BRE R
Y RELZLTEZHIERENRE SADBEE
#926.70% ~ 4923.08% ~ #99.95% 52 #90.90%HY Hx
o HITE B HBIES KEITA60.63%1%
> R Rk EmRA j:*ﬁ?‘%%ﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁ
BMBA> EMAERABDNBAEALT FIL > R
FHIRBIE14AT > 2021 F R SR ZE T RET
ZRAEMARNBNEEER S WEET FTHiE
BB T ZERBRASHE HERRETEILR
EHERIRE - BRE2021F R E B R HIE T 5
ETZRZHBEHNARAB B IA2020F128
RIS A/N=

052 =H=mERARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Grande, Nos.2-6B Avenida de D Joao IV, Macau

Great Port is a majority-controlled company owned by
Mr. Yuen as to approximately 26.70%, Mr. Huen as to
approximately 23.08%, Mr. Leung as to approximately
9.95% and Ms. Lee as to approximately 0.90%, all being
the Executive Directors. The Executive Directors together
controlled approximately 60.63% voting power of Great Port,
and therefore Great Port is an associate of the Executive
Directors and thus a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the 2021 Tenancy Agreements
constituted connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements under the Listing
Rules but exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirements. Details of the 2021 Tenancy
Agreements and the transactions contemplated thereunder
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 23
December 2020.
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Save as disclosed above, no other related party transactions
conducted in the Year as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute a connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction which is required to be disclosed
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above,
no transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding
company or any of their respective subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or an entity connected with the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, (i) no contract of significance was
entered into by, and/or subsisted between, the Company or
any of its subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (i) there is no contract
of significance in relation to the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirm that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Details of the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 55 to 72 of this annual
report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Details of significant event of the Group after the reporting date are
set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
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% EhEm AUDITOR

AREEZESUBRBRRECASEIIEESEEEMER  The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
FFERABSSEZ  ZZEMERME IREEMRES audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer
MBI OO1ERERAFEADT FHIBEZREZER LIERE  themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
EEBIUGEESEHMERMERAGS AL ATZE  of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at

Bifi o the 2021 AGM.

RREET On behalf of the Board
FTEENITEE Yuen Man Ying

RXH Chairman and Executive Director
&% 2021FE3H26H Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report
of the Company for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed in
achieving a high standard of corporate governance and leading
the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate image
with effective corporate governance procedures.

During the Year, the Board is of opinion that the Company has
applied the principles and complied with all the applicable code
provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AND DELEGATION BY THE
BOARD

The Board provides leadership, guidance and strategic decisions
to the Group’s activities and oversees its financial performances.
The Board has delegated its powers to the management for the
Group’s daily management and operations.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

According to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. During the Year,
the role of the Chairman is performed by Mr. Yuen Man Ying while
the office of the chief executive officer of the Company is vacated.
The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of the Group’s
management from time to time and should candidate with suitable
knowledge, skills and experience be identified, the Company will
make appointment to fill the post as appropriate.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises four Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. At least
one of the Independent Non-executive Directors possesses the
appropriate professional accounting qualifications and financial
management expertise, which complies with the requirements of
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with Rules 3.10
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. During the Year, the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors represents more than one-
third of the Board. As such, there exists a strong independent
element in the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement. The Board comprises the following Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric
Ms. Wong Lai Ming

Mr. Yuen Man Ying, the Chairman and Executive Director, is
the spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun, an Executive Director. All of the
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok
Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun, are interested
in the Company’s shares through their interest in Evergloss, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. All of the Executive
Directors have interests in the shares of Great Port, which has
certain transactions with the Group which constituted connected
transactions. Please refer to the “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 73 to 76, “Report of the
Directors — Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” on pages 40 to 41 and
“Report of the Directors — Connected Transactions and Directors’
Interests in Contracts” on pages 49 to 53 of this annual report for
more details. Save as disclosed above, the Directors have no other
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships
with one another.
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INDEPENDENCE OF
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual written confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to the relevant guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. During the Year, each of the
Directors (namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen,
Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun, Mr. Chan Kim Fai,
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming) has participated
in appropriate continuous professional development activities by
ways of attending seminars, reading training materials and updates
relevant to (i) the Group’s businesses; (i) regulatory updates; (iii)
the Listing Rules; and (iv) Environmental, Social & Governance
(“ESG”) Practices.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has renewed his/her service
agreement with the Company on 26 November 2020 for a term
of three years commencing from 28 November 2020. Each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has renewed his/her letter
of appointment on 26 November 2020 for a term of three years
commencing from 28 November 2020.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of the Directors are governed by the Articles of
Association. The Articles of Association provides that any director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company (“AGM”) and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at each AGM, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at least once every
3 years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Any
Director who has not been subject to retirement by rotation in
the three years preceding an AGM shall retire by rotation at such
meeting. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
and so that as between persons who became or were last re-
elected Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

Accordingly, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen and
Ms. Wong Lai Ming shall retire at the 2021 AGM. All of the retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
same meeting.

BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the Board
should meet regularly and board meetings should be held at least
four times a year.
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If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
Director shall abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions and
he/she shall not be counted as a quorum in the Board meeting
discussing the matter concerned.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS

Set out below are details of the attendance record of each Director
at the Board meetings, committee meetings and general meeting
of the Company held during the Year:

HE/ BIEERY
Attendance/Number of Meetings Held
EZ RRER 74 H
RRBELS g ZERER ZE883 Z5983 ZEQER
Risk
Annual Audit  Management Nomination ~ Remuneration
General Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting
HITEZE Executive Directors

RNEKE Mr. Yuen Man Ying 11 5/6 - - 11 il
BEZEE Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen 1/ 5/6 - - - -
2RslRE Mr. Leung Shing Chiu 1/1 5/6 - 2/2 - -
FERFUL Ms. Lee Po Fun 11 5/6 - - il il

BUHRITEE Independient Non-executive Directors
ERh Mr. Chan Kim Fai 11 6/6 33 2/2 17 il
Gliah e Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric 1/ 6/6 3/3 2/2 11 1/1
BEHELT Ms. Wong Lai Ming 11 6/6 3/3 2/2 11 1/1
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company is an important forum in which the
management of the Company can engage with the Shareholders.
The most recent AGM of the Company was held on 29 May 2020
(2020 AGM”).

At the 2020 AGM, all Directors in office on the meeting date,
including the Chairman of the Board and all the chairmen and
members of the Board Committees, attended the meeting along
with senior management and the external auditor. At the 2020
AGM, separate resolutions were proposed for each issue and
were voted on by poll. The procedures for conducting a poll were
explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken.

The voting results are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Risk
Management Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. All the Board Committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference which are available to Shareholders on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board Committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 13 November 2014
with specific written terms of reference in accordance with
the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Audit Committee
comprises a total of three members, all being Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim Fai (Chairman), Mr. Tang
Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, (i) reviewing financial information of the Group; (i)
monitoring of the relationship between the Group and its external
auditor; (i) overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems; and (iv) developing
and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance
with legal and regulatory requirements and requirements under the
Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year. During
the Year, the Audit Committee (i) reviewed the Group’s audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
the unaudited financial statements for the six months ended
30 June 2020 respectively; (ii) reviewed the continuing connected
transactions that existed during the year ended 31 December
2019;
Committee on their statutory audit of financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2019 and their independent review of
the interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2020; (iv) reviewed the audit plan of the external auditor for the
year ended 31 December 2020; (v) reviewed the Group’s financial
reporting system and internal control system; and (vi) made
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of external
auditor and approval of the engagement letter of the external
auditor.

(iii) reviewed the external auditor’s reports to the Audit
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Audit Committee has been appointed by the Board to perform
the corporate governance function. The responsibilities of the
Audit Committee on corporate governance function are set out in
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. During the Year, the
Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management and
the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on
13 November 2014 with specific written terms of reference. The
Risk Management Committee comprises a total of four members,
being one Executive Director, namely Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim
Fai (Chairman), Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
include reviewing the Company’s enterprise risk management
framework, and the guidelines, policies and procedures for risk
assessment and risk management and reviewing the effectiveness
of the risk management function.

The Risk Management Committee held two meetings during the
Year. During the Year, the Risk Management Committee reviewed
the internal control of the Group, the Group’s high-level related
risks and key emerging risks and the controls in place to mitigate
such risks and the Group’s surplus cash management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 13 November
2014 with specific written terms of reference in accordance with
the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
comprises a total of five members, being two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman) and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Kim Fai, Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board, making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year.
During the Year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity) of the Board, assessed the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors and recommended to the
Board on the re-election of all retiring Directors at the 2020 AGM.

As the nomination policy of the Company, the Nomination
Committee will (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of
the Board at least annually based on objective criteria with
due regard to the benefits of diversity as set out in the Board’s
diversity policy and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy; (b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; and (c)
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the managing director (if applicable).
Please refer to the sub-section headed “Board Diversity Policy” of
this report for details of the Board’s policy on board diversity.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 13 November
2014 with specific written terms of reference in accordance
with the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee comprises a total of five members, being two Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim
Fai, Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric (Chairman) and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of alll
the Directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a set of formal and transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy; (i) reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
all the Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year.
During the Year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policy of the Group, reviewed the remuneration
package of the individual Executive Directors and senior
management as well as reviewed the remuneration of Independent
Non-executive Directors for submission to the Board for approval.

REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the senior management of the Company
then in office by band for the Year are as follows:

ANE

Number of

e EE Remuneration band individuals
221,000,000 75 Nil to HK$1,000,000 1
1,000,00178 75 22,000,00078 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has established a board diversity policy. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. Diversity of Board
members can be achieved through consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All the Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Each of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun has
provided annual confirmations in respect of the compliance with
non-competition undertakings (the “Undertakings”) given by them
in favour of the Company pursuant to a deed of non-competition
undertakings dated 13 November 2014. The Independent Non-
executive Directors have also reviewed the compliance by each
of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun with the
Undertakings during the Year. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there
is no breach by any of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man
Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee
Po Fun of the Undertakings given by them.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the remunerations paid or payable to the external
auditor in respect of its audit services and non-audit services
provided to the Group were approximately HK$1.6 million and
approximately HK$0.5 million, respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the Year.
The Directors were aware of the material uncertainty related to
going concern of the Company.

As disclosed in note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
the COVID-19 pandemic began in early 2020 still has a profound
negative impact on the Group’s financial performance and financial
position for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the first
quarter of 2021, in particular for the Group’s business in Japan
given the Japanese government has recently announced that the
Tokyo Olympic and Paralympic Games will take place without any
overseas spectators.

The Group incurred a loss of approximately HK$109,674,000
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and as of that date, its
current liabilities exceed its current assets by approximately
HK$116,296,000. These conditions indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore, it
may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in
the normal course of business.

In the opinion of the Board, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future,
based on the cash flow projections of the Group covering a period
up to 30 June 2022 (the “Forecasted Period”) after taking into the
following considerations:
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(©)

the management of the Group has been endeavoring
to improve the Group’s operating cash flows through
implementing various cost control measures, including
restructuring of workforce implementing salary reduction
for employees and the directors of the Company, staff
layoff, closures of under-performed branches, seeking rent
concession from landlords on the lease of certain branches;

Great Port, a related company, agreed to arrange additional
credit facilities totalling HK$140.0 million upon request from
the Group in the Forecasted Period; and

the management of the Group keeps endeavoring to seek
additional sources of finance.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about

their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set

out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 77 to 88 of this

annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board recognises that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems play a key role in the identification,
evaluation and management of risks faced by the Group, the
assurance of continued compliance with laws and regulations
by the Group, and the provision of reasonable assurance on
the Group against material misstatement, error, loss or fraud.
The Board appreciates that the Group is exposed to risks in
achieving its business objectives and strives to maintain such
risks at acceptable level through the design, implementation
and monitoring of effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are established
within the Company and its subsidiaries for facilitating effective
and efficient operations, for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use, for maintaining proper accounting records, for
ensuring the reliability of financial reporting and information, and
for ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
These systems are designed to meet the Group’s particular
needs and to minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed,
and are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks
to achieve business objectives and by their nature, can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatements or losses.
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The key elements of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems include the establishment of a risk register to
keep track, record and report identified risks, the assessment and
evaluation of risks, the development and continuous updating of
responsive procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control
procedures to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is also adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that
affect the achievements of its objectives. A risk matrix is adopted
to determine risk rating (L = low risk, M = medium risk, H = high
risk) after evaluation of the risk by the likelihood and the impact of
the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the level of managements,
attention and risk treatment effort required.

During the process of risk assessment, each risk owner is
required to capture and identify the key inherent risks that affect
the achievement of its objectives. Each inherent risk is evaluated
according to the risk matrix. After taking into consideration the
risk response, such as control measures in place to mitigate the
risk, the residual risk of each inherent risk is evaluated again. The
risk register with the risk responses and residual risks is reported
to the Risk Management Committee. The Risk Management
Committee evaluates the effectiveness of the systems and reports
to the Board. The highest category of residual risks is subject to
the Board’s oversight.

During the Year, the Board, through the Risk Management
Committee, reviewed the continued effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems covering all
material aspect of controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The review covered the foreign exchange risk
management and the Group’s surplus cash management.
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During the Year, the Company also engaged an independent
professional consultant to conduct an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The review covered the following items within the Group:

- financial reporting

- cash and treasury management
- work from home arrangement
- human resources and payroll

Relevant applicable recommendations made by the consultant
during the Year have already been implemented in stages by the
Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures
and practices.

As a result of the above review, the Board is satisfied that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
adequate and effective and have complied with the CG Code
provisions on internal control throughout the Year and the
Company has an internal audit function.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Group
conducts its affairs with close attention to the inside information
provisions under the SFO and the Listing Rules. The Directors and
senior management are responsible for determining whether any
particular information is inside information and overseeing and
coordinating disclosure of inside information of the Group. They
are also responsible for taking reasonable measures to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group from time to time and that
disclosures are made and/or announcements are published
on a timely basis in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations, and before such information is fully disclosed to the
public, they shall ensure the same is kept strictly confidential. The
Directors are also committed to ensure that information contained
in announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact,
or false or misleading through the omission of a material fact in
view of presenting information in a clear and balanced way.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board may propose or declare the payment of dividends
after taking into account, among other things, the results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition, operating and
capital requirements, the amount of distributable profits, reserves
available for distribution based on HKFRSs, the Articles of
Association, applicable laws and regulations (including the laws
of Cayman Islands) and other factors which the Directors deem
relevant.

The Company, subject to the factors and considerations above,
pay annual dividends of not less than 50% of the Group’s
consolidated profit attributable to the Shareholders. Any dividends
declared will be in Hong Kong dollars with respect to the Shares
on a per Share basis, and the Company will pay such dividends
in Hong Kong dollars. Other distributions, if any, will be paid to
the Shareholders by any means which the Directors consider
legal, fair and practicable. Any distributable profits that are not
distributed in any given year may be retained and be made
available for distribution in subsequent years. To the extent profits
are distributed as dividends, such portion of profits will not be
available for reinvestment in the Group’s operations.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The role of the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) is performed by Ms. Wong Cheuk Yee Kathy. The
Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and is
appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is responsible
for facilitating the Board’s processes and communications among
Board members, with Shareholders and with management.
The Company Secretary received at least 15 hours of relevant
professional training to update her skills and knowledge during the
Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communications between the Shareholders and the Board.
An AGM shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING (“EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, an EGM
shall be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong, which is presently situated
at 15/F, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such

requisition and signed by the requisitionist(s).

meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office
in Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
BY SHAREHOLDERS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles
of Association for putting forward a resolution at an EGM. The
requirements and procedures are set out above in the paragraph
headed “Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting”.
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HEEREXHNERES SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

NAREE BIESAATINABSEXHELE[AE  No amendment has been made to the Company’s constitutional

HIE documents during the Year.

RRESFE On behalf of the Board

FERANTESE Yuen Man Ying

RXH Chairman and Executive Director

7% 2021F3526H Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (“Mr. Yuen”), aged 69, is the founder of the
Group and has been the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company since 24 July 2014. Mr. Yuen initiated the creation
of the Group in 1987. He is also the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Board. Mr. Yuen serves as the managing director of EGL
Tours and as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Management Group
Company Limited (“EGL Management”), i-Evertravel Company
Limited (“i-Evertravel”), EGL Tours (Macau) Company Limited (“EGL
Macau”), EGL Tours (Japan) Company Limited (“EGL Japan”),
EGL Holdings (Nippon) Limited (“EGL Nippon”), EGL Holdings
(Asia) Limited (“EGL Asia”), EGL Investment Group Company
Limited (“EGL Investment”), EGL Trading Company Limited (“EGL
Trading”) and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a
director of Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He is responsible for important decision making of the
Group, overseeing both tours and hotel operation development,
promoting the Japanese market, planning for tour itinerary in
Japan, supervising and training tour escorts, and strategic
planning air charter of the Group. Mr. Yuen has over 36 years
of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism industry.
Mr. Yuen is the spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun who is an Executive
Director.

Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen (“Mr. Huen”), aged 63, has been an
Executive Director of the Company since 24 July 2014. Mr. Huen
joined the Group in 1987. Mr. Huen also serves as a director of
EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL Macau, EGL
Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment, EGL Trading
and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director of
Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Huen is the spokesman of the Group. He is responsible for
overseeing development of the Group, public relations, specialised
gourmet tourism, hotel operation and the subsidiaries of the
Company incorporated in Macau and Shenzhen respectively.
Mr.
experience in the tourism industry.

Huen has over 36 years of extensive knowledge and
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Mr. Leung Shing Chiu (“Mr. Leung”), aged 66, has been an
Executive Director of the Company since 24 July 2014. He is
a member of the Risk Management Committee of the Board.
Mr. Leung joined the Group in 1988. Mr. Leung serves as a
director of EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL Macau,
EGL Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment, EGL Trading
and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director of
Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of the Company. He
is responsible for managing the receiving services for outbound
tourism in Japan, frontline sales, customer services, accounting
and administration matters of the Group. Mr. Leung has over
36 years of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism
industry.

Ms. Lee Po Fun (“Mrs. Yuen”), aged 62, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 24 July 2014. She is a member of
both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Board. Mrs. Yuen joined the Group in 1987. She also serves
as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL
Macau, EGL Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment,
EGL Trading and other subsidiaries of the Company. She is also
a director of Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company. She is responsible for overseeing the information
technology department, human resources development and
the overall tour operations of the Group. Mrs. Yuen has over
36 years of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism
industry. Mrs. Yuen is the spouse of Mr. Yuen Man Ying who is the
Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai (“Mr. Chan”), aged 62, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
13 November 2014. He is also the chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Risk Management Committee of the
Board and a member of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Board. He is responsible for
overseeing the management of the Group independently. Mr. Chan
is currently an independent non-executive director of Magnificent
Hotel Investments Limited (stock code: 201), Shun Ho Property
Investments Limited (stock code: 219) and Shun Ho Holdings
Limited (stock code: 253) (all these companies are listed on the
Stock Exchange). Mr. Chan was an independent non-executive
director of China Fortune Investments (Holdings) Limited (stock
code: 8116), which is a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chan has also served as the sole proprietor of lvan Chan & Co,
CPA since 2001. Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and CPA Australia.
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Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric (“Mr. Tang”), aged 75, has been
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
13 November 2014. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Board and a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Risk Management Committee of
the Board. He is responsible for overseeing the management of
the Group independently. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of ASM Pacific Technology Limited (stock code:
522), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Tang was qualified as a Chartered Accountant in Canada
and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Ms. Wong Lai Ming (“Ms. Wong”), aged 62, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
13 November 2014. She is also a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Risk Management Committee of the Board. She is responsible
for overseeing the management of the Group independently.
Ms. Wong has over 23 years of experience in the legal industry.
Ms. Wong is a non-practicing solicitor in Hong Kong.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Mr. Chan Kim Fai was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of China Fortune Investments (Holding) Limited (stock
code: 8116), which is a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
with effect from 1 January 2021. He resigned as an independent
non-executive director of China Fortune Investments (Holdings)
Limited with effect from 1 April 2021.

Details of the change of emoluments of the Directors for the Year
are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon (“Mr. Cheang”), aged 56, has been
the financial controller of the Group since 1 April 2004. He is
responsible for supervision and management of the Group’s
financial issues. He joined the Group in June 2001 as a finance
manager before being promoted as the financial controller of EGL
Tours in April 2004. Mr. Cheang has over 32 years of extensive
accounting and financial experience, in which 10 years in another
public listed company (whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange), with latest position as accounting
manager. Mr. Cheang graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with a bachelor degree in social sciences in November 1988 and
later obtained a master degree of science in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2001. Mr. Cheang
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a Certified Finance and Treasury
Professional of the Finance and Treasury Association Limited.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Cheuk Yee Kathy (“Ms. Wong”), aged 59, has been
the company secretary of the Company since 28 August 2014.
She is responsible for the company secretarial matters of the
Group. Ms. Wong has been the company secretary of EGL Tours
since September 2006, being responsible for its general company
secretarial affairs. Ms. Wong has over 36 years of experience
in the accounting, audit and tax industry. Ms. Wong holds a
diploma in accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College
and a bachelor of law degree from Peking University. Ms. Wong
is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EGL
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 89 to 217, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a loss of
approximately HK$109,674,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020 and as of that date, its current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by approximately HK$116,296,000. These conditions,
together with the matters set forth in note 2(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

1. Revenue recognition and associated contract
liabilities
(refer to notes 4(j), 7 and 25 to the consolidated financial
Statements)
The Group’s travel and travel related services business
(“Travel Related Business”) includes the following revenue
streams with different revenue recognition basis.

The Group’s revenue from provision of package tours
is recognised over time in which the control of services
are transferred to the customers because the customers
simultaneously receive and consume benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as it performs.

Revenue from provision of free independent travellers (“FIT”)
products such as sales of air tickets, hotel accommodation
and hotel packages, etc, and provision of ancillary travel
related products and services, such as sales of admission
and transportation tickets, visa application and travel
insurance arrangements, etc, is recognised at a point in time
when the booking or arrangement services are performed
or tickets are delivered to and have been accepted by the
customers.

2020463 Annual Report 2020 079



\' B #54R 3 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Z BB IR S
Independent Auditor’'s Report

RASEEIZEIE KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

W fEEE R B RIS AIE 18 (#8)

W BEBEBNEHHNMEDSEETREM
EEEmkEE BSEBEESZEAGLURM
IRITE R EHB R BERBRER WPIRRA
IR YU an HB BA A B 7 T DUFEST o

W BEEEBNEHZHNMEDNARES -
RENEEERKEE: BEXEEESNERS
DUSH & B 17 E fa K 32 (H # B 1 iRk 2 18 B & &
(WARERAE - BIMERKITREZED HIK
P ER A B A T LURESE o

RER>» BEERKERBEFRERED
240,365,00078 70 ° jR2020E12831H > S&£EE
RIREREEEHESWNE P& (BIFERIIHIT
25) 4918,215,000B T EERBAG AR

A B R i 25 A8 R 25 755 B0 Ui o e SR B OE A% A R
BZER JERR@ED SEERRENIER
z— BEYPRBURHE TRXZNEFEERK
Mz RANEEBEERIAKEBNETFERE
FF > tEF 9] SR B0 5 52 A I aC B W i S0 W
RBRENEA R

080 =HmisEBRARAS EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

1.

Revenue recognition and associated contract
liabilities (Continued)

The Group acts as a principal and recognises revenue on
a gross basis in the provision of package tours and sales
of ancillary travel related products such as admission and
transportation tickets because the nature of the Group's
performance obligation is to provide the specified goods and
services itself.

The Group acts as an agent and recognises revenue on a net
basis in the sales of FIT products and provision of ancillary
travel related services such as car rental, visa application
and travel insurance arrangements because the nature of
the Group’s performance obligation is to arrange for those
specified goods and services to be provided by another
parties.

During the year, the Group recorded revenue derived
from the Travel Related Business of approximately
HK$240,365,000. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
customer deposits received (including unexpired discount
vouchers) from Travel Related Business of approximately
HK$18,215,000 which are recognised as contract liabilities.

We have identified revenue recognition for the Travel Related
Business as a key audit matter because revenue is one of
the key performance indicators of the Group and because it
involves highly customised information technology systems
to record the transactions and certain manual procedures to
determine the appropriate recognition point, all of which give
rise to an inherent risk that revenue could be recorded in the
incorrect period or could be subject to manipulation.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuea)

1. Revenue recognition and associated contract
liabilities (Continued)
In addition, inappropriate recognition of revenue could
result in misstatement of the contract liabilities received as
recorded at the reporting date.

Our Response

Our key audit procedures included:

= Performing review of overall information technology general
controls and application controls;

= Performing test of controls and substantive testing on
revenue cycle;

- Conducting analytical procedures on revenue;

- Scrutinising manual journals related to revenue to assess the
timing of revenues recorded; and

- Testing on sampling basis on the customer deposits
received as at the reporting date by tracing the receipts to
the supporting documents and reviewing the recognition of
revenue in the subsequent reporting period in accordance
with the respective recognition policies of the respective
services provided or products sold.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuead)

2.

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets

(refer to notes 4(n), 14, 15 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements)

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and prepayments amounted to HK$704,150,000,
HK$41,201,000 and HK$75,654,000 respectively.

These non-financial assets mainly comprised freehold land,
hotel buildings and leasehold improvements of hotels in
Japan, right-of-use assets of rented premises, right-of-use
assets of travel buses and prepayments to suppliers.

In light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group had cancelled
and/or postponed its travel related products and services to
those affected cities and countries since mid-March 2020,
and suspended its hotel operation in Osaka for the period
from mid-March to September and in December 2020. Such
arrangements have halted the operation of the Travel Related
Business and hotel business and adversely impacted the
Group’s financial results for the year ended 31 December
2020. These were identified as indicators of impairment to
the Group’s non-financial assets and accordingly, impairment
assessments were carried out by the management. The
Group engaged an independent professional valuer as
management’s expert to assist its assessment.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets were
tested at cash generated units (“CGUs”). The management
considers each hotel business in Osaka and Okinawa,
Japan, and Travel Related Business to be three separate
CGUs.

The recoverable amounts of the three CGUs were
determined based on the higher of their value-in-use (“VIU”)
or fair value less costs of disposal (“FVLCD”).
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuea)

2.

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

For impairment assessment of the CGU of Travel Related
Business

Management estimated the VIU of this CGU using
discounted cash flow method based on cash flow forecasts
covering a period of 5 years. The impairment assessment
involved significant judgements towards future results of the
business, in particular, the key assumptions in future gross
profit margin, annual revenue growth rate, terminal growth
rate and discount rate.

For impairment assessment of the two CGUs of hotel
business in Osaka and Okinawa, Japan

Management estimated the FVLCD of these two CGUs
based on market approach, by using market values of
comparable hotel properties in Japan adjusted for factors
such as differences in age and conditions between the
comparable hotel properties and those of the Group.
The selection of comparable hotel properties and the
adjustments made involved significant judgements and
assumptions.

Based on management’s assessments described above,
no impairment loss was made for the Group’s non-financial
assets as at 31 December 2020.

We have identified the impairment assessment of non-
financial assets as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and
because VIU and FVLCD calculations involve significant
management judgements, assumptions and estimates.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuead)

2.

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets
(Continuead)

Our response:
Our key audit procedures included:

- Assessing the appropriateness of the management’s
identification of the CGUs based on our understanding
of the Group’s business;

- Evaluating the appropriateness of the methodologies
applied in respect of the assessment of the recoverable
amounts;

- Challenging the reasonableness of the key assumptions
of the cash flow projections of the Travel Related
Business CGU including future gross profit margin,
annual revenue growth rate, terminal growth rate
and discount rate and the reasonableness of the key
assumptions in determining the fair values of the two
hotel business CGUs based on our knowledge of the
Group’s business and industry;

- Reconciling input data to supporting evidence and

considering the reasonableness of the evidence;

= Involving an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment;

and

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity

of the management’s expert and auditor’s expert.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control;

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control;
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STATEMENTS (Continued)

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors;

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern;

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate Number PO5057

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
B E2020512831H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
FAET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
W & Revenue 249,771 1,728,328
$HE AR Cost of sales (219,433) (1,415,835)
E7 Gross profit 30,338 312,493
A NS G Other income and gain, net 14,452 4,479
HERX Selling expenses (38,625) (83,683)
THBFA X Administrative expenses (147,719) (216,697)
FE(R B & N A AR Share of results of associates (1,053) 2,198
BLE AR Finance costs (6,992) (7,042)
PREFISFR AT (B548) & F] (Loss)/Profit before income tax (149,599) 11,748
FriS e Income tax credit 39,925 2,877
FE (B8 &8 (Loss)/Profit for the year (109,674) 14,625
HEeEHMoEEERN Other comprehensive income, that
Hth2 |l - may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
MEBINETEH Exchange differences on translation of
PE H ZRE foreign operations 10,171 957
FEAE R E G NG & A R AY Share of exchange differences on
fE H Z translation of foreign associates 674 (437)
B O BEHEBIINEBD Reclassification of exchange difference on
b & ZE%8 deregistration of foreign operation (789) -
RenEH TR Effect on cash flow hedge, net of tax
KB IA 459 1,180
FEEMEZERE Other comprehensive income for the year,
HER IR net of tax 10,515 1,700
FEEEWNGEEE Total comprehensive income for the year,
NBRIRIE net of tax (99,159) 16,325
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HZE2020F12831H LEZEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
g2 TAET FHT
Notes HK$ 000 HK$'000
FEMEEE (B518) ad - (Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to:
ZAN/NEIE? 2N Owners of the Company (108,760) 14,001
FE 12 IR hE 2 Non-controlling interests (914) 624
(109,674) 14,625
FE{LE U485 Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
RAEHER A Owners of the Company (97,994) 15,660
FEVEAR R 2 Non-controlling interests (1,165) 665
(99,159) 16,325
AT EE AFE(L (B538) ~  (Loss)/Earnings per share for (loss)/profit
Az SR (BB1E) B attributable to owners of the Company
—HEARREE (BL) - Basic and diluted (HK cents) 10 (21.65) 2.79

090 H=miERARAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
12202012831 H As at 31 December 2020
2020 2019
izt FHET FETT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EREMEE Non-current assets
W% - BEREE Property, plant and equipment 14 704,150 456,324
FREEE Right-of-use assets 15 41,201 67,081
ERETRE Construction in progress 16 = 129,864
TABS & N B BE o Interests in associates 17 11,993 12,371
EIERIBE Deferred tax assets 18 54,331 14,561
Hisa Deposits 21 2,301 814
813,976 681,015
BB E Current assets
FE Inventories 19 1,331 1,855
Z 5 MR Trade receivables 20 1,709 7,144
Al AR EEAMEWEE Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 21 120,659 181,028
JiE AU BgE 8 1 ) BR 3K Amount due from an associate 17(c) 7,022 6,163
A] I 5 7 18 Tax recoverable 1,449 1,854
EHRRITFER Pledged bank deposits 22 8,578 6,702
ROTERMEFRS Cash at banks and on hand 22 98,787 206,119
239,535 410,865
mENBE Current liabilities
2 5 TR Trade payables 23 4,950 47,295
FEET ZRIB K E 4th JE 5 BR Accruals and other payables 24 40,703 57,394
EXOR=Ni Contract liabilities 25 18,215 185,080
JE B & A A BR 3K Amounts due to associates 17(c) 79 3,732
EEE= NI &7 Loans from a related company 36(d) 200,000 =
HEAE Lease liabilities 15 41,137 47,257
TIE A Provision for taxation 385 1,306
RITER Bank borrowings 26 50,362 37,620
355,831 379,684
wE (AR BEEFRE Net current (liabilities)/assets (116,296) 31,181
WEERTSHEE Total assets less current liabilities 697,680 712,196
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FEMBIRRE
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
12020 12H31H As at 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Viokz3 FET TFAET
Notes HK$ 000 HK$’000
ERBERE Non-current liabilities
BE Provision 27 820 782
HRITE K Bank borrowings 26 426,434 335,255
HEAE Lease liabilities 15 18,151 20,569
REFRIAEE Deferred tax liabilities 18 = 1,265
TESMIT A Derivative financial instruments 28 642 1,304
446,047 359,175
BEEFE Net assets 251,633 353,021
B EQUITY
EAREBA Capital and reserves attributable to
B AR R EE owners of the Company
[N Share capital 29 50,245 50,245
] Reserves 30 202,338 300,332
252,583 350,577
JEER R Non-controlling interests 35 (950) 2,444
R 485 Total equity 251,633 353,021
RFTREFE On behalf of the Board of Directors
RXH il
Yuen Man Ying Leung Shing Chiu
HITES MITES
Executive Director Executive Director

092 H=miERARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B E2020F12831H LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

NG L 2PN
Attributable to owners of the Company
BEx  ROEE AHREE  iEHRE  SERE  HhEE RERA M FEREG  RGAE
Foreign Non-
Share Share Merger ~ Statutory exchange  Hedging  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  earnings* Total interests equity
Tir T Tix TiEx THT T TiEx TiEn THT TiEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
*2020E151H At 1 January 2020 50,245 145,335 (58,214) 1,157 3,491 (875) 209,438 350,577 2,444 353,021
FEBR Loss for the year - - - - - - (108,760)  (108,760) (914)  (109,674)
Rtt2El s Other comprehensive income
BEBINEHR Exchange differences on translation
ERER of foreign operations - - - - 10,122 - - 10,122 49 10,171
fE(HAZBINEE TR  Share of exchange differences on
BRER tranlation of foreign associates - - - - 674 - - 674 - 674
ENNBEBENERN  Reclassification of exchange difference
Bz on deregistration of foreign operation - - - - (489) - - (489) (300) (789)
Bemefhey2 Effect on cash flow hedge, net of tax
MBHE - - - - - 459 - 459 - 459
ENRAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 10,307 459 (108,760)  (97,994) (1,165)  (99,159)
HH-FHBAR Deregistration of a subsidliary - - - (336) - - 336 - (2,229) (2,229)
bl Appropriation - - - 51 - - (51) - - -
2020125311 At 31 December 2020 50,245 145,335 (58,214) 872 13,798 (416) 100,963 252,583 (950) 251,633
1201951818 At 1 January 2019 50,245 145,335 (58,214) 1,045 3,012 (2,055) 215,647 355,015 3,136 358,151
FEERF Profit for the year = = = = = = 14,001 14,001 624 14,625
P-4 ) Other comprehensive income
BERHNEBH Exchange differences on translation
BRER of foreign operations - - - - 916 - - 916 4 957
E{RREBINEL DA Share of exchange differences on
EXZE translation of foreign associates - - - - (437) - - (437) - (437)
ReMEHMLFE Effect on cash flow hedge, net of tax
MEHE - - - - - 1,180 - 1,180 - 1,180
FEZANRLE Total comprehensive income for the year = = - - 479 1,180 14,001 15,660 665 16,325
vl Appropriation - - - 112 - = (112) = = =
BN FEERERRE Dividend paid to non-controling interests - - - - - - - - (1,357) (1,357)
BERRERE Watr1) Final dividends paid (note 17) - - - - - - (20,098) (20,098) - (20,098)
20195128311 At 31 December 2019 50,245 145,335 (58,214) 1,157 3,491 (875) 209,438 350,577 2,444 368,021
* ZERBEBEAREMBIRRRPNMHERE * The total of these accounts represents “Reserves” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolldated Statement of Cash Flows
HZE2020FE12831HIESEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
=3 THET FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
SEENELZRERE Cash flows from operating activities
FRPT1EAT (B518) & A (Loss)/profit before income tax (149,599) 11,748
KIEEE Adjustments for:
ME--BEKRREBITE Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 8 54,538 47,245
FRESEITE Depreciation on right-of-use assets 8 53,176 77,285
BB A Finance costs 8 6,992 7,042
IRITEF U Interest income on bank deposits 7 (108) (222)
HEME -BEK Loss on disposal of property,

RiERIEFRE plant and equipment, net 8 17 57
®IFFAEW &S Gain on termination of lease 8 (66) (4)
B R EMERE Bad debts written off in respect of

EMiEHIEER prepayments and other receivables 8 770 74
B EWER > Bad debts written off in respect of

B MiiH IR AR trade receivables 8 556 =
I — KM B A BB W= Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary 7 (293) =
BT E R AU & Gain on modification of loan payment 7 (252) =
HERAEE K= Gain on rental concession of lease 7 (4,007) =
FE(L B AT AR Share of results of associates 1,053 (2,198)
SEBTEHEIZ Operating cash flows before

SEIEEME working capital changes (87,223) 141,027
FE D Decrease in inventories 533 2,419
B 5 U R R Decrease in trade receivables 4,927 2,976
ST AR EMPEUWER  Decrease/(increase) in deposits,

B (80 prepayments and other receivables 52,254 (26,171)
FE W B i A B BR =R AE 0 Increase in amount due from an associate (859) (3,815)
B 5 M ERA D Decrease in trade payables (42,382) (11,478)
FESTRUIBE R EHMtE(TBR B/ Decrease in accruals and other payables (16,890) (6,847)
SH8E CRL) /B (Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities (166,867) 34,842
FE{T B & A B BR FUR D Decrease in amounts due to associates (3,653) (169)
S8 FrA) EEfZRS Cash (used in)/generated from operations (210,160) 132,784
[SENIFIN ST Income tax paid (1,354) (5,083)
BETE (), EEZ Net cash (used in)/generated from

B FEE operating activities (211,514) 127,701
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
B E2020F12831H LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
k=3 FAET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
REEHELEZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BEYE -BENEE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (10,117) (5,732)
S ERIEM Payment for construction in progress (130,375) (149,709)
HEME BEKRRKRHZ Proceeds from disposal of property,

FigsRIE plant and equipment 7 =
IR IRIT RGN0 Increase in pledged bank deposits (1,817) (388)
BUF 2 Interest received 108 241
RE GBI T B FAE Net cash used in investing activities (142,194) (155,588)
MEEFHEEZRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BENAARERE AKE Dividends paid to owners of the Company 11 - (20,098)
ENIFERERKR S Dividends paid to non-controlling interest - (1,357)
IRITERTERIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 40 251,259 142,942
BEIBITER Repayment of bank borrowings 40 (165,742) (39,119)
EafE R/NETEEN Advance from a related company 40 200,000 —
ENMHEREZAEHBD Principal element of lease rental paid 40 (29,592) (71,142)
ENHEREZFEZBD Interest element of lease rental paid 40 (2,575) (3,355)
BFR Interest paid 40 (5,392) (3,466)
HE B EL I FRE Net cash generated from financing activities 247,958 4,405
B RIBELLEYH /L FE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (105,750) (23,482)
SNSEREE R E Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (1,582) (402)
FNRERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of the year 206,119 230,003
FERRAERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 22 98,787 206,119
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020FE12831HIESEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

1.

—RE

RERBEERBRAR (TRAF]) R2014F78
CAHEHESHETMMIAEREERER
N E] o A B B 5F Y S B ik A Windward
3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands e~ &+ & &
EMBAIN BB NEERIE BB E835E R R E
151518

1

KATIHREIDF2014FE11B28E N EAM AR
SRR ARAT (TBi3ZFr) Tk Ere

FABNEIBEFAHKREER HNBLATNE
EEFHN GOV BRRMNE4-

KRBINBERERRRIERABREEEIEEHR
BRAB — XN ABERERESEME LA
7o

B E2020F 12831 IEFENIZEEFHEREN
2021 F3H20HEEE g Ao

096 H=miEiRARAS EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

1.

GENERAL

EGL Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 July 2014 as an
exempted company with limited liability. The address of its
registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. Its
principal place of business is located at 15/F, EGL Tower, 83
Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 28 November 2014.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company
is Evergloss Management Group Company Limited,
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 were approved by the board of directors on
26 March 2021.
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective terms include all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“‘HKASs”)
and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The
consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis, except for a
derivative financial instrument, which is measured at fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic began in
early 2020 still has a profound negative impact on the
Group’s financial performance and financial position
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the first
quarter of 2021, in particular for the Group’s business
in Japan given the Japanese government has recently
announced that the Tokyo Olympic and Paralympic
Games will take place without any overseas spectators.
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continuea)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern

assumption (Continued)

The Group incurred a loss of approximately
HK$109,674,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020 and as of that date, its current liabilities exceed
its current assets by approximately HK$116,296,000.
These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
therefore, it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

In the opinion of the Board, the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due in the foreseeable future, based on the cash flow
projections of the Group covering a period up to 30
June 2022 (the “Forecasted Period”) after taking into
the following considerations:

(@ The management of the Group has been
endeavoring to improve the Group’s operating
cash flows through implementing various cost
control measures, including restructuring of
workforce implementing salary reduction for
employees and the directors of the Company,
staff layoff, closures of under-performed
branches, seeking rent concession from landlords
on the lease of certain branches;

(b) Great Port Limited (“Great Port”), a related
company, agreed to arrange additional credit
facilities totalling HK$140.0 million upon request
from the Group in the Forecasted Period; and

(c) The management of the Group keeps
endeavoring to seek additional sources of
finance.
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continuea)

(b)

()

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties
exist as to whether the Board will be able to achieve
its plans and measures as described above, including
whether the Group is able to successfully implement
various control measures, arrange the additional
credit facilities from the related company and source
additional sources of finance when it is needed.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made
in the consolidated financial statements to write down
the values of the assets to their net realisable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effect of such adjustments has not
been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

@

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2020

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new or amended HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA which are relevant to and effective for
the Group’s financial statements for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020:

° Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions (early adopted)

° Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS
9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

° Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a
Business

° Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition
of Material

Except for the early adoption of the amendment to
HKFRS 16, the Group has not early adopted any other
new standards and interpretations that are not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

HKFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical
expedient to lessees in accounting for rent concessions
arising as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, by
including an additional practical expedient in HKFRS
16 that permits entities to elect not to account for rent
concessions as modifications. The practical expedient
applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all
of the following criteria are satisfied:

(@ The change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(@

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2020 (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions (Continued)

(b) The reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

() There is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease.

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may
be accounted for in accordance with this practical
expedient, which means the lessee does not need
to assess whether the rent concession meets the
definition of lease modification. Lessees shall apply
other requirements of HKFRS 16 in accounting for the
rent concession.

Accounting for rent concessions as lease modifications
would have resulted in the Group remeasuring the
lease liability to reflect the revised consideration using
a revised discount rate, with the effect of the change
in the lease liability recorded against the right-of-use
asset. By applying the practical expedient, the Group is
not required to determine a revised discount rate and
the effect of the change in the lease liability is reflected
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concession occurs.

The Group has elected to utilise the practical expedient
for all rent concessions that meet the criteria. In
accordance with the transitional provisions, the
Group has applied the amendment retrospectively,
and has not restated prior period figure. As the rent
concessions have arisen during the current financial
period, there is no retrospective adjustment to opening
balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2020 on
initial application of the amendment.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs —

effective 1 January 2020 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9,
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments address issues affecting financial
reporting in the period before the replacement of an
existing interest rate benchmark with an alternative
risk-free rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide
temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting
to continue during the period of uncertainty before
the introduction of the alternative RFR. In addition,
the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties.

The Group has applied the temporary reliefs to
continue its existing interest rate hedging relationships.
Information of the hedging relationships to which the
Group applies the temporary reliefs is disclosed in note
28 to the financial statements.

Except as described above, the application of the new
or amended HKFRSs below had no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(@

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2020 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business
and introduce an optional concentration test that
permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The
election to apply the concentration test is made for
each transaction. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or
group of similar identifiable assets. If the concentration
test is met, the set of activities and assets is
determined not to be a business. If the concentration
test is failed, the acquired set of activities and assets is
further assessed based on the elements of a business.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of
Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material.
The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements. The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information, or both.
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(®)

3. RN EBRATRIR A R ) 3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group:

° Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2!

o Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-20202

° Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before
Intended Use?

° Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

° Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework?®

o Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and HK
Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause*

° Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

& Effective for business combinations for which the date
of acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

e The amendments shall be applied prospectively to
the sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual
periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the old
interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform
(the “Reform”). The amendments complement those
issued in November 2019 and relate to (a) changes
to contractual cash flows in which an entity will not
have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount
of financial instruments for changes required by the
Reform, but will instead update the effective interest
rate to reflect the change to the alternative benchmark
rate; (b) hedge accounting in which an entity will
not have to discontinue its hedge accounting solely
because it makes changes required by the Reform, if
the hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria; and
(c) disclosures in which an entity will be required to
disclose information about new risks arising from the
Reform and how it manages the transition to alternative
benchmark rates.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of
standards, including:

HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, which permits
a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of
HKFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by its
parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to
HKFRSs.

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarifies
the fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability,
explaining that only fees paid or received between
the entity and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the entity or the lender on
other’s behalf are included.

HKFRS 16, Leases, which amends lllustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives are
illustrated in that example.

HKAS 41, Agriculture, which removes the
requirement to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset
using a present value technique.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, the proceeds from selling
such items, and the cost of producing those items, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling” a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can
either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g. direct labour and materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g.
the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement
that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the
acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result
of past events. For a levy that would be within the
scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies
HK(FRIC)-Int 21 to determine whether the obligating
event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has
occurred by the acquisition date. The amendments
also add an explicit statement that an acquirer does
not recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation
5 (2020), Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period,
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce a
definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation
5 (2020), Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
(Continueq)

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The
revision to HK Int 5 (2020) updates the wordings in the
interpretation to align with the Amendments to HKAS
1 with no change in conclusion and do not change the
existing requirements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. When the transaction with
an associate or joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method, any gains or losses resulting from
the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain
a business are recognised in the profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses
resulting from the remeasurement of retained interest in
any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or
a joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
these new pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
financial statements.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@

(6)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries and the Group’s interests in associates.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiaries is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests
even if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (i) power over the investee, (i) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee and (i)
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable during the
year.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those
losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the
asset transferred they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the interest in
an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@

(e)

Foreign currency translation

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions
took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arisen,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off costs over their estimated useful lives, using
a straight-line basis, at the rates shown below per
annum. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of the reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:

Hotel and other building 2%
30% or over the lease term,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements

Office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Freehold land is not depreciated.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

()

@)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represented hotel building
under construction and is stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises
direct costs of construction as well as borrowing
costs capitalised during the periods of construction
and installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases
and the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment
when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect
of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Leases
Accounting as a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of a lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

@)

Leases (Continued)
Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (i) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Subsequent to the commencement date, under the
cost model, the Group measures the right-of-use
assets at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liability. Unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased
asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised
right-of-use assets are depreciated on straight-line
basis over the shorter of useful lives and lease term.

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the date of commencement of the lease. The lease
payments shall be discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Group shall use the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9) Leases (Continued)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any
lease incentives receivable; (i) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of
a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instrurments

()

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There is only one
measurement category into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial
assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables and other financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12-month ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; or (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(1)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables using HKFRS 9’s
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors, current creditworthiness of the
debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-month ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers the following as constituting
an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience
indicates that financial assets that meet either
of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial
covenants by the debtor; or

o information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collateral held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held) or (2) the financial
asset is more than 90 days past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non-credit-
impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
cost are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade payables, accruals, other payables,
amounts due to associates, loans from a related
company, lease liabilities and bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is re-measured. The gain
or loss on re-measurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting, in which case recognition of any
resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of
the item being hedged (see note 4(h)(vii)).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

v)

(i)

(Vi)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is
designated as a hedge of the variability in
cash flows of a recognised asset or liability or
a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future
transaction, the effective portion of any gains
or losses on re-measurement of the derivative
financial instrument to fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the hedging reserve.
The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)
(vii)  Cash flow hedges (Continued)

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset
or non-financial liability, the associated gain or
loss is reclassified from equity to be included in
the initial cost or other carrying amount of the
non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a financial asset or
a financial liability, the associated gain or loss
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the
same period or periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss
(such as when interest income or expense is
recognised).

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or
terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, hedge accounting
is discontinued prospectively, any cumulative gain
or loss remains in equity at that time is accounted
for according to the nature of the underlying
transactions (as discussed above) once the
hedged cash flow occurs. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that has been reported in
equity is reclassified to profit or loss immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

0)

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the first-in-first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
services may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or services is transferred
over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0

Revenue recognition (Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or services.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For
contracts where the period between the payment and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component, using
the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i)  Package tours

Revenue for package tours is recognised over
time in accounting period in which the control
of services is transferred to the customer
because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes benefit provided by the Group’s
performance as it performs. Payment is made to
the Group before the customers enjoy the tour
services.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()  Revenue recognition (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Hotel room rental

The Group provides hotel accommodations, food
and beverage and other hospitality in Japan.

The Group self-operates its hotel. Revenue
from hotel room rental is recognised over time
in the accounting period in which the hotel
accommodation services are provided to the
customer.

Sales of FIT products, ancillary travel related
products and services

Revenue from free independent travellers (“FIT”)
packages, individual travel elements (together
with FIT package referred to as “FIT Products”)
such as sales of air tickets, hotel accommodation
and hotel packages, etc, and provision of
ancillary travel related services, such as, car
rental, visa application and travel insurance
arrangement, etc, is recognised at a point in time
when the booking or arrangement services are
performed or tickets are delivered to and have
been accepted by the customers. The Group is
the agent in these transactions and the revenue is
recognised on a net basis.

Where the Group acts as a principal in certain
transactions, including sales of admission and
transportation tickets and merchandise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the control
of the products is transferred to the customers,
being when the goods are sold to the customers,
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customers’ acceptance of the goods, the
customers have obtained the physical possession
or the legal title of the goods and the Group has
present right to payment.
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products and services (Continued)

The Group does not provide any sales-related
warranties. There is no right of return by
customers under the Group’s standard contract
terms, except for sales of certain train tickets.

(iv)  Travel bus services

The Group owns its travel buses in Japan. Travel
bus service revenue is recognised over time in the
accounting period in which the travel bus services
are provided to the customer.

(v)  Other income

Commission income is recognised when the
goods or services on which the commission is
calculated are delivered.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest
rate.

Contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the
Group obtains right to receive consideration from the
customer and assumes performance obligations to
transfer goods or provide services to the customer.
The combination of those rights and performance
obligations give rise to a net asset or a net liability
depending on the relationship between the remaining
rights and the performance obligations. Contract
liabilities are recognised for services to be provided to
customers represented by the excess of consideration
received from the customers according to agreed
customer billing schedules over cumulative revenue
recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Income tax

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(K

(m)

Income tax (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
on hand as well as short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to
be settled wholly before twelve months after the end
of the reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short-term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Defined contribution retirement plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme in
Hong Kong. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions after payment
of the fixed contribution. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries to
the maximum mandatory contributions as required
by the MPF Scheme. Liabilities and assets may be
recognised if underpayment or prepayment has
occurred and are included in current liabilities or current
assets, respectively, as they are normally of a short-
term nature. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
Macau makes monthly contributions to the social
security fund managed by the relevant authority of the
local government, which undertakes the retirement
obligations of the its employees. The Group has no
obligation for payment of retirement benefits beyond
the monthly contributions. The contribution payable is
charged as an expense to profit or loss as and when
incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)

According to the existing relevant regulations in
Taiwan, a subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
Taiwan is required to participate in the retirement plan
or scheme operated by the government of Taiwan
(the “Taiwan Scheme”) for the provision of pension
benefits to its employees. The Taiwan subsidiary is
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll
costs to the Taiwan Scheme to fund the benefits. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiary which
operated in Japan are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by a government-
affiliated corporation (the “National Pension Scheme”).
This subsidiary is required to contribute certain
percentage of employees’ salaries to the National
Pension Scheme. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiary which
operated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government (the
“Central Pension Scheme”). This subsidiary is required
to contribute certain percentage of employees’ salaries
to the Central Pension Scheme. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

All contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees and
when they fall due under the relevant regulations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

o property, plant and equipment;
o right-of-use assets;

o construction in progress;

° interests in associates; and

° prepayments

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
HKFRS.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

()

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the cash generating
unit, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
cash generating unit.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(i)

(it

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Company’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

o)

(@

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for staff costs already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable and
reducing the staff cost.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the employee share option reserve within
equity. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into
account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of the reporting period so
that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over
the vesting period is based on the number of options
that eventually vested. Market vesting conditions are
factored into the fair value of the options granted.
As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied,
a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons
other than employees and others providing similar
services, the fair value of goods or services received
is recognised in profit or loss unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets. A
corresponding increase in equity is recognised. For
cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is
recognised at the fair value of the goods or services
received.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to be ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest charges and other
costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(i) Depreciation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and
equipment in accordance with the accounting policies
stated in note 4(e). The estimated useful lives reflect
the management’s estimates of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from
the use of these assets. The management reassesses
the estimated useful lives at the end of the reporting
period.

(i) Impairment of receivables

The Group determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
provision matrix is determined based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the trade receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics and is adjusted for forward-looking
estimates. The ECLs of other receivables is based
on the 12-month ECLs. In making the judgement,
management considers available reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information such as actual
or expected significant adverse changes in business
and customers’ financial position. At every reporting
date the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed by the management.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(i)

(v)

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

Significant judgements are required in determining
the amount of the provision for tax and the timing
of payment of the related tax. Where the final tax
outcomes are different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in
which such determination is made.

Classification of freehold land, hotel building
and construction in progress

As disclosed in notes 14 and 16 in respect of the
freehold land, hotel building, hot spring bath building
and construction in progress of hotel building, these
items are not classified as investment properties as the
Group retains significant risks of running the business,
i.e. exposure to variation in the future cash flows
generated by the operations. Although the Group has
outsourced day-to-day administrative functions to a
hotel management company, the Group is not a purely
passive investor. Accordingly, management considered
that these items should be classified as owner-
occupied property. Once the construction in progress
is completed, it would be transferred to property, plant
and equipment.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(v)

(Vi)

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets

Judgement is required in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to
sell or value-in-use, which is the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset in the business and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions used to determine
the level, if any, of impairment, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group's financial condition and results of operations.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
as at FVTPL

The financial instruments at FVTPL are valued by
independent professional qualified valuers at the end
of each reporting period. Such valuation is based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty
and might materially differ from the actual results.

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the item above, please refer to the
applicable notes.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(vii) Determining the lease term

As explained in the above accounting policies, the
lease liability is initially recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. In determining the
lease term at the commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable by the Group, the
Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal
options taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for
the Group to exercise the option, including favourable
terms, leasehold improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s
operation. The lease term is reassessed when there is a
significant event or significant change in circumstance
that is within the Group’s control. Any increase or
decrease in the lease term would affect the amount of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised in
future years.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has identified its operating segments based on
the regular internal financial information reported to the chief
operating decision-makers about allocation of resources to
assess the performance of the Group’s business.

The Group has two reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers different
products and services and requires different business
strategies. The following summary describes the operations
in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

Travel and travel related services business (“Travel
Related Business”)

Hotel operation (“Hotel Business”)
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Management assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on the measure of segment results which
represents the net of revenue, cost of sales, other income
and gain, selling expenses, administrative expenses, share of
results of associates and finance costs directly attributable to
each operating segment. Central administrative costs are not
allocated to the operating segments as they are not included
in the measure of the segment results that are used by the
chief operating decision-makers for assessment of segment
performance.

Segment assets include all assets with exception of
corporate assets, including cash at banks and on hand, and
certain prepayments and other receivables which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of operating
segments as these assets are managed on a group basis.
Likewise, segment liabilities exclude loans from a related
company and corporate liabilities, such as certain other
payables, which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segments and not allocated to
segments.
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Business segments

indigiElaE S BIEE Ha st
Travel
Related Hotel
Business Business Total
FAET THET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
#H E2020F12831H For the year ended
IEFEE . 31 December 2020:
& Revenue
TRBEINEE A From external customers 243,498 6,273 249,771
V= ba= Inter-segment revenue (8,133) 3,133 -
A2 {2 U= Reportable segment revenue 240,365 9,406 249,771
A2k EEE Reportable segment loss (89,957) (57,702) (147,659)
M -MERRZHEITE  Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment (9,199) (45,339) (54,538)
EREEEITE Depreciation on right-of-use assets (53,176) = (53,176)
FELEGE ARG Share of results of associates (1,053) - (1,053)
MEMA Finance costs (8,329) (3,663) (6,992)
FTiSIRig R Income tax credit 20,455 19,527 39,982
AE2RNBEE Reportable segment assets 282,834 767,424 1,050,258
AIZHRDHaE Reportable segment liabilities 125,752 473,210 598,962
AEIFERIEE Additions to non-current assets 29,580 140,205 169,785
FE{LEEZ /AT EEF{E Share of net assets of associates 11,993 - 11,993
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6. DIHRSE @ 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
@ EEDE @ (a) Business segments (Continued)
hix 3% A6 BA 2E 75 BIEETS mEt
Travel

Related Hotel
Business Business Total
FHET FHET TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

#ZE2019F12831H For the year ended

IEFE . 31 December 2019:
Wz Revenue
REIINEEF From external customers 1,682,389 45,939 1,728,328
BB Dz Wm Inter-segment revenue (25,836) 25,836 =
BES 6 Reportable segment revenue 1,656,553 71,775 1,728,328
A2 Reportable segment

wmF, (F518) profit/(loss) 29,444 (14,003) 15,441

M BERKRREITE  Depreciation on property,

plant and equipment (9,866) (87,379) (47,245)
EREEEITE Depreciation on right-of-use assets (77,285) = (77,285)
FE(L B AT 24 Share of results of associates 2,198 = 2,198
ME A Finance costs (3,483) (3,559) (7,042)
Frief () H&R Income tax (expense)/credit (1,279) 4,183 2,904
AE2RNEEE Reportable segment assets 477,572 612,652 1,090,224
AERNHEaE Reportable segment liabilities 356,447 379,901 736,348
REIFRBEE Additions to non-current assets 43,752 152,296 196,048
FE(LE S ATIEEFEE  Share of net assets of associates 12,371 = 12,371
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6.

DEERE @

)

A28 7 E M m R  EEREIEZ

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

#ER profit or loss, assets and liabilities
2020 2019
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
W Revenue
BESar e Reportable segment revenue 249,771 1,728,328
LRelm Consolidated revenue 249,771 1,728,328
2020 2019
FAET TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRFF1SIAT (B518) & F) (Loss)/profit before income tax
23K DI (B548) 7EF|  Reportable segment (loss)/profit (147,659) 15,441
H W K 5 18 Other gain and loss 1,307 1
IO ERE Unallocated corporate expenses (8,247) (3,694)
FRETISIRABIAR S Consolidated (loss)/profit before income tax
(B548) /m #] (149,599) 11,748
2020 2019
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
AERDIPEE Reportable segment assets 1,050,258 1,090,224
KO EEE Unallocated corporate assets 3,253 1,656
EOREE Consolidated total assets 1,053,511 1,091,880
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6.

DEPERE & 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(b) BI2HDE W B EBEREEZ (b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
HER B profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)
2020 2019
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
=K Liabilities
AE2WmoMBaE Reportable segment liabilities 598,962 736,348
b N = Unallocated corporate liabilities 202,916 2,511
REMREE Consolidated total liabilities 801,878 738,859
© HEEH (c) Geographic information

TRENFEBRBIIEE P W frE
MEEMELERBEE ((RENFERHE
1) SMIERBIBEE DI -

assets (“Specified non-current assets”):

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue from external customers and non-current
assets other than financial assets and deferred tax

REINNBE R Az BENFERDEE
(&% B PRt &l 2) (RBRFTEHE2)
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
(by customer location) (by physical location)
2020 2019 2020 2019
THET FET THET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AR Hong Kong and Macau
(PRTE 1) (place of domicile) 238,254 1,647,231 46,775 76,586
B Japan 11,340 78,199 698,594 577,010
HAth Others 177 2,898 11,975 12,044
249,771 1,728,328 757,344 665,640

FREMDESZERAEERSHE LR
BARORHMEETEE

BEARBRBEEKRE

The place of domicile is determined by referring to the
place the Group regards as its hometown, has the

majority of operation and centre of management.
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6. DEPRE @

@ BHEEESZEHM

HEZE2020F12H31H L FE » REFET
HEAEME—FPEMAEB10%U EWE
(20194 : #8) o

© a7 Hr

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(@

(e) Disaggregation of revenue

Information about a major customer

The Group did not have any single customer
contributed more than 10% of the Group’s revenue
during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

gl ER BIEER st
Travel Related Business Hotel Business Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
TERT TAT TERT TAT TERT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&S Primary geographical markets
EAMERM Hong Kong and Macau
(PRrE 1) (place of domicile) 238,254 1,647,231 - - 238,254 1,647,231
HA& Japan 1,934 6,424 9,406 71,775 11,340 78,199
Hi Others 177 2,898 - - 177 2,898
240,365 1,656,553 9,406 71,775 249,771 1,728,328
I g e S Timing of revenue recognition
iSdE At a point in time 24,119 188,828 - - 24119 188,828
TR mE% Transferred over time 216,246 1,467,725 9,406 71,775 225,652 1,539,500
240,365 1,656,663 9,406 71,775 249,771 1,728,328
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7.

Wit 2 Bz L A1 U A TR WSt e 5 6

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAIN,

NET
W EFERTTE ~ BB MEARITAE R A~ WU B Revenue includes the net invoiced value of package tours,
HAEEEMEEERENEEFE;, BHTE ancillary travel related products, and hotel room rental
BB RIT AR ENIE R EE o A5 and ancillary services; the net proceeds from FIT Products
ERDINZEFTERZENESZEIHYUWT - and ancillary travel related services. The amounts of each

significant category of revenue recognised during the year
are as follows:

2020 2019
TAT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
W Revenue

TRAT Package tours 216,246 1,467,725
BHRTER (H2) FIT Products (note) 3,064 17,827

BN IR1TAB R 2 S BR 7S Ancillary travel related products and services
(B 52) (note) 21,055 171,001
H AR E R B e MRS Hotel room rental and ancillary services 9,406 71,775
249,771 1,728,328
Kzt - REBBRITERES THEHBNERTHBRS Note: The Group’s revenue from FIT Products and certain ancillary
EEMNKGEHEAELERERARESTEAWE travel related services is considered as cash collected on
WIRE > FMmst A 258 BN L EURET B IE48 behalf of principals as an agent, and thus recorded on a net
ZBUINFA TS - basis. The gross proceeds received and receivable are as

follows:

2020 2019
THT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B WUk FE R P 1S AR IB A2 28 Gross proceeds received and receivable 29,834 286,975
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7.

Wi R EHMUWA RIS RRE @ 7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAIN,
NET (Continued)
TERHIEEEBEEWEREKREZESYNS The following table provides information about trade
HEENER receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers:

20204 F220194
12H31H 12831H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
THET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
& 5 EWER (B1a220) Trade receivables (note 20) 1,709 7,144
EHNaE (Watss) Contract liabilities (note 25) 18,215 185,080
2020 2019
FAET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000

H A k@558 Other income and gain, net
Bl 2 U 3 0 2B Exchange gain, net 5,155 2,437
BRIEWTA Handling income 502 555
RITERF] B WA Interest income on bank deposits 108 222
14 & 75 B30 Rebate from a supplier - 351
ISR A Sundry income 1,041 914
HEREE KA Gain on rental concession of lease 4,007 =
BT 8 B WA Government sponsor income 3,094 =
BSTE AT R I = Gain on modification of loan payment 252 =
FiE— KB A B = Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary 293 =
14,452 4,479
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8.

PRERIS AT (B548) &

BRETISIRAT (B518) aF &Mk Gt A) T

8. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

(Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/

HEEW (crediting):
2020 2019
TFHT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
1% B4 6 & BN Auditors’ remuneration 1,618 2,288
B R EMERE Bad debts written off in respect of
B i IR AR prepayments and other receivables 770 74
B2 RWIRZ Bad debts written off in respect of
BEMiiH IR AR trade receivables 556 =
BAHINEFEE A Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 2,817 13,598
ME- -BEKRKZHEBITE Depreciation on property, plant
and equipment 54,538 47,245
FREEETE Depreciation on right-of-use assets 53,176 77,285
HEYZE -BERZHE Loss on disposal of property, plant
E518F 28 and equipment, net 17 57
®IFFAE W & Gain on termination of lease (66) (4)
B A Finance costs
—HEaBEEEN — Interest expense incurred on
FER (Hfa£15) lease liabilities (note 15) 2,575 B 5EE
—TESMIBEEW — Interest expense incurred on
MEMZ derivative financial instruments 419 462
—IRITEREEN — Interest expense incurred on
FMERX bank borrowings 4,951 3,583
—B T ERIRZEARE - Less: Imputed interest capitalised into
HEFE HaE16) construction in progress (note 16) (953) (358)
6,992 7,042
BEMZA (B1EMF1289 Employee costs (including directors’
EEFHMW: emoluments in note 12):
— e kEMEBYEF — Salaries and other benefits in kind 66,485 135,236
—BRIREHE =R — Retirement scheme contributions 4,289 5,941
70,774 141,177
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9. FRfSiRIER

9. INCOME TAX CREDIT

2020 2019
TFAET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BNHRIRIE — & B F) 1SR Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
—KEERIE — Tax for the year 31 1,974
—BFEFEBIREEE — Over-provision in respect of prior year (30) (1,436)
1 538
BVHAIRIE — R PIFR S /M iR Current tax - Macau Complementary Tax
—ARFERIEB — Tax for the year - 37
BIHRRIE— R EENEE Current tax - Taiwan Profit - Seeking
Frigia Enterprise Income Tax
—RFEERIA — Tax for the year - 236
BVHRFRIE — H A F) 1818 Current tax - Japan Profits Tax
—ARFERIE — Tax for the year - 2,528
—EBEFEERERREE — Under—provision in respect of prior year 60 =
60 2,528
IEIEFRIE Deferred tax
—RAFEBTTA — Credit to profit or loss for the year
(K1z%£18) (note 18) (39,986) (6,216)
(39,925) (2,877)

RERESEENABERRESHEAR A2
HERRBERBRESIMRUNEREEE @
REERFEHERRBERRBESETES

BB RIRE -

H E20204F K%2019F 12831 B IEF E » fH5HfE
PR R A B9 E 2,000,000 70328.25% 1 HE B
AIER - ML st TR EA 8 1E2,000,000%8 75
HIER 2 BI3216.5%5T & o A & F 1517 i 4k il &
MNEBRBEENEF R MEFERNEER16.5%

AU R AR

Islands and the BVI respectively.

The group entities incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
the BVI are tax-exempted as no business is carried out in the
Cayman Islands and the BVI under the laws of the Cayman

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first
HK$2.0 million of estimated assessable profits and at 16.5%
for the portion of the estimated assessable profits above
HK$2.0 million for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019. The profit of group entities not qualifying for the two-

tiered profits tax rates regime continued to be taxed at

16.5% for both years.
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9.

FRSTRIESR &

B E2020F12831HIEFE BB HAR
THIRIEFORPIE E I B A B (G st B A
FIZ12% (20194F 1 12%) I ZHEHH « 22020
F12A31HIEFE  AEERRPIEENNEBA
B B A i et FE ST AR E A o

REEFECEMEBRLDBENRIEZEEN
B B A B AU 5t FE SEAR i 7 $225% (20194
25%) MK H - E E2020F 12831 H IE&
B AERRTREENWBASMEEE G
FESEREF) (20194 @ ) o

B ZE2020F 1283 1HIEEE B EFEEM
BRILIBER 8B EENHE A S5 ET
TRHF)#20% (20194F : 20%) MM KA E B E
202012831 IEHFE > AERRABEEN
B B A B f B A ST ST AR s A o

REXREENWBAR BEMA RN ERRSE
M HMERGRERNETENERAKEER (T
XABITHARER) »  ZERIBREE2020F
1283 1B IEFERRTEZ - RERENELR
B BEEMBMMENFH30.6%E434.6%
(20194 : #930.6%E#J34.6%) ° E E 20204
1283 1B IEEE ) AERRAAEENHBAR
1B 9 A ot FE ST R A o

<l

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% (2019:
12%) on the estimated assessable profit of a subsidiary
operating in Macau for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The Group has no estimated assessable profit arising from
the subsidiary operating in Macau for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at 25% (2019:
25%) on the estimated assessable profit of a subsidiary
operating in the PRC for the year. The Group has no
estimated assessable profit arising from the subsidiary
operating in the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: Nil).

Taiwan Profit — Seeking Enterprise Income Tax is calculated
at 20% (2019: 20%) on the estimated assessable profit
of a subsidiary operating in Taiwan for the year ended 31
December 2020. The Group has no estimated assessable
profit arising from the subsidiary operating in Taiwan for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Subsidiaries operating in Japan are subject to corporate
income tax, prefectural and municipal inhabitant taxes
and business tax (hereinafter collectively referred to
as “Japan Profits Tax”) in Japan, which, in aggregate,
resulted in effective statutory income tax rates ranging
from approximately 30.6% to approximately 34.6% (2019:
approximately 30.6% to approximately 34.6%) for the
year ended 31 December 2020 based on the existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.
The Group has no estimated assessable profit arising from
the subsidiaries operating in Japan for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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gl

FRSIRIER @

REBREXAENAMEREZRT

9. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

=t (B548) Reconciliation between income tax credit and accounting

A H AR - (loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:
2020 2019
FAET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRPFSH AT (B518) & F (Loss)/profit before income tax (149,599) 11,748
BEBFERE16.5% Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
(20194 : 16.5%) st EMIRIE 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) (24,684) 1,938
ﬁ?ﬁ{@ﬂ‘}fﬁ@?EMiE’J It /AT Tax effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries
ZARMENRTE & operating in other jurisdictions (10,625) 2,317)
AERBEBENRETE Tax effect of non-deductible items 450 1,133
BERMEBENRBE Tax effect of non-taxable items (6,263) (1,368)
REREREEBENRBEE Tax effect of temporary differences
not recognised 467 147
REDRIBGENRBLE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 991 (98)
BERERRIERENSR Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised - (966)
1] E%Eﬁéﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬂéfﬁﬁﬁéﬂﬁ Tax effect of previously unrecognised
BIERIBEENRBE tax losses now recognised as
deferred tax assets (268) (168)
BEFERERE (B2 #HE Under/(over)-provision in prior year 30 (1,436)
HAh Others (23) 258
(39,925) (2,877)
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10. & (&518) &F 10. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
2020 2019
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
(&518) &BH| (Loss)/earnings
KATER AENS (B548) %A (Loss)/profit attributable to owners
of the Company (108,760) 14,001
2020 2019
T T B
’000 000
& E Number of shares
ZimkEE Number of ordinary shares 502,450 502,450
B E2020F K2019F12B31HIEFEE » &N'A T Diluted (loss)/earnings per share were the same as the basic
TR E B R IS IR ENE (B1E) &R 8 (loss)/earnings per share as the Company had no dilutive
SRER (BE) /BEFERFE - potential shares during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.
1. IR 11. DIVIDENDS
2020 2019
THET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000

BA2018FE R AR EEIR4E(L 2018 final dividends of HK4 cents

per share paid - 20,098

- 20,098

EEAREFIKNME E2020F12831HIEEFEER The directors do not recommend payment of any dividend
ERAEE (20194 © ) o for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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12. EEFHM

ERFMRENT -

12.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows:

e REAM HER
BMER RREL
e (Hizta) (Miazp) BARsHEIHEER iz
Salaries Discretionary
and other and
benefits performance  Retirement
in kind bonuses scheme
Fee (note a) (note b) contributions Total
THERT FERT THERT THERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2020
HITEE Executive directors
RXHE Yuen Man Ying - 951 - 42 993
HEZ Huen Kwok Chuen - 896 - 4 937
22 AR & Leung Shing Chiu - 867 - 39 906
FES Lee Po Fun - 898 - 39 937
- 3,612 - 161 3,773
B IEHITEZSE  Independent non-executive directors
ok 122 1 Chan Kim Fai 202 - - - 202
B 1 Tang Koon Hung Eric 185 - - - 185
=EN Wong Lai Ming 174 - - - 174
561 - - - 561
561 3,612 - 161 4,334
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12. EEFHM

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

He REM HiER
EMER RIFTEA
ik (Hzta) (Hiztp) R EIHR Amst
Salaries  Discretionary
and other and
benefits  performance Retirement
in kind bonuses scheme
Fee (note a) (note b)  contributions Total
TERT TET FTET FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

2019

HITEE Executive directors

R HE Yuen Man Ying - 2,071 336 97 2,504

BHEE Huen Kwok Chuen - 1,639 288 80 2,007

gl Leung Shing Chiu - 1,697 288 78 2,063

FTES Lee Po Fun - 1,682 288 78 2,048

- 7,089 1,200 BEE 8,622

B IFHTTEDSE  Independent non-executive directors

R {2 B Chan Kim Fai 200 - = = 200

pw: Tang Koon Hung Eric 183 - - - 183

=RERR Wong Lai Ming 173 _ _ _ 173
556 - - - 556
556 7,089 1,200 333 9,178

Hat - Notes:

a) IENEEAERSHENNENMEAATRITE a) Being “Salaries and other benefits in kind” paid or payable to

EHEREMBEYRET -

b) MBERRREANDSEFAEBRBULHME
EEREMETE -

c) MREZE2020F12B31HIEEFE  AAF MG
(2019% : ) EFHE WEHN 43,482,000 7T
(20194 : #&E) o

executive directors of the Company in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Group.

The discretionary and performance bonuses are determined
by reference to the Group’s performance and approved by the
remuneration committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, four (2019:

Nil) directors of the Company have waived emoluments of
approximately HK$3,482,000 (2019: Nil).
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13. AAEREHMAL 13.

rEBILESHEMA LTS M4 (20195 1 M
%) RERBRES RENMNEHE I EXMEE12
e R N —% (20195 : —%) AXHIMTWTF :

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2019: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note
12 above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2019: one)
individual were as follows:

2020 2019

FHET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

HERHEMEYET Salaries and other benefits in kind 960 962
1B R FRIZIEAL Discretionary and performance bonuses 160 348
RORETEIHRR Retirement scheme contributions 18 18
1,138 1,328

EeHMFEE ALEFMEET T

The emoluments of the highest paid non-director fell within
the following band:

2020 2019

AEL AEL

Number of Number of

Individual Individual

1,000,001 78752 1,500,00078 75 HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 1

ENSENTFSABEEAS (FOEAADE
%) WHBEEDT :

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior
management (excluding directors of the Company) were
within the following bands:

2020 2019

A N

Number of Number of

individual(s) individual(s)

£ %1,000,0008 70 Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 1
1,000,001 7t £ 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 1
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14. Y- -BERRE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

KAERE BER HER
T HtiigT HEMERE BRRE ElRE AE EEkE st
Hotel
Freehold and other Leasehold Office Computer Motor Furniture
and buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total
TAR Thn TAT TEn Thm TAT TEn THm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1201951818 At 1 January 2019
A& Cost 214,620 141,784 124,618 18,560 40,520 20,703 14,333 575,138
RiE Acoumulated depreciation - (3,204) (69,261) (13,715) (32,417) (7,396) (8,061) (134,144)
REF#E Net carrying amount 214,620 138,490 55,357 4,845 8,108 13,307 6,272 440,994
HE2019F12831HILERE For the year ended
31 December 2019
FNEEFE Opening net carrying amount 214,620 138,490 55,357 4,845 8,103 13,307 6,272 440,994
BERIREA Transfer from construction in
Hiz16) progress (note 16) - 21,215 26,108 473 - - - 53,796
WE Additions 303 149 958 1,461 2,135 1 725 5,732
HE Disposal - - (53) (1) - - 3 (57)
& Depreciation = (3319 (32,784) (1,684) (3,391) (4,160) (1,907) (47,245)
ERAEE Exchange adjustment 1,032 1,154 773 43 1 67 34 3,104
EXEEFE Closing net carrying amount 215,955 163,689 50,359 5,137 6,848 9,215 5,121 456, 324
*2019£12831A K At 31 December 2019 and
202051818 1 January 2020
A Cost 215,955 170,312 150,884 20,541 42,657 20,798 15,070 636,217
REE Accumulated depreciation - (6,623) (100,525) (15,404) (35,809) (11,583) (9,949) (179,893)
REHE Net carrying amount 215,955 163,689 50,359 5137 6,848 9215 5,121 456,324
2020463 Annual Report 2020 159



BA#53RZR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020FE12831HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

14. YE - -BERRE @

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
KAEHE BER RER
fati AftiigT HENERE HARE BERE HE BEkE &t
Hotel
Freehold and other  Leasehold Office Computer Motor Furniture
land buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total
TEn TER TEn TEn TER TEn TEn TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE2020F12B31HLEE For the year ended
31 December 2020
EREFE Opening net carrying amount 215,955 163,689 50,359 5,137 6,848 9,215 5121 456,324
BRERTREA Transfer from construction
(Hizt16) in progress (note 16) - 160,412 85,256 14,341 - - 5,151 265,160
AE Additions - 603 1,011 3,729 1,121 - 3,653 10,117
HE Disposal - - - (12) (12) = - (24)
il Depreciation - (4,030) (38,500) (2,329) (3,320) (4,208) (2,151) (54,538)
ERAE Exchange adjustment 10,584 11,894 3,298 551 7 289 488 27,11
EXEAFE Closing net carrying amount 226,539 332,568 101,424 21,417 4,644 5,296 12,262 704,150
1120205128318 At 31 December 2020
AR Cost 226,539 343,674 242,159 39,249 43,7114 21,755 24,563 941,653
REE Accumulated depreciation - (11,106) (140,735) (17,832) (39,070) (16,459) (12,301) (237,503)
REFE Net carrying amount 226,539 332,568 101,424 21,417 4,644 5,296 12,262 704,150

£2020F 128310 AEE B 2 KR REF
{E#9226,539,0007 7T (20194 : 215,955,000
7T) ~ 332,568,00078 70 (20194F : 163,689,00078
70) ’24,212,0003 7T (20194F : 6,459,000 7T)
I BB R A R L3 B R EMIEF RS

BLUERAEBERNIRITER (fi5E26)

160 =FE#HZERAERAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

As at 31 December 2020, freehold land, hotel and other
buildings and motor vehicles of the Group located in

Japan with a net carrying amount of approximately
of HK$226,539,000 (2019: HK$215,955,000),
HK$332,568,000 (2019: HK$163,689,000) and
HK$4,212,000 (2019: HK$6,459,000) respectively, were
pledged to secure the bank borrowings granted to the Group

(note 26).
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15. EAREE THE&AR

KEFFSEAEN
FEERHEEMEMMNE ZEREENEES
THE - AR ERBEEUERGSE -

AEBTHEETHREARBEEECERES
ITRMARE BERREBEZEEESSHERR
BYTE BE K °

EHREE
REFEEENDOMNEREEE ZREFE
LI

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group as a lessee

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions
from which it operates. The periodic rent is fixed over the
lease term.

The Group also leases certain items of plant and equipment,
including travel buses and office equipment. Leases of plant
and equipment comprise only fixed payments over the lease
terms.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset is as follows:

20204 20194
12H31H 12831H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
FET TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000

FEBRNEE Leased for own use,

DUHTE R AT carried at depreciated cost:

HEY % Rental premises 27,009 25,016
N Office equipment 7,253 9,292
HRE D+ Travel buses 6,939 32,773
41,201 67,081

20204E% Annual Report 2020 161



\' B #54R 3 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMRHmRM T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020FE12831HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

15. ERAEEE HEAGE® 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES
(Continued)
KEEELZABN &) The Group as a lessee (Continued)
EHABEEE B RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)
FERERAEEESEWNT Movements of right-of-use assets during the year:
HEME YN MREE T Bzt
Rental Office Travel
premises equipment buses Total
TAT TAET FTAT FTAET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
R2019%181H At 1 January 2019 34,840 12,008 58,339 105,187
hE Additions 19,158 - 21,091 40,249
HE Disposal (596) = = (596)
HENREENTE Effect of modification to lease payments (497) = = (497)
i Amortisation (27,913) (2,715) (46,657) (77,285)
ERRAE Exchange adjustment 24 (1) - 23
12019128318 % At 31 December 2019 and
2020F181H 1 January 2020 25,016 9,292 32,773 67,081
hE Additions 25,245 316 2,779 28,340
HE Disposal (249) - (829) (1,072)
iy Amortisation (23,033) (2,359) (27,784) (53,176)
B R AR Exchange adjustment 24 4 - 28
12020%12831H At 31 December 2020 27,009 7,253 6,939 41,201
HELE LEASE LIABILITIES
KRB ENMKZBEIHFAOTF : The analysis of the present value of future lease payment is
as follows:
120205 20195
12831H 12H31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
TET TAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
mEas Current liabilities 41,137 47,257
JEREIEE Non-current liabilities 18,151 20,569
59,288 67,826
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15. FRESE HEEE ®@ 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES
(Continued)
KEEFEAARFAN 1B The Group as a lessee (Continued)
HEEE @©) LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)
FRHEEEEZEFHUT Movements of lease liabilities during the year:
HEYE WARE REE L st
Rental Office Travel
premises equipment buses Total
FTAERT TAER T AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
12019F181H At 1 January 2019 34,840 12,008 53,871 100,719
N Additions 19,158 - 20,150 39,308
HE Disposal (600) - - (600)
HEMHMEENTE Effect of modification to lease payments (497) = = (497)
FIERX Interest expense 1,346 689 1,320 3,355
HEMR Lease payments (28,615) (2,801) (43,081) (74,497)
[ERAE Exchange adjustment 38 = = 38
12019F128318 K& At 31 December 2019 and
2020F181H 1 January 2020 25,670 9,896 32,260 67,826
NE Additions 25,251 316 618 26,185
HE Disposal (270) - (867) (1,137)
FERX Interest expense 1,402 577 596 2,575
HEMR Lease payments (20,042) (2,737) (9,388) (32,167)
COVID-19t8RATA S Z 3 (M5£) Covid-19-related rent concessions (nots) (4,007) - - (4,007)
fE R R Exchange adjustment 8 5 - 13
12020F12831H At 31 December 2020 28,012 8,057 23,219 59,288
AaATHESRHEN Variable payments not included in the
FEAR measurement of lease liabilities:
1£20205128 318 At 31 December 2020 - - 661 661
1120195128316 At 31 December 2019 - - 4,507 4,507
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15. ERAEEE HEAGE® 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES
(Continueq)
KEFIEAZAFAN &) The Group as a lessee (Continued)
HEEE 4 LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)
Kzt D UM sES(a)fTiE » AEBEREZEHFTSIZ Note: As disclosed in note 3(a), the Group has elected to apply

EZBHEERRAE BV BREENE6
KBTI AZRIITRE S EZ - FRAEREE
202012831 HIEEESI I ZHE RGNS
REBARTERER A - EBRUTREREE
HIEE & E4REERE /4,007,000 7T © Z RV Y
FEEEREZSIMOE IR LR

the practical expedient introduced by the amendment to
HKFRS 16 to all rent concessions that satisfy the criteria.
All of the rent concessions entered into during the year
ended 31 December 2020 satisfy the criteria to apply the
practical expedient. The application of the practical expedient
has resulted in the reduction of total lease liabilities of

EIAEPAN= i) HK$4,007,000. The effect of this reduction has been recorded
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers those payments occurs.

FEAEMZHZINBEAWT : Future lease payments are due as follows:
RIEEEEW FE RE
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
FHT THTT THT
1£202012831H At 31 December 2020 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB —F Not later than one year 42,508 1,371 41,137
BE—FERMEURN Later than one year and
not later than two years 17,942 655 17,287
848 W F K AU Later than two years and
not later than five years 877 13 864
61,327 2,039 59,288

164 S=HEEZERARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



g AN
W =

RA 75 ¥ AR Y 5E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B E2020F12831H LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

15. FHESE THEAG @

FEEFERAEN @

HEER (&)

(Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

REBELWR FE RE
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
FHET FHET TEx
2019FE12H31H At 31 December 2019 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEE—F Not later than one year 49,127 1,870 47,257
BE—FRmEUR Later than one year and
not later than two years 12,811 708 12,108
BERERAEUR Later than two years and
not later than five years 8,876 415 8,461
70,814 2,988 67,826
16. EE T 16. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
2020 2019
TAT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
K118 At 1 January
FHERMEE Opening carrying amount 129,864 32,782
wE Additions 131,328 150,067
HBEY X -BEKRKE Transfer to property, plant and equipment
(Hta£14) (note 14) (265,160) (53,796)
PE R E R Exchange adjustment 3,968 811
M12831H At 31 December - 129,864
KM12831H At 31 December
%N Cost - 129,864
RETRERE Accumulated impairment losses - =
REEE Net carrying amount - 129,864
202043 Annual Report 2020 165
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16. FEZIRE @

R2019F12B31HMNER TRZF EIF N H A
BEEREEET o

HE2020F12A31HIEEE 8 BEYN
953,000 75 (20194F : 358,000 7T) (MizF26)
ERERIBRFUERI.

REZE2020F 12831 H IEFE » A 4B A E
BFEEMBBEBNREA EFREEEEXRER
B)EEREYE BEKKFE

16.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (Continued)

Construction in progress as at 31 December 2019 mainly
represents hotel building being constructed in Okinawa,
Japan.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, imputed interests of
approximately HK$953,000 (2019: HK$358,000) (note 26)
were capitalised in construction in progress.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the construction
of hotel building in Okinawa was completed and the related
costs including capitalised interests were transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

17. REEAT#ER 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
2020 2019
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
IR E EFE Share of net assets 11,993 12,371
FE UL Bt A B BR R Amount due from an associate 7,022 6,163
FETH & A B BRRR Amounts due to associates 79 3,732
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17. BB QEIRES @ 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
@) FR2020F F2019F 12531 HH9H Z 4 (@) Particulars of associates as at 31 December
=S =2/ 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
AL, EEITRSY
YNGIEZY A E RS BAE ETEEH
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ interest held
Name of company operations indirectly  Principal activities
RBRERTHERAERAE (TEGLEEI)  $EE 38% MREREIRMEAIRIRITE
EGL Tours Korea Co., Ltd. (‘EGL Korea”) Korea Provision of inbound

package tours in Korea

R EHHEGLAAE" (TEGLA#E]) SN 38% B AR
AEIRITE
Kabushiki Kaisha EGL Okinawa* Japan Provision of inbound
(“EGL Okinawa”) package tours in

Okinawa, Japan

R EHEEHE (T HE) Hax 1% FHEERREREMKRTE
Niti Niti Travel Co., Ltd. (“Niti Niti Travel”) Japan Provision of local package

tours in Japan

* R AR E MR * English name for identification purpose only
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17. REZE QTR @

b) HEEHEZE

TXEIEREDEZARNBEAT 2/

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)  Summarised financial information

Set out below is the summarised financial information

BERE of the associates which are accounted for using equity
method:
EGLEEE EGLIF 4B BB #st
EGL EGL Niti Niti
Korea Okinawa Travel Total
FTHET TET TET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B E2020F12831HLLEE For the year ended
31 December 2020
AEBEBEATEE . Aggregate amount of the
Group’s associates:
—ia A R — Profit or loss (1,036) (1,852) (590) (3,478)
—Htrzma® ~ Other comprehensive income 1,735 (18) 29 1,746
2EWREELE Total comprehensive income 699 (1,870) (561) (1,732)
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17. REE QTR @
b) HEEHEZE @)

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continuead)

(b)  Summarised financial information (Continued)

EGLEZE EGLH4E =R= a5t
EGL EGL Niti Niti
Korea Okinawa Travel Total
THET FHET FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B E2019F12831HIEEE  For the year ended
31 December 2019
& B A B 4R%EE Aggregate amount of the
Group’s associates:
—im A S E5 18 - Profit or loss 5,789 79 (77) 5,791
—Hh > mE =S ~ Other comprehensive income (1,172) 8 12 (1,152)
TEWTAERE Total comprehensive income 4,617 87 (65) 4,639

) [EWTE(THE R BRI A5 I

BERLZERIER -

unsecured,
demand.

20204 % Annual Report 2020
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interest-free and repayable on
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18.

EERIEEE (BR)

REEERBEFEREERBEZEN (BR) 2
RS BN T ¢

18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

Details of the deferred tax assets and (liabilities) recognised
and movements during the current and prior year are as

follows:
M RIEEE
B &K =HE
®tE  HEIR HAth (1) Bt
Tax losses
Property, carried
plant and Construction forward
equipment in progress Other (note) Total
FTHET FHET FET FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
1201951 81H At 1 January 2019 367 (92) 1,062 5,290 6,627
RAEEEBHETA Credit/(charged) to profit or loss
(0px) (Hta£9) for the year (note 9)
—EERBEERMER - Orgination and reversal of
temporary differences 9,229 92 (1,519) (1,586) 6,216
FAFANER Credit to equity for the year - = 462 = 462
bl 2 S B Translation adjustment (15) - (4) 10 9)
2019512831 H At 31 December 2019 9,581 - 1 3,714 13,296
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18. IBEEMRIEBEE  (Bf) @ 18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
(Continued)
Y3 RIAR1E
& & &

B HAth (Hzt) Bt

Tax losses

Property, carried

plant and forward
equipment Other (note) Total

TET TET TET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000

120201811 At 1 January 2020 9,581 1 3,714 13,296

RAREEBTDTA #75£9)  Credit to profit or loss
for the year (note 9)

—EERBELEREEE - Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 10,829 608 28,549 39,986
STAFERER Credit to equity for the year - (248) - (248)
R R Translation adjustment 806 14 477 1,297
1220205F12H31H At 31 December 2020 21,216 375 32,740 54,331
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18. BIERIEEE / (AR) @ 18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

PUR TR 54k & 75 E 2 EIEFR TBAG R D4

(Continued)

The following is the analysis of deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

2020 2019

THET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’'000

IR I E B Deferred tax assets 54,331 14,561

IREMIEE R Deferred tax liabilities - (1,265)
Hiat - Note:

RABEHA AEBREBEEREHEEYN
124,791,000 75 (20194 : 12,002,000 7T) » B f& [R
HAEREEEBE BN AT RKERRERN o A&
[ 787 PR B 2 A FR T 85 38 494,357,00078 75 (20194 ©
3,296,000 7T) N EFEAN T RBEMELEREES
$8497,378,0007 70 (20194 : ) R = FE R EIHILL
RHBAEERBEELA42,723,000%8 7T (20194
12,081,000 70) R AE+E (20195 | AL E+F)

EHE > TR S R AR FE R B A c M B BB AT
BFMBARUKRBAKBAREEZRIBEBRTE
R IFIETRTBE E 9 749121,526,0004 7T (20194 :
8,738,00078 7T)  £91,329,000/8 7T (20194 : #) LUK
#9387,360,00078 7T (20194 : 7,081,000587T) ° Fhik T
Z2RIEE (BEES TEREBAEMKMBATESE
ZMIBEEIE) M= ARZEABRN A RARKAATAE
EEBRREF LT R IER 8 » S R T U R RIETE
MIBLE -
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group has tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$124,791,000 (2019:
HK$12,002,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
The Group also had tax losses arising in the PRC of approximately
HK$4,357,000 (2019: HK$3,296,000) that will expire in five years,
tax losses arising in Macau of approximately HK$7,378,000 (2019:
Nil) that will expire in three years and tax losses arising in Japan
of approximately HK$42,723,000 (2019: HK$12,081,000) that will
expire in nine to ten years (2019: nine to ten years) for offsetting
against future taxable profits, respectively. Deferred tax assets have
been recognised for tax losses arising from a subsidiary in Hong
Kong of approximately HK$121,526,000 (2019: HK$8,738,000),
from a subsidiary in Macau of approximately HK$1,329,000 (2019:
Nil) and from subsidiaries in Japan of approximately HK$37,360,000
(2019: HK$7,081,000). Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses, including the tax
losses arising from the other subsidiaries in Hong Kong, PRC and
Japan, as it is not probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised in the foreseeable future.
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19. F& 19. INVENTORIES
2020 2019
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
A {8 & B9 7 SR Merchandise for sale 1,331 1,855
20. EZEWER 20. TRADE RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FEUR Trade receivables 1,709 7,144
RBIEXEZEHH  RREHER  ~EB 2B LS EI The ageing analysis of the Group’s gross trade receivables
BR4DZEAVBRES D AT E - as at the end of the reporting period, based on invoice date,
is as follows:
2020 2019
FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
0—90*k 0 - 90 days 1,359 7,081
91—180k 91 - 180 days 331 63
181—365% 181 — 365 days 19 -
#BiB365K Over 365 days = =
1,709 7,144
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20. BSEWER @ 20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

AEBFFIATFESZEREERNERE B85
10REOK - RIFFEH > AEEE Z EUERAR
FEMERES DATIO T ¢

The Group has a policy of granting trade customers with
credit terms of generally 10 days to 90 days. The ageing
analysis of the Group’s gross trade receivables, based on
due date, is as follows:

2020 2019
FET TAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
5 A< 380 HA Not yet past due 9 1,371
AEA=1E B UMW Past due within three months 1,565 5,723

AAABE=EBER/NMEB LA  Past due more than three months but
within six months 116 50

BHBBEAEAER—FMUA Past due more than six months but

within one year 19 -
1,709 7,144

20201283 1H BERNESEEREA £
MmEIENREE RAANE ZEWRRARNSE
UBEFPAR MEERAEEEEREINIZE
Rtke—mas > AEBW ARZEFRERFA
EIERIEME BRE

AEBERAES BN BREENFESRFETIANG
{ER i FEREEBBEREE  ZRTEATYH
FIEEZENRRAERATEREERERME
RITETRREEEER BZRVERERERRE
ERBEMRERRHNE -TEREEBIETE
FERTREME R - 1R2020F12H31H A AR EE
RAEMESEVRASHEEFHNTEREERE
TWARERK
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The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December
2020 was the carrying amount mentioned above. Trade
receivables that not yet past due related to a large number
of independent customers that had a good track record
of credit with the Group. In general, the Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
palances.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
lifetime ECL provision for all trade receivables. To measure
the ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
ECLs also incorporate forward-looking information. As at
31 December 2020, the directors of the Company consider
ECLs against the gross amounts of trade receivables are
immaterial.
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21,

T AR B EMEYER 21. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

2020 2019
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000

ERHEE Non-current asset
51 (Htata) Deposits (note a) 2,301 814

MENEE Current assets

HAEWER (Bva#0) Other receivables (note b) 37,845 25,151
51 (Bata) Deposits (note a) 7,160 11,155
SEUNEA Prepayments 75,654 144,722
120,659 181,028

RESHPEENESEERRD LMRZERE
WERRIAREE - AEE U B R AR RER
R

Mt &) ZEREEINT—ZREEQRAE
THHEEI£492,117,000%8 75 (2019
& 12,117,00087t) - Zkt A EIK
R B RN AR mREE

by ZE2HREEMIH-—ZXWEAIM
FEW — 2B EEREZNRTELY
3,311,000/ 7T (20194 : %) o

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the carrying amounts of each class of receivables mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

Notes: a) The amount included rental deposits paid to a
related company, Great Port, of approximately
HK$2,117,000 (2019: HK$2,117,000). The amount
due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable at the
end of the rental periods.

b) The amount included the receivable from a former
non-controlling interest in respect of deregistration
of a subsidiary in an amount of approximately
HK$3,311,000 (2019: Nil).
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22, EAIRITERURRITEMRREFR

22.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AT

e BANKS AND ON HAND
2020 2019
TET FA&T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
RITER Cash at banks 103,730 208,696
EFRE Cash on hand 3,635 4,125
107,365 212,821
B IERIRITER Less: Pledged bank deposits (8,578) (6,702)

HEMBERRITZ Cash at banks and on hand per

RITERNREFRE consolidated statement of financial position 98,787 206,119

FAEENRERREEEBYEEENRSBIRT
ERMNERFIFHNEF EWNIRITERNIZET
MM E BN ERITFER 1R20205F128
31H  HEFZENF0.01%E2.75% (20194 :
0.01%ZE2.75%) > BRI FBHAR A =@ U o

R2020F 12831 A&EBE TRITEFERD
8,578,000 7T (20194F : 6,702,000 7T) 1K iR 44
RIT TEMERERREIEEANETE=ZHA
(R RIBVIR IR e R E BRI TERBIIER ©
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The Group’s cash and cash equivalents comprise bank
deposits carrying interests at floating rates based on daily
pbank deposit rates and short-term bank deposits carrying
interests at prevailing market interest rates ranging from
0.01% to 2.75% (2019: 0.01% to 2.75%) per annum as at
31 December 2020, with an original maturity of three months
or less.

As at 31 December 2020, certain bank deposits of the
Group amounting to approximately HK$8,578,000 (2019:
HK$6,702,000) were pledged to banks as securities mainly
for letters of guarantee issued to certain third parties on
behalf of the Group and as securities for bank borrowings of
the Group.
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23. B 5 REMER 23. TRADE PAYABLES
BoEMRNEENREANEMHEERERN The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
BKHREEMAR  BEA1KXEI0K - RIEESES terms agreed with different suppliers, which normally range
MRS E R GBEEHEETHE—) » IRiREH from 1 day to 30 days. Based on the receipts of services and
FOAEEEZENMENEESTOT ! goods, which normally coincided with the invoice dates, the

ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end

of the reporting period is as follows:
2020 2019
THT FAET
HK$’000 HIK$’ 000
0—90K 0 - 90 days 1,447 43,217
91—180% 91 — 180 days 51 2,238
181—365K 181 — 365 days 1,320 1,818
#BiB365K Over 365 days 2,132 22
4,950 47,295

24. FEstRRIERH MR 24. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

2020 2019
TFHT FHB7T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEst7IE Accrued expenses 11,586 13,303
H AT AR Other payables 29,117 44,091
40,703 57,394

2020463 Annual Report 2020 177



\’ B #54R 3 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMRHmRM T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020FE12831HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

25. aNEE 25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
2020 2019
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BHEEELR Contract liabilities arising from:
IR A B ZE 75 Travel Related Business
—IRITE - BHTE®K - Sales of package tours,
RITAERE E RIHE FIT Products and travel related products 13,785 176,294
— R EEAIT S — Unexpired discount vouchers 4,430 8,074
BT Hotel Business - 712
18,215 185,080
HENEBESREENEE Y — RS MESHWT Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities are as follows:
@ JIRLEIERETE (a) Travel Related Business
) T~ BT E SRR TIE R E ()  Sales of package tours, FIT Products and
HE travel related products
EHEEAHRATPIRER R Contract liabilities represent advance payments
EmEAEEAERERRAR  IRE received from customers for services that have
R ZIENMRC not yet been performed to the customers or the

control of the products have not been transferred
to the customers.

REBFEAR —FRUARTHE R The Group expects to deliver the goods or
RERBUBITZESHNEEZHT services to satisfy the remaining obligations of
5o these contract liabilities within one year or less.
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25. aEaE®

@ KRR (&)

(b)

(i)

KEVEFHTHIZ

AEEBE TR RHIREBBES
s - AERETILBERIREK
w4 B B RRIMIRTT B S AR IT AR RA = fR
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25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(a) Travel Related Business (Continued)

(b)

(i)

Unexpired discount vouchers

The Group provides discount vouchers to certain
customers for Travel Related Business. The
Group determines this offer represents a material
right to purchase additional package tours or
travel related products in the future two years
and recognised as a contract liability based on
the relative stand-alone price of the performance
obligations in the contract. The contract liability
recognises as revenue when the customer
redeems it for goods or services or when it
expires.

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation in connection to the
unexpired discount vouchers is approximately
HK$4,430,000 (2019: HK$8,074,000) and the
Group will recognise this revenue within 24
months as the discount vouchers are effective for
24 months.

Hotel Business

Contract liabilities represent advance payments

received from customers for hotel services that have

not yet been rendered to the customers.

The Group expects to deliver the services to satisfy the

remaining obligations of these contract liabilities within

one year or less.
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25. BEE® 25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)
TRV ENEBE 2 EE) . The table below details movements in contract liabilities:
2020 2019
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
M®1B1H At 1 January 185,080 150,215
AR AN EE W m Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
GtAFEHEHNER) recognising revenue during the year that
MmiEREaNaEz =D was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year (156,818) (146,342)
RAFEESLAEMm Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
BEReNasRnL contract modification in the current year (13,925) =
(AR 45 A8 BE 2= 75 BB 5 275 Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
AW (FEERAEE billing in advance of Travel Related
BHEANRZIEE) Business and Hotel Business, excluding
MEmaNa’zIgm those recognised as revenue in the
current year 3,878 181,207
®12831H At 31 December 18,215 185,080
26. RITE™ 26. BANK BORROWINGS
2020 2019
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
TREN Current
RITET BEIKIE Bank borrowings, secured 50,362 37,620
JETRED Non-current
RITIEF BIRH Bank borrowings, secured 426,434 335,255
476,796 372,875
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26.
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26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the bank borrowings of
approximately HK$476,796,000 (2019: HK$372,875,000)
were secured by charges over certain property, plant and
equipment and pledged bank deposits with aggregate
carrying amounts of approximately HK$563,319,000
(2019: HK$386,103,000) (note 14) and approximately
HK$4,889,000 (2019: HK$309,000) (note 22) respectively.
In addition, among these bank borrowings, an amount of
approximately HK$3,870,000 (2019: HK$4,862,000) was
also secured by a property of a former non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary in Japan.

Some of the Group’s facilities letters are subjected to
covenant clauses, whereby the Group is required to meet
certain key financial ratios and covenants. The Group
did not fulfil the financial covenants as required in the
contract with a bank for a credit line of approximately
HK$48,300,000, of which the Group had an outstanding
loan amount of HK$10,000,000 as at 31 December 2020.
Due to this breach of the covenant clause, the bank is
contractually entitled to request for immediate repayment
of the outstanding loan amount of HK$10,000,000. The
outstanding balance is presented as a current liability as at
31 December 2020.

The terms of the banking facilities were subsequently revised
and a renewed facilities letter dated 19 February 2021 was
signed which has the next renewal date as at 31 December
2021.

The bank borrowings are initially measured at fair value,
net of directly attributable costs incurred and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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26. IRITER @ 26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)
IRITEHHEHBERENZXR0.81%E2.94% The bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
(20194 : 0.79% F1.67%) BN Kt = > amortised cost using effective interest rate of 0.81% to
FRERIRZERNCEHEF B 254953,000%8 2.94% (2019: 0.79% to 1.67%) per annum and imputed
75 (20194F : 358,000/ 7T) © interest of approximately HK$953,000 (2019: HK$358,000)

was capitalised into the construction in progress during the
year.

NEHERFR > BT ENAREE T REEER At the end of each reporting period, total bank borrowings

AEREIR - were scheduled to repay as follows:
2020 2019
THET TFAT
DAMT HEE) - Analysed into (note): HK$’000 HK$’000
—FEREBEX Within one year or on demand 50,362 37,620
—FEMU FERBEmFE Over one year, but within two years 40,588 34,844
MEM BN BB A F Over two years, but within five years 116,087 101,664
AEMUE Over five years 269,759 198,747
476,796 372,875
Mt BRI RSRE LSRG E TSN Note: The amounts due shown in the repayment schedule are
TEENHEY o based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

agreements.
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26. IRITIERN @& 26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

202012831 B IRITAEF=FBHY W T - Details of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2020 are

stated below:

+1.5% per annum

i3 Gl BT
Principal Interest Repayment
amount rate terms
TER
HK$°000

LAEENER Loan denominated in Japanese Yen (*JPY’) 245,255 FEFEA={ERH BR+TER
FRIBTEERS fBE

M EFRZE1.0%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 12 years

Offered Rate

+1.0% per annum
BB ENER Loan denominated in JPY 3,870 EEEFH= BRRER
1.2% fBE
Fixed rate Payable within
1.2% per annum 5 years
UBEEHENER Loan denominated in JPY 217,611 FHERA=ERH BRZHARER
FRBITFERES g

M EE#%0.5%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 26 years

Offered Rate

+ 0.5% per annum
AT ENER Loan denominated in HK$ 10,000 EFEAE—@ESB BRNTRA
ERRTFERS HE

M EEF=1.5%
1-month Payable within
HIBOR 90 days
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26. SRITIET @

122019612831 BRIRITHEMEFIBEIIAT ¢

26.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Details of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2019 are
stated below:

A% GilE:S B
Principal Interest Repayment
amount rate terms
TET
HK$'000

N AEFENER Loan denominated in JPY 248,172  FFEXH=EAH AR+ &R
RRFITEZERS BE

i EFHZE.0%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 12 years

Offered Rate

+1.0% per annum
L HEENER Loan denominated in JPY 4,862 TEH=E BREERN
1.2% g8
Fixed rate Payable within
1.2% per annum 5 years
NBEENER Loan denominated in JPY 119841  FREH={ERH BRZHER
FRBIAERS B

0L ERZ0.5%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 26 years

Offered Rate
+0.5% per annum
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27.

28.

e
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TTEEMIA

R2020F12B31H  A&EBFELERGNE
%6#9199,897,00078 7t (492,676,000,000 H [&])
(2019£F : 215,966,0007 7T (493,032,880,000
HE)) WARIEFEHEBE M == 85 LUR D
MEFHEHASEFZIHHEREITHERY
199,897,00078 7T (492,676,000,000H [B]) AIF
o ZHHEMN2019FE1B4H £ Em B A
2023F12H31H °

R2020F12831 0 AEBRRZEF X1
BEHAAVNNREEREER TR MARNEBEY
642,000 75 (20194 : 1,304,000 7T) i i 25 1k
Lo

R2020F 12831 B R E AR Ris AN A R EE
H—XREFXMGEMA D SRKT(EEH
BRABEHME MEEHANANBEASSE
Bt R BERMERIEASHNTARNESH
Bz RIREPRL LB OBIWERSE G
ZfhETEEE

27.

28.

PROVISION

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, there is a provision for
reinstatement cost of a leasehold property in Japan, which
relates to the estimated cost of restoring the leasehold
property to its original state at the end of the lease term
in accordance with the lease terms. The main uncertainty
relates to estimating the cost that will be incurred at the end
of the lease term.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had outstanding
floating-to-fixed interest rate swap with a notional contract
amount of approximately HK$199,897,000 (approximately
JPY2,676,000,000) (2019: HK$215,966,000 (approximately
JPY3,032,880,000)) to reduce the impact of interest rate
fluctuation on the secured floating-rate bank borrowings
of approximately HK$199,897,000 (approximately
JPY2,676,000,000) in Japan. The swap started on 4 January
2019 with a maturity date on 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recognised such
interest rate swap contract as an effective cash flow
hedge with fair value of approximately HK$642,000 (2019:
HK$1,304,000) deferred in equity.

The fair value of the outstanding interest rate swap as at
31 December 2020 was valued by Ravia Global Appraisal
Advisory Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers. The fair value of interest rate swap is the estimated
amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the
swap at the end of the reporting period, taking into account
observable interest rates and the current creditworthiness of
the swap counterparties.
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28. FTEEMTIT AR »® 28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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(Continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform

Following the financial crisis, the reform and replacement
of benchmark interest rates such as GBP LIBOR and other
interbank offered rates (‘IBORs’) has become a priority for
global regulators. There is currently uncertainty around the
timing and precise nature of these changes. The Group’s
risk exposure that is directly affected by the interest rate
benchmark reform is its floating-rate borrowing in Japan.
The Group has hedged this borrowing with an interest rate
swap, and it has designated the swap in a cash flow hedge
of the variability in cash flows of the debt, due to changes in
3-month TIBOR that is the current benchmark interest rate.

It is currently expected that Tokyo Overnight Average Rate
(“TONA”) will replace Tokyo Interbank Offered Rate (“TIBOR”).
There are key differences between TIBOR and TONA.
TIBOR is a ‘term rate’, which means that it is published for
a borrowing period (such as 3 months), and it is ‘forward-
looking’, because it is published at the beginning of the
borrowing period. TONA is currently a ‘backward-looking’
rate; it is based on overnight rates from actual transactions,
and it is published at the end of the overnight borrowing
period. Furthermore, TIBOR includes a credit spread over the
risk-free rate, which TONA does not. To transition existing
contracts and agreements that reference TIBOR to TONA,
adjustments for term differences and credit differences might
need to be applied to TONA, to enable the two benchmark
rates to be economically equivalent on transition.
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28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform provide temporary relief from applying specific hedge
accounting requirements to hedging relationships directly
affected by IBOR reform. The reliefs have the effect that
IBOR reform should not generally cause hedge accounting
to terminate. However, any hedge ineffectiveness continues
to be recorded in the income statement. Furthermore, the
amendments set out triggers for when the reliefs will end,
which include the uncertainty arising from interest rate
benchmark reform no longer being present.

In summary, the reliefs provided by the amendments that
apply to the Group:

o When considering the ‘highly probable’ requirement,
the Group has assumed that the TIBOR interest rate on
which the hedged debts are based does not change as
a result of IBOR reform.

o In assessing whether the hedge is expected to be
highly effective on a forward-looking basis, the Group
has assumed that the TIBOR interest rate on which the
cash flows of the hedged debt and the interest rate
swap that hedges it are based is not altered by IBOR
reform.

o The Group will not discontinue hedge accounting
during the period of IBOR-related uncertainty solely
because the retrospective effectiveness falls outside
the required 80-125% range.

° The Group has not recycled the cash flow hedge

reserve relating to the period after the reforms are
expected to take effect.
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29. k7 29. SHARE CAPITAL
£ 4= HXE
Number Amount
Fh& FHET
‘000 HK$’000
ETE Authorised
R EEO. 18772 ZER Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
72019181 H ~ 20194 K& At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019
2020F12H31H and 2020 1,000,000 100,000
# B8 HXE
Number Amount
FB& FHET
‘000 HK$’000
EETRBEZZER Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid
720191 H1H ~2019F & At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019
2020FE12H31H and 2020 502,450 50,245
30. f#fE 30. RESERVES

rEBRFBES FRANGEEDEHERA -
EaANREETEERBWT

BRI a8
FEBRMNBEREASADETRNAEIIE
BREFTARBEETRNEEZSD

=]
FEESHFEEERNBARDZREMEER
EENBARNERITRAEEZFENERE-

188 =E=FisERAERAS EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The natures and purposes of reserves within equity are as
follows:

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group represents the
excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the investment costs in subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the issued share capital of the Group’s
subsidiaries.
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30. f#fE®= 30. RESERVES (Continued)

S EE
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Foreign exchange reserve

Foreign exchange reserve of the Group represents the
exchange differences on translation of the foreign operations
and associates into presentation currency of the Company.

Hedging reserve

Hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of
the cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging
instruments used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent
recognition of the hedged cash flow in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for cash flow hedges in note
4(h)(vii).

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve of the Group is contributed by EGL Tours
(Macau) Company Limited, a subsidiary incorporated in
Macau and limited by quotas, and Hit Travel Service Co.
Ltd (“Hit Travel”), a subsidiary incorporated in Taiwan and
limited by quotas. For the year ended 31 December 2020,
statutory reserve arising from Hit Travel was distributed to
the Group and the non-controlling interest due to event of
deregistration.

Under the Macau Commercial Code Article 377, a subsidiary
is required to set aside a minimum of 25% of profit after
taxation to the statutory reserve until the balance of the
reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of the company’s
share capital. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
statutory reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiary’s share
capital. Statutory reserve is not distributable.

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan, a subsidiary
of the Company incorporated in Taiwan is required to set
aside 10% of its profit after taxation to the statutory reserve
until the balance of the reserve reaches a level equivalent to
the company’s share capital.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, EGL Tours
(Shenzhen) Company Limited, a subsidiary incorporated
in the PRC, is required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory net profit after taxation (after offsetting any prior
years’ losses) to the statutory reserve fund. When the
balance of the statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of
the entity’s registered capital, any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or to increase the registered capital.
However, such balance of the statutory reserve fund must
be maintained at a minimum of 50% of the registered capital
after such usages. For the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019, there was no profit generated by EGL Tours
(Shenzhen) Company Limited.
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31.
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) adopted by the
Company was approved by the shareholders on 13
November 2014.

A summary of the Scheme is set out below:

The Scheme became effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 28 November 2014. Under the Scheme, the
directors shall, in its absolute discretion select and make an
offer to any eligible participants to subscribe for shares of
the Company at a subscription price being not less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of the offer of grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer of grant and (iii) the nominal
value of the share. The offer of a grant of options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer.

The options granted shall be exercisable in whole or in
part in the effective option period (i.e. 10 years from the
commencing date on 28 November 2014). The exercise
period of the options granted is determined and notified by
the directors to the grantee thereof at the time of making an
offer provided that such period shall not exceed the period
of 10 years from the date of the grant of the option is made,
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted at any time under
this Scheme together with options which may be granted
under any other share option schemes for the time being
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue immediately following the
completion of the global offering and the capitalisation issue
(but taking no account of any shares issued upon over-
allotment), being 50 million shares.

No share options were granted under the Scheme during
the current and prior years. As at 31 December 2020 and
2019, there were no outstanding options granted under the
Scheme. Share options do not confer rights to the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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32.
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32.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Schemes Authority in Hong Kong, with effect from 1
December 2000, the Group participates in the MPF Scheme
operated by an approved trustee in Hong Kong and
makes contributions for its eligible employees. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income. The cap of monthly relevant income
is HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest
immediately.

In addition to the MPF Scheme in Hong Kong, the Group
is also required to contribute a certain percentage of
employees’ monthly basic salaries to the defined contribution
retirement schemes in Macau, Taiwan, the PRC and Japan.

During the year, the aggregate amounts of employer’s
contributions made by the Group were approximately
HK$4,289,000 (2019: HK$5,941,000). No forfeited
contribution was available for offset against existing
contributions during the year.
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33. RTF 2B AR AR 33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
@ AREZHBEA LR (@) Statement of financial position of the Company
2020 2019
HizE FAET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current asset
KRB AR Z’E Investment in a subsidiary 61,198 61,198
MENEE Current assets
TR Prepayments 482 459
FEUS B /8 A =l BR 7R Amounts due from subsidiaries 36(c) 181,350 178,797
AU e 18 Tax recoverable 38 206
BT EANREEFRE Cash at banks and on hand 531 3,134
182,401 182,596
mEEaE Current liabilities
FESTRIE K H A FE T AR Accruals and other payables 2,916 3,659
FE(I M B AR BRRR Amount due to a subsidiary 36(c) 1,124 1,100
4,040 4,759
MEEEFE Net current assets 178,361 177,837
BEFE Net assets 239,559 239,035
Lr EQUITY
[N Share capital 29 50,245 50,245
& Reserves 33(b) 189,314 188,790
TR AR Total equity 239,559 239,035
RKERESZSZ On behalf of the Board of Directors
RXHE g il
Yuen Man Ying Leung Shing Chiu
HITES HITES
Executive Director Executive Director

192 S=FEsERARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



e M B RN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B E2020F12831H LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

33. XATIZHBFR AR EE @ 33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

b) FEAEEE

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserves of the Company

BR17 BB RERF fmst

Share Retained
premium earnings Total
FHETT FHET FETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#¥2019F181H At 1 January 2019 145,335 63,020 208,355
FERE RN Profit for the year = 533 533
ETRE (HaE11) Dividends paid (note 11) = (20,098) (20,098)

®2019F12H31H & At 31 December 2019 and

2020F181H 1 January 2020 145,335 43,455 188,790
FERE RN Profit for the year = 524 524
$2020%F12H31H At 31 December 2020 145,335 43,979 189,314
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34. fIBAT] 34. SUBSIDIARIES
1202012831 H » AR B T 5 B A 5 % As at 31 December 2020, the Company had direct or
EEEyRBEED ZE N EEFMABREA indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which
3 HEFBEAW T ¢ are private companies with limited liability, the particulars of

which are set out as follows:

sk,
AE)ATE =i BEREITRBERA FEfh R TEEY
Place of
incorporation/  Issued and fully paid
Name of company operations share capital Attributable equity interest  Principal activities
= fi
Directly Indirectly
FREEEEAERAR HBESAREE 3370258810 100% - RERR
B£337,025% 7T
EGL Management Group Company BVI 337,025 shares Investment holding
Limited totalling United States dollar
(‘US$”) 337,025
BRERTHERAT BN 3,315,000 Z3@H% > - 100% HREKITE BERTERKRED
3,315,000 7T MR THERE R RS
EGL Tours Company Limited Hong Kong 3,315,000 ordinary shares Provision of package tours, FIT
totalling HK$3,315,000 Products and ancillary travel
related products and services
RRERITH (BEX) BRAR A 21REBER - 100% REEHEANLERTE BB
A1 BT TERRENMRKTERER
KB
EGL Tours (Japan) Company Limited Hong Kong 221 ordinary shares Provision of outbound package
totalling HK$221 tours, FIT Products and
ancillary travel related products
and services in Japan
BEIRTHERAT BN 550,000 & % - - 100% EEER
&$550,0008 7T
i-Evertravel Company Limited Hong Kong 550,000 ordinary shares Inactive
totalling HK$550,000
FRIEBIRITH (RF) BRAS i 1,800,000 7 - 100% HRERITE BERTERRED
BT E MR RS
EGL Tours (Macau) Company Limited Macau Macau Pataca (‘MOP”) Provision of package tours, FIT
1,800,000 Products and ancillary travel

related products and services
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34. WEBAT = 34. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

B AT
ARILTE R BEITRAERE FEfLBR1E TEEH
Place of
incorporation/  Issued and fully paid
Name of company operations share capital Attributable equity interest  Principal activities
E#% ik
Directly Indirectly
Rk CGRYI) BRAR) FE BRERAE - 100%  RARBEREARRAMRTE
AR #3,850,0007T
EGL Tours (Shenzhen) The PRC Paid up capital of Renminbi Provision of inbound and local
Company Limited* (“RMB”) 3,850,000 package tours in the PRC
RREER (B4) BRAH HBHEAREE 100RRMR - 100% HEZK
H11,000% 7T
EGL Holdings (Nippon) Limited BVI 100 shares Investment holding
totalling US$1,000
&4 Zipang. S. S* HA 47508 B& 17 » - 80% M HERREARED LIRS
(MZipang J) A$£23,750,000H
Kabushiki Kaisha Zipang. S. S* Japan 475 shares Provision of travel bus services in
(“Zipang’) totalling JPY23,750,000 Japan
R R ) BRAE HESEARES 100RER - 100% HBEER
H11,000%7T
EGL Holdings (Asia) Limited BVI 100 shares Investment holding
totalling US$1,000
RREREEEERAT EBHEAREE 1007 - 100% HEZK
5100%E 7T
EGL Investment Group BVI 100 shares Investment holding
Company Limited totalling US$100
RREEZARAT &E 1REER - 100% REBRZEM
RBRRERE BHIET
(hE) BERAF)
EGL Trading Company Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Trading of goods in Hong Kong
(formerly known as “EGL Investment totalling HK$1
(China) Company Limited”)
EXSERERAT HESAREE 1REH - 100% HBEER
BRIET
Ebisu Holdings Company Limited BVI 1 share Investment holding

totalling US$1
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34. B AT @ 34. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
SERAIL,
NE)ATE =i BETRARRAE FEfL AR TELH
Place of
incorporation/  Issued and fully paid
Name of company operations share capital Attributable equity interest  Principal activities
EX A

Directly Indirectly

BXEREERAA A 1REER - 100% HEER
Af1BT
Ebisu Investment Company Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Investment holding
totalling HK$1
Ebisu Growth Limited* S BRERAE - 100% #A BEREERRBE
10,000,0008 &
Ebisu Growth Limited* Japan Paid up capital of Ownership, development and
JPY10,000,000 management of hotel in Japan
East Global Limited" BA BRERAE - 100% #A FEREERRBE
10,000,0006 &
East Global Limited* Japan Paid up capital of Ownership, development and
JPY10,000,000 management of hotel in Japan
* R TR E SR * English name for identification purpose only
G BAREA M EEE R E ¢ registered as a wholly-foreign owned enterprise under the
PRC law
B E2019F12831 8 LE FE R385 & My There was no addition or disposal of subsidiary during the
BAT - EHZE2020F12831HIEEE » HA—F years ended 31 December 2019. During the year ended 31
MEBASEILMRITH  AEEES H62% M December 2020, one of the subsidiaries, Hit Travel, which is
Bt o BRIb 2 40 ) L E2020FE 12831 HIEEE 62% owned by the Group, was deregistered. Except of this,
BB AN ENE AT e there was no addition or disposal of subsidiary during the
year ended 31 December 2020.
MmN B AR R IRESHREBEITERERES None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of the reporting period.
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35. JEIERG 35. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
JFERERBEFEN2020F12831HAH The net liabilities of non-controlling interests as at 31
950,000/ 7T > H AZipangfE (G FE G # 7 o December 2020 were approximately HK$950,000 which

were attributable to the non-controlling interest of Zipang.

EERERBLIENR2019F12831H AL The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December 2019
2,444,000% 75> HP & EFE4270,000E 7554 were approximately HK$2,444,000, of which net liabilities
ZipanglE{EIEE RS R R B EF B 492,714,000 of approximately HK$270,000 were attributable to the non-
BT ASE M R THEIGIEIERG R o controlling interest of Zipang and net assets of approximately

HK$2,714,000 were attributable to the non-controlling
interest of Hit Travel.

ZERBABINIFIEREZEARNE KA The non-controlling interests of these subsidiaries are
considered to be immaterial.
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36. FEARS 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
GARGEUHEHRERNEMIBOEEREZ R 5 In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
RAEERAN  BARE HET 2R ZW T - elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the

following transactions were carried out with related parties:

@ REFEEAMELS (@ Significant related party transactions
aduring the year

2020 2019
iz FTET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
SAAFREERBZEE Rental paid to a related company
—RET - Great Port i 12,704 16,017
FIEMIRTTE - BEMTERK  Amount received for provision of
BN M ARTT AR E S A AR TS package tours, FIT Products and
mEEABWEZ &5 ancillary travel related products and
services from a related company
— KRBT — Great Port (i) 33 134
FIRMRITE - BHR1TEMK  Costs charged by associates regarding
B0 M R 1T AE B 2 R S AR S the provision of package tours, FIT
= AT ZER Products and ancillary travel related
products and services
—EGLM#4E - EGL Okinawa (i) 3,036 22,179
—EGLERE ~ EGL Korea (i) 2,486 21,685
==k — Niti Niti Travel (i) 780 5,508
B AR HERTTAERE Sales of travel related products and
Em &R services to associates
—EGL 48 - EGL Okinawa (il - 3
—EGLEE - EGL Korea (i) - 3
H—XEZ QB2 Advertising sponsorship income from
BEEERUA an associate
—EGLEEH - EGL Korea (i) - 729
B—XEAEABEHFERE Purchase from a related company
—Hush Home Hong Kong - Hush Home Hong Kong Limited
Limited (i) 1,483 9
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36. FERRZ @
@) REFEBABELLS @
Wit :
0] SN FRAEARZHERAZINERER

BREPRESAEREREATDRIZEE
e IR TRETT °

R

RERGERE L EE ZFRET-

(i)

FABDATEERAE -BELE RIEM
FUITNA/RET2EFIFEAETZ
R o

Hush Home Hong Kong Limited 2 ME— % &
ABRENLZS o

BREXFIIREEINN REERAETFEE
REMERE > A QB R E AN E RS
BIIUBARDEFEAEARDZIEE

PAN
540

b) FEEEANSZFHH
rEE BEFEhHEMETEEEAEREZ

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@

(b)

Significant related party transactions
auring the year (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Rental expenses paid to a related company were
conducted in the normal course of business and in
accordance with terms of the lease agreements entered
into between the Group and the related company.

(if) The transactions were conducted on the basis of
mutually agreed terms.

The executive directors of the Company, Mr. Yuen, Mr.
Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee, are also directors and
have equity interests in Great Port.

The sole shareholder of Hush Home Hong Kong
Limited is the daughter of Mr. Huen.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of

e - key management during the year was as follows:
2020 2019
FAT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RS EF Short-term employee benefits 5,293 10,061
BB ER Post-employment benefits 179 351
5,472 10,412

©) [EWFENTITE L BIAR A A5 AR AL
BERKEKRIEE -

(c)

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.
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36. FERRXS &=

@ FELEER
R2020%F3825H  AEE B AEITE] L
80,000,000 8 T E— M EMtpE > AR
EF R EBMERERIGEZST BHAES
B1218 B EIiE - 55— % B 780,000,0007& 7T
(TE—ZFR/ER ) BR20205F3827
HiZE o

2020588260 » AEME KNET] 1L
80,000,000 TN E M ERHE > BE
R 2 B R AR2022F 7831 HEE$
— £ 53k80,000,0005%8 7T (5 —SRAEH
E7) Br20205FE8527 HIZE 0 1220204
8H26H F—£MEHER (BEIEH
R EKRBER2021F3H25HER) BIEHE
2022E 731 HRIFER A ©

R20205F 128238 » AEB B K EITFI L
40,000,000 TN E =M ERHE A E
IR R ERAN2026FE1H1HER - F=
$E740,000,0008 7T (E=ErELE
) BR20209F12829H 2B © 12 20204F
12H23H  E—F£MEFERME _£H
ERHER (BEARIEH 2R KRENR20225F
7B31HER) BEHZE2026F1 51 HBIH
=

BERERBEGRRERETE WHRE
KEEGCANE—LMELER-F£
RAE A BRI E =E/ME S BERN20205F
12831HREARBEE 122021538
188 KRBT ZEERBEMMBNIZE
KREBGEREHBRRE AL F—£/AE
FER - BS_EMELER KRB =E/ME
FEHBE2021FE3818EREH N EAIE
MENEE-e
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@

Loans from a related company

On 25 March 2020, the Group entered into the first
loan agreement with Great Port of HK$80,000,000
which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable 12
months after the date of signing the loan agreement.
The first loan of HK$80,000,000 (the “first related party
loan”) has been drawn down on 27 March 2020.

On 26 August 2020, the Group entered into the second
loan agreement with Great Port of HK$80,000,000
which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on 31
July 2022. The second loan of HK$80,000,000 (the
“second related party loan”) has been drawn down
on 27 August 2020. On 26 August 2020, the first
related party loan which is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on 25 March 2021, was extended to a new
repayment date on 31 July 2022.

On 23 December 2020, the Group entered into the
third loan agreement with Great Port of HK$40,000,000
which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
1 January 2026. The third loan of HK$40,000,000
(the “third related party loan”) has been drawn down
on 29 December 2020. On 23 December 2020, the
first related party loan and the second related party
loan, both of which are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on 31 July 2022, were extended to a new
repayment date on 1 January 2026.

The first related party loan, the second related party
loan and the third related party loan with repayment on
demand clause are classified as current liabilities as at
31 December 2020 although the demand clause has
not been exercised. On 18 March 2021, Great Port
issued waiver letters of demand clause stated in those
loan agreements. Thus, the first related party loan, the
second related party loan and the third related party
loan have been reclassified as non-current liabilities
from 18 March 2021.
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37.

38.

B EE

ERAEENBEENE BERRBUKRERT
BHNBEARZZEREENT :

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments in respect of capital expenditure
of acquisition of property, plant and equipment and
construction in progress for the Group are as follows:

2020 2019
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EHESIEES 2L Contracted but not provided for 1,020 136,120
BEREMER 38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
NEB ESBIERERTE The Group’s capital management objectives include:

(@) METEBEFESEZED UFKERRK
RAVE O K Bt {n & /2R F =k

b) ZFHAEEENBERER ;KR

© AmNMBEAEERBEEENREHES-

AEERBEARESERKREFRA V@ REKR
Bt EAED BAEEREREMNELR
FROBAERBUERERS Bl E BRI 51
BRER URERBEAGENRREIHRERIES
KF-AEBEMRKBEMNEARSER

FEBEEEAER TRBEHE K TN
HREEZRBREHBHETHE RTINS
REXER AEEHRKVRRZRESEREY
AE -BRREBEREBES BITHR HEEHR
HEBELURIR

(@) to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

(b)  to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(c) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholders’ returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows and capital expenditures, and potential strategic
investment opportunities. The Group does not currently
adopt any formal dividend policy.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debts or
sell assets to reduce debt.

20204E%% Annual Report 2020 201



\' B #54R 3 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020FE12831HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

38. ERAMEEE ®

ARElEBEERAERMBEAELR R2020
FERK2019F12831HZE RSB AHN
251,633,000 75 5% 353,021,00078 75 B IR B 45
EZEEFEERESRENEABE RBEE
KEUERER SR DABEERKT-

R20204F &2019F 12531 H B B EFEE L 1
HEERWMTF ¢

38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

Management of the Company regards total equity as

capital. The amount of capital as at 31 December 2020
and 2019 amounted to approximately HK$251,633,000
and HK$353,021,000 respectively, which the management
considers as optimal having considered the projected

operating cash flows and capital expenditures and the

potential projected strategic investment opportunities.

The net debt-to-equity ratio as at 31 December 2020 and

2019 were as follows:

2020 2019

FET FEBT

HK$’000 HK$’000

&% (W) Debt (note(i)) 736,084 440,701
BRI EAREFRE Less: Cash at banks and on hand (98,787) (206,119)
FEE Net debt 637,297 234,582
ReERfEER (B EE i) Equity (note(ii) 252,583 350,577
FERHKREERIEE Net debt-to-equity ratio 252% 67%

() EFEERTER HEEERFEARER
HEF B2 R EI I 5E26 ~ 15536(d) °

(i) KRREDOERAERBDER ABGERER
feo

202 H=EiEERARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Notes:

(i) Debt comprised bank borrowings, lease liabilities and loans

from a related company as detailed in notes 26, 15 and 36(d)

respectively.

(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners

of the company.
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39. AR EE

FAEETAREFEETEENX EE - RF
BEINERRE ESEEREEUADTREIE
EMEEAEBEE SRR (BFEMNEX
SNEEXRBLEBAET) FERBRAABDES
R fR o — AR S > A& B FLE R S EREUR T 2R
BS o

@ FIEEE
REBBEARRARBITERMEENFIER
B RAZEIRITEMFMEENREEREZ
R AR o

120205 AEB N KREFEBRFBE
RZBELLAH) > LIRER S B2 o R $
LEXB2EHEBEREERZRETRE
BAMEE -FREHB AR AR HE
MAEBERARZ G-

FEBBRITEFBNIRITERNIETS
BHREBMARRERE Z M KER -
FEREER D AEEEEAVIRTAR
RERLEFAEKR ZEHNRBRITERE
BE CEBEAEIAEE -

fiel B Z B E 4 38 0 3R L 5% M FT A E A
AEHRERFAE A AEBNFERS
18 (20194 & F)) R R 3gm (2019
FIBINEOR) KRB BTG MNER LD
#9164,00078 7T (20194 © 149,000 7T) °
BERTRENEACT SR80 Z0R D&
48,0003 77 (20194F : 18,0003 7T) ° BE
ZHEEHHEERNEMTOMET Zo

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposures to interest rate, credit, liquidity and foreign

currency risks arise in the normal course of the Group’s

business. The board of directors meets periodically to
analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group’s
exposure to market risk (including principal changes in

interest rates and foreign currency rates), credit risk and

liquidity risk. Generally, the Group employs a conservative

strategy regarding risk management.

(@

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising from
bank deposits and cash flow interest rate risk arising
from bank borrowings at floating rate.

During 2020, the Group aimed to maintain a suitable
proportion of fixed and floating rate borrowings in order
to stabilise interest costs. Interest rate hedging ratio is
determined after taking into consideration of the market
trend and the Group’s cash flow pattern. Interest
rate swap was employed to hedge exposures or to
modify the interest rate characteristics of the Group’s
borrowings.

The Group’s bank balances expose it to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The directors of
the Group consider the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risk in respect of bank balances is not significant
as interest-bearing bank deposits are within short
maturity periods in general.

If the interest rates had been increased or decreased
by 5% at the beginning of the year and all other
variables were held constant, would decrease or
increase (2019: increase or decrease) the Group's loss
(2019: profit) for the year and increase or decrease
retained earnings by approximately HK$164,000
(2019: HK$149,000) and the capitalised interest on
construction in progress would have been increased
or decreased by approximately HK$48,000 (2019:
HK$18,000). The assumed changes have no impact on
the other components of equity.
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39. MFEREEIE @

@ FIEE G @&
BN R5%AEBHENEE TERE
SRRSO AR

b) EFEEE
EERARIE—ESMIAZXBHFES
FERTEEBTEEE L HAE@MER
B E5 I8 2 B R

rEEEBRZREEEERREERENE
BEERAETRREETEE  ERNVE
SHARRBzZEMEEZREA (WHE
39(MigEat) °

AEEEHRERE 5 K H M8 R DU R
EXEEERBEET KAEBRKEKRR
FERMENRZRZHE FREREAELUERZ
REHFHESIBZEMEREERRE &
SR ZIRITHEBRERNEE BRI R

HxhkaBETBRT -AEE T REEH
thEXREERRRK-

AEEEREBYHREERFINRAE]
BAREIED A FEMEEBBRFLEE
ZERAFTFHABEZBUBRRBERA
HHEERERER AEE—ERERHE
FRERANEMEEBEENEZ BURE
EFEEER -BERWERZAIREESRE
DB2ERFABETNENCTHRENT
MoBHEEBRT2SEAEREREHTA
EEBERENN—REGCK BRI
REEEER Rt ERBEERR B
FEW AR TS I 5201 B8 ~ BR iR E R I H B 15
ERESERBERRE DR
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

@

()

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The increase or decrease by 5% represents directors’
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the year until the end of next reporting
period.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under its terms and cause a financial loss to
the Group.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from granting credits to customers in the
ordinary course of its operations and is limited to the
carrying amounts of financial assets recognised at the
end of the reporting period, as summarised in note
39(f).

The Group’s trade and other receivables are actively
monitored to avoid significant concentrations of credit
risk. The Group is not exposed to any significant
credit risk from any single counterparty or any group
of counterparties having similar characteristics. The
Group’s bank balances are deposited with major banks
in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC, Japan and Taiwan.
The Group has no other significant exposure to credit
risk.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime ECLs provision for all trade
receivables. The Group always measures the loss
allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. The ECLs on trade receivables are
estimated by reference to past default experience of
the debtor and current market condition in relation to
each debtor’'s exposure. The ECLs also incorporated
forward-looking information with reference to general
macroeconomic conditions that may affect the ability of
the debtors to settle receivables. To measure the ECLs,
the trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due
according to the ageing as disclosed in note 20.
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39. A ERERE @

(b)

EEEfE &)

B 5 EWRNTEHRAEIBEHEHIN30X 60
K 90K AR K B BO0K I H ~ 8 Al
E20.5% 1% 5% % 10% c K ABEEH
DAEE2020F K2019F12B31H IEEE
B EWREZ BIEHRRET AT K

FEECERERBEENCCERRAEEER
ER) N AEBEZEBRXZHFH
BREZBEENR IREER ~&EH
ZAREEHMBWIRZEAEE AR T
ER-FEEFEHMBRRZEERR
B R ERLIRAK A RRE N B EN R R
B EHIt R+ BB RBEEHER
X RERBRZRAAEEBBIRAER
B miEFE mES IRt iR A -

RHBEEXEBEAF 2 BREBELHET
B L RKABURMRUEBT R
IR BRI U R A E B R ERTR N
FRZEBERRZEE

MEWREEAT RBMEQTRMRIIRNZE
ERE ERXSHFERASHRT AR
BRRRE AEEREARNRZHTE
BENSIZZEERRER Bt & H
T ERZEBRERRBRSEEREGE-

FEERRSTEAFERNBEERFIHES
R ERATRZEmMERE R TERT
FEAEEEXREERR-

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Expected loss rate of trade receivables are assessed to
be 0.5%, 1%, 5% and 10% for the amounts less than
30 days, 60 days, 90 days past due and over 90 days
past due respectively. The directors of the Company
considered the loss allowance provision for trade
receivables was immaterial during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

The Group takes into account the historical default
experience and forward-looking information, as
appropriate, for example the Group considers
the consistently low historical default rates of
counterparties, and concludes that credit risk inherent
in the Group’s outstanding other receivables is
insignificant. The Group has assessed that other
receivables do not have a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition and risk of default is
insignificant, therefore the ECLs for these receivables
were immaterial under the 12-month ECLs method and
no loss allowance provision was recognised for both
years.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

With respect to credit risk arising from the amounts
due from a related company and an associate, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from repayment
default of counterparties is limited as the counterparties
have good credit history and sound financial position,
and the Group does not expect any significant loss of
uncollected advances from these entities.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit
risk associated with cash at banks since they are
deposited with credit worthy financial institutions.
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© REEEREE
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FEBZBRBERERRARERRE
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuead)

®)

©

Crediit risk (Continued)

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
throughout the year and are considered to be effective.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
other financial assets.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements in the short and long
terms. The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent
on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from
operations to meet its debt obligations. The Group
relies on internally generated funds as a significant
source of liquidity.
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TREREHMARETEBIFTESZRER
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(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

The following tables show the remaining contractual

maturities at the end of the reporting period of the

Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative

financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash

flows (including interest payments computed using

contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current

at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

BNXRERE  —EMR —ENLE  REMD
REE REREME  IREX BFBERE EFERLE  REME
Total Within Over Over
contractual one year oneyear  two years
Carrying undiscounted oron  butwithin  but within Over
amount  cash flows demand  twoyears  fiveyears five years
TER TER TERT TERT TET TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2020
JFink Non-derivatives:
ES R Trade payables 4,950 4,950 4,950 - - =
st IR E MR Accruals and other payables 40,703 40,703 40,703 - - -
EABEATER Amounts due to associates 79 79 79 = = =
HEARER Loans from a related company 200,000 200,000 200,000 - - -
RITER Bank borrowings 476,796 484,828 51,220 41,373 118,056 274,179
fEafk Lease liabilties 59,288 61,327 42,508 17,942 877 -
781,816 791,887 339,460 59,315 118,933 274,179
1% . Derivatives:
RELEE Net settled
ES Interest rate swap 642 895 367 207 231 -
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©
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

BHNRER —ENR —FENE  mEML
kAR Renenn FREK BFBEME BTBBRE RENE
Total Within Over Over
contractual one year one year two years
Carrying  undiscounted oron but within but within QOver
amount  cash flows demand two years five years five years
TER TER TER TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2019
FEfTE Non-derivatives:
BRREAR Trade payables 47,295 47,295 47,295 = = =
st B R H MR Accruals and other payables 57,394 57,394 57,394 - - -
EHERATER Amounts due to associates 3,732 3,732 3,732 = = =
RITER Bank borrowings 372,875 378,234 37,991 35,691 108,063 201,489
HEaf Lease liabilities 67,826 70,814 49,127 12,811 8,876 -
549,122 557,469 195,539 48,502 111,939 201,489
14 Derivatives:
FRAE Net settled
GilES:t i Interest rate swap 1,304 1,350 417 363 570 -

ZREREEADERHEZFFHENNTEE
HAPRTEIRBEREBERRNE R
BEIDTIE - BRI AE BN FARD
EETRAMEADRAIEETENIERE
ERAFER - BEFHRE 2FTENRER
EMimRZFSOEERBIMEE-
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The table summarises the maturity analysis of loans from

a related company with a repayment on demand clause

based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the

loan agreements. Taking into account the Group’s financial

position, the directors do not consider that it is probable that

the related company will exercise its discretion to demand

immediate repayment. The directors believe that such loans

will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment

dates set out in the loan agreements.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

TMEETRE ) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
ANAER  -EMA -ENE mENL
RkEE RERERE  AREX BTEERE BFEBRLE  RENL
Total Within Over Over
contractual one year oneyear  two years
Carrying undiscounted oron  butwithin  but within Over
amount  cash flows demand  twoyears  fiveyears  five years
TiEn TiEr TiEn TR TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20205128310 31 December 2020 200,000 200,000 - - - 200,000
Sh ] e (d) Foreign currency risk

SMNERBIE—BEMIAZAAREBENA
AR\ REFAIINEERESSHME LKD)
Z Kz

AREBMAZTINER G - ZZE AR EUIE
AEBEBMNINESEE 2 EBIRHEKRT
“EHRTER REES TR @B
RATHERE MR R EE 2 W& U KRR
B I 13 T8 R 85 BN 14 A 15 A8 BR AR 75 2 AR 75 Ak
Ko NAREE » AEEA48.2% (20194 :
51.7%) Z B2 K2 #95.4% (20194 : 8.4%)
ZWRUEAEBMERNINEEB G
stfE-o

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group has foreign currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the revenue from provision of
package tours, FIT products, travel bus services,
ancillary travel related products and services as well as
costs of services consumed in hotel accommodation
and ancillary hotel related services in currencies
other than the group entities’ functional currency.
Approximately 48.2% (2019: 51.7%) of costs and
approximately 5.4% (2019: 8.4%) of the Group’s
revenue are denominated in currencies other than the
group entities’ functional currency for the year.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group also has foreign currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the balances of assets and
liabilities in currencies other than the group entities’
functional currency. The carrying amounts of the foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2020 2019
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BE Assets

H JPY 52,166 45,228
AR RMB 3,974 3,976
56,140 49,204

aE Liabilities
H JPY 28,244 24,306
AR RMB 138 199
28,382 24,505

EEERREYERIINEEXRZEEHER
SMERE - BEEEHIFTER  HEEEE
REERHESREZIMNERK

HRRRPITTEBTER RS EM  EFR
RHEEETRPITTZIMNER BRI A EK
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The management monitors foreign currency exposure
by closely monitoring the movements of foreign
currency rates. The management has set up a policy to
require group entities to manage their foreign exchange
risk against their respective functional currency.

The directors consider that the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk in respect of MOP is not
significant because MOP’s fluctuation with HK$ is
immaterial.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

(@)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group’s (loss)/profit for the year and retained
earnings in response to reasonably possible changes
in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period.
The sensitivity analysis includes balances between
Group companies where the denomination of the
balances is in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit or
decrease in loss and increase in other equity where the
HK$ strengthens against the relevant currency. For a
weakening of the HK$ against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
(loss)/profit and other equity, and the balances below
would be negative. The 5% change in foreign exchange
rate is used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s best assessment of the possible
changes in foreign exchange rates.
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39. MIFBEEGEIR @ 39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
@ SHEE SR ) (d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
UTHRHEDTHIRIERS FEVINERE The following sensitivity analysis has been determined
Xy BREEDETETE  UTHREEEE based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign
{RiF o exchange rates taking place at the beginning of the

reporting year and held constant throughout the year.

2020 2019
FEE/BE (M) HD FERNRRERF
REBDRALEM, (R &,/ Caizb)
(Increase)/decrease
in loss for the year Increase/(decrease)
and increase/(decrease) in profit for the year
in retained earnings and retained earnings
=i AR H ARE
FTHET THER FHET FHETT
JPY RMB JPY RMB
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EREF ! Changes in exchange rate:
BT R INEFHE5% HK$ appreciates by 5% against
the foreign currencies (999) (160) (873) (158)
BT RIMNEEZ E5% HK$ depreciates by 5% against
the foreign currencies 999 160 873 1568
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

(e) Fair value

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value
hierarchy:

Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

BT BT E—REABEZREBIN Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
ZEEREBZIERH A within Level 1 that are observable for the
o AERE EINER) 8z asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
ErRBEER) ; K& or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and
F=4. BEEXEBEBEITIIFRKENRES Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are
B2 @ AEE (Fa R A not based on observable market data
) o (unobservable inputs).
1220204 1220194
12H31H 12H31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
FHET FHB7T
HK$’000 HK$’000
=K Liability B
TEEMITA Derivative financial instrument Level 2 642 1,304

HFE2020%2019F 12831 HILEE » H4K
Z B HEEEFS o

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
there was no transfer between levels.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

category

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated

statement of financial position related to the following
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

2020 2019
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ETMEE Financial assets
HEEM At EL Financial assets measured at
TREE amortised cost:
B 5 EUER Trade receivables 1,709 7,144
5T R H At FEUL AR Deposits and other receivables 47,306 37,120
FE U Bt A B BR R Amount due from an associate 7,022 6,163
HIRRITIERR Pledged bank deposits 8,578 6,702
RITERKREFRE Cash at banks and on hand 98,787 206,119
163,402 263,248
TREE Financial liabilities
BEEM At E Y Financial liabilities measured at
ETHEE . amortised cost:
B EER Trade payables 4,950 47,295
FE SRR IE K A FE (T BR Accruals and other payables 40,703 57,394
P& Bt ' A B BR =R Amounts due to associates 79 3,732
RIE R BIER Loans from a related company 200,000 -
HRIT AR Bank borrowings 476,796 372,875
HE&E Lease liabilities 59,288 67,826
781,816 549,122
EERBANEBEGTA Financial liability designated at FVTPL:
BN EmmaE
MERIAGH Interest rate swap contract 642 1,304
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40.

MEBEESFMEEERZHER

TR AEERELTHFELEEREFH

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

15 - arising from financing activities:
RITEN HESE TEBBE  BEFEM
Bank Lease Derivative Loans from
borrowings liabilities liability  a related party
(Hizto6) (Hzt15) (zz2s)  (Ha36()
(note 26) (note 15) (note 28) (note 36(a))
TAT TAT TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201951818 At 1 January 2019 269,638 100,719 2,085 -
MERSRELHE . Changes from financing cash flows:
I RITER P SIE Proceeds from new borrowings 142,942 = - -
BRBTER Repayment of borrowings (39,119) = = =
ENHEERENAEEH 2 Principal element of lease rental paid = (71,142) = =
BEHERSNAEHS Interest element of lease rental paid = (3,355) = =
BAFE Interest paid (3,004) = (462) -
MERERELELE Total changes from financing
cash flows 100,819 (74,497) (462) -
[ERAE Exchange adjustments 2,766 38 33 -
HinEEeE Other changes:
FERX Interest expense 3,583 3,355 462 =
BRI ZMAE Transaction costs capitalised (3,848) = = =
AEEMHAEL New leases entered during the year = 39,308 = =
AFEREHE Disposal of leases during the year - (600) - -
BIHENRZEE Effect of modification to
lease payments - (497) - -
FERFIE Interest payable (83) = = =
AR BEED Fair value change - - (784) =
HitnE e Total other changes (348) 41,566 (322) =
1#2019%12A31H At 31 December 2019 372,875 67,826 1,304 -
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40. RIS EEIFREEX BB ZHIR @ 40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

RITMER HERME fTEaE MEREXM

Bank Lease Derivative Loans from
borrowings liabilities liability a related party
(Hiat26) (Miat15) (mizzs)  (Ma236()
(note 26) (note 15) (note 28) (note 36(d)
TAT TAT FTAT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
120201 81H At 1 January 2020 372,875 67,826 1,304 -
MERSRELEE . Changes from financing cash flows:
RITERAERIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 251,259 - = =
BERTER Repayment of bank borrowings (165,742) = = =
REAREH Advance from a related company - - - 200,000
ENAERSNESIS Principal element of lease rental paid - (29,592) - -
ENAERSNA S Interest element of lease rental paid - (2,575) - -
BAF S Interest paid (4,973) - 419) -
MERESRELHLR Total changes from financing
cash flows 80,544 (32,167) (419 200,000
fE R A Exchange adjustments 20,626 13 40 =
HtEEE . Other changes:
FERY Interest expense 4,951 2,575 419 =
BRERZMAE Transaction costs capitalised (1,948) - = =
BIIERARZEE Effect on modification of
loan payment (252) - - -
AEEHAET L New leases entered during the year - 26,185 - -
rEEREHE Disposal of leases during the year - (1,137) = =
& R Gain on rental concession - (4,007 - -
NAEEEE Fair value change - - (702) -
Htn&s)8%5 Total other changes 2,751 23,616 (283) -
12020F12831H At 31 December 2020 476,796 59,288 642 200,000
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41. i@ﬁ% HHA%E HIEKRCOVID-19B 1FZ &

(@)

BH2021FE1B1HE3H26H » AEBHEHFE
ANMEBZHEHTCRINEEE R/ - ZE
HEER<HEEaER /L H£4608,0008
7750

R2021F1 8198 » AEE L HHL IE A E
E1252 B HENRMEEN B H  BiRER
THERATDESEHETZEEENE
B2 BRENETRBECREREENE
KERRFE &R #2514920,000,00078 7T ©

A B E B E EECOVID-195% 15 Hf 25
EEMEEZEBENFE-RFCOVID-19
BERENRE RS E ZNEESR
ME AEBREHBFEANEERES
ERENRH > WO BEFR 2021 EELZEINE
EERL{E ° JATM > COVID-19% 5 ¥ 2021F &
B TRENEBEREZ NS ATER -

41.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE AND
EFFECT OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

(a)

From 1 January to 26 March 2021, the Group agreed
to additional rent concessions with lessors relating to
rental in Hong Kong. These rent concessions resulted
in a total reduction in lease liabilities of approximately
HK$608,000.

On 19 January 2021, the Group implemented the
termination arrangement of employment contracts with
125 escort guides of the Group. On the same date,
the board of directors of EGL Tours Company Limited
approved a compensatory arrangement for these
escort guides which provides for certain payments,
including cash severance payment and long service
payment totalling approximately HK$20.0 million.

The directors of the Company are continuing to assess
the implications of the COVID-19 pandemic to the
business in which the Group operates. Depending on
the duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and continued
negative impact on economic activity, the Group
might experience further negative results, and liquidity
restraints and incur additional impairments on its assets
in 2021. However, the exact impact of the COVID-19
pandemic in the remainder of 2021 and thereafter
cannot be predicted.
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CO1ERFEERS
2021 AGM

A EIE4mE]
Articles of Association

BEE
Board

RBEEBRHS
BVI

tEEASTH
CG Code

RABHERBEZER
Company or EGL Holdings

COVID-19
COVID-19

=

Director(s)

RIRAERITIE
EGL Tours

12 e
Evergloss

BT
FIT

BHRTE®R
FIT Products

KETT
Great Port

AABBERRBEANG

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company

RABIRERETNRE T REFABSEZAEA
the amended and restated articles of association of the Company, as amended from
time to time

Exg

the board of Directors

RBEBRES
British Virgin Islands

ERBIMER 4PR B R B E B A PR
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

REBEZERBRAB (RHRSE - 6882)
EGL Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6882)

mAERRE
coronavirus

KABESF

the director(s) of the Company

RRERITHBRAS KRB ZEELENBE LR
EGL Tours Company Limited, being an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

REESEEEFRAR AARZENEE (EERESFRBPERG)
Evergloss Management Group Company Limited, being an associated corporation
(as defined under the SFO) of the Company

B BHEKRE
free independent travellers

BHR{TEZERERKE TR

FIT packages and individual travel elements

RETERRB WITEFZHEA

Great Port Limited, being an associate of the Executive Directors

218 mEBERARAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



i) 5
Glossary

KEEH
Group
BT
HKD/HK$

BEREMBHRSER]
HKFRSs

=]
JPY

=3
Kwok Lai

QS
Likang

LRA
Listing Rules

BT A

Model Code

BT
MOP

EBEOR B R EREE

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot

Spring Hotel

KIEDFBIE
Osaka Hinode Hotel

KRB REWBAE
the Company and its subsidiaries

BT BBEEE

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEEGMRAGERN(ERYBRSER)
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants

HE > BREESE
Japanese yen, the lawful currency of Japan

BEREIZERAERAR BEEERELZ—
Kwok Lai Holdings Limited, being one of the shareholders of Evergloss

FRBRAR BEEEREZ—
Likang Limited, being one of the shareholders of Evergloss

WX Prag sy LR Al
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

FHRAMERI0FTE M EM BT AESETHESIZNRETA
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

BFITT O RFTEE B
Macau Pataca, the lawful currency of Macau

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel CH4B:2D¥ B RERAIS) » ZNEE
AABEEZE AL

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel CH 48B3 ¥ 38 R EBRASE) , the Group’s
second-owned hotel in Japan

Osaka Hinode Hotel (KBxRDFIEE) > REBN B AER 2 BSOS
Osaka Hinode Hotel (KFr3EDFAEIE), the Group’s first-owned hotel in Japan
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RE
PRC

&5 M E IR A
SFO

i

Share(s)

FER ST 3
Share Option Scheme

e
Shareholder(s)

TR
sq.ft.

75K
sg.m.

Bt 2 P
Stock Exchange

rEE

Year

REARENE
the People’s Republic of China

&5 R ARG (BFAEFIEE7T1E)
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

EN/NSILh)
the share(s) of the Company

AT BH2014F 11 BRMBI B IR EST 8

share option scheme adopted by the Company since November 2014

[ SUEST= PN
the holder(s) of the Share(s)

FHR
square feet

7K
square meter(s)

BEEMERBAARAF
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

B ZE2020512831HIEEFE
the year ended 31 December 2020
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